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ocation as of February 28, 20067 e
Maximum Water Depths Maximum Water Depths Maximum Water Depths
JACKUPS 22 GSF Compact Driler 300" SEMISUBMERSIBLES
Heavy-Duty Harsh Environment 23 GSF Galveston Key 300" 48 GSF Development Driller i~ 7,500
1 GSF Galaxy | 400" 24 GSF Key Gibraltar 300 47 GSF Development Driller )l 7,500
2 GSF Galaxy I 400 25 GSF Key Hawaii 300" 48 GSF Cebti.c Sea 5,760:
3 GSF Galaxy I 400' 26 GSF Laprador SOO’ 49 GSF Alrct|c | 3,400'
4 GSF Magellan 350' 27 GSF Ma!n Pass | 300, 50 GSF R?g 135 2,800‘
5 GSF Monitor ss0r 28 GSF Main Pass IV 300 51 GSF Rig 140 2,400
6 GSF Monarch 350° 28 GSF Parameswara 300 52 GSF Alegtlan Kay 2,300
, 30 GSF Rig 134 300 53 GSF Arctic Il 1,800°
tothe Cantilevered o , 31 GSF Rig 136 300’ 54 GSF Arctic IV 1,500
Kup rigs 7 GSF Consteliation | ;‘OO, 32 GSF High Island If* 270 55 GSF Grand Banks 1,500
n one of 8 GsF goin,s‘e"a“"” ! 320, 33 GSF High lsland Iv** 270" 56 GSF Artic 1,200
Kups are 9 GSF Baltic 5 34 GSF High Island V 270" Third-Party Owried
s 10 GSF Adriatic I 350" . , Y
an 35 GSF High lstand | 250 57 Dada Gorgud .
11 GSF Adriatic i 350° : . , '
e 36 GSF High istand Il 250 58 Istictal 1 558
12 GSF Adriatic VII* 350’ . , 9 '
 columns, 15 Gor At i o 37 GSF High lsland VIi 250
fiing units 14 Gor Adaiox oot 38 GSF High lsland VIl 250' DRILLSHIPS
erates in d”a’\t/'lc \ 350, 39 GSF Hign Island IX 250 59 GSF C.R. Luigs 10,000
15 gsi Eey fanhattan 350’ 40 GSF Rig 103 250 60 GSF Jack Ryan 10,000’
16 G:F P S,'”%/"’:pore , 350, 41 GSFRig 105 250 61 GSF Explorer 7.800°
17 drietic 28 42 GSF Rig 124 250"
1ake them 18 GSF Adriatic VIl 328' 43 GSF Rig 127 250" UNDER CONSTRUCTION
srate , 19 GSF Adr?at?c | 300: 44 GSF Rig 141 2507 62 GSF Development Driller Il 7,500
& dynamic 20 GSF Adriatic V 300 45 GSF Britannia 230’ * Out of operation
. 21 GSF Adriatic XI 300’ : ** Projected to start in May 2006

1 Units in transit on Feb. 28 shown at destinations




®
52}
I
- L
T ®
Worldwide Flest @ Jackups ‘
g Named for the elevating systems that extend their legs

sea bottom and provide a stable platform for drilling, jac
generally operate in water depths up to 400 feet. We o
the world's largest HDHE jackup fleets, and all of our jar,
cantilevered to extend their drill floors over fixed platforr

@ SEMISUBMERSIBLES
Semisubmersible rigs are notable for their pontoons an
which are flooded to partially submerge these floating ¢
to a predetermined depth. Our semisubmersible fleet o4
depths from midwater to ultra-deepwater.

@ DRILLSHIPS
The mobility and load-carrying capabiiities of drillships r.
ideal for deepwater drilling in remote locations with mod
weather environments. Our ultra-deepwater drillships us{
positioning and can drill in water depths up to 10,000 f¢




Letter to
Shareholders

Jon A. Marshall
President & CEO

year ago, I wrote to you about a number of
positive trends that suggested we had entered
a more robust and protracted drilling upturn
than we had seen in many years. As 2005 progressed
and demand for offshore contract drilling services
accelerated in every region we serve, the reality of this
extraordinary market and the magnitude of its impact

on GlobalSantaFe’s business became increasingly clear.

We secured dayrates throughout the year that continu-
ally surpassed our historical highs for every class of rig in
our worldwide fleet, and the ongoing surge in demand -
lifred our average rig utilization to 96 percent for the
year. The resulting increase in contract drilling revenues,
along with significantly higher year-over-year operating
income for our combined drilling management services
and oil and gas segments, produced one of the best years

in the history of our company.

GlobalSantaFe entered 2006 with expectations of
another outstanding year and growing indications that
dritling markets will remain strong for some time to
come. Among these indications was our recent letter
of intent to provide a new ultra-deepwater semisub-
mersible to a customer under a seven-year, $1 billion
agreement to start in 2009 and continue to 2016. We
will start building our new rig, the GSF Development
Driller 111, in Singapore in the first quarter of 2006. In-
cluding this agreement, the strong worldwide demand
for offshore drilling services has pushed our contract
backlog to nearly $7 billion as I write this letter, from
$4.8 billion art year-end, and we continue to negotiate
additional new long-term contraces for our rigs and
discuss with our customers opportunities for building

new rigs against long-term contracts.

Even with our capital commitment for the GSF
Development Driller 111 we expect to generate
significantly more future cash flow than is necessary to

meet our capital requirements, and we are committed

to returning a substantial amount of cash to our
shareholders. To this end, our Board of Directors has
already authorized the company to repurchase up to

$2 billion of our ordinary shares.

As bright as che future is for GlobalSantaFe, the world-
wide fleet expansion and high utilization rates will chal-
lenge our ability to control costs, enhance customer focus
and improve our safety and environmental performance.
We remain as firmly committed to these goals as we are
dedicated to the continual development and retention of

our outstanding workforce that achieves them.

It is a testament to the quality of GlobalSantaFe’s people
that our improved 2005 results were achieved during

a time of extreme personal hardships and professional
challenges, as two catastrophic hurricanes struck the
heart of our U.S. Gulf of Mexico operations and devas-
tated a region that hundreds of our employees and their
families call home. We are fortunate and thankful that
none of our employees were injured by these storms, and
grateful for the depth of compassion and dedication they

showed each other during this difficult period.

After 24 years of steadfast support, Kuwait Petroleum
Corporation divested its remaining GlobalSanraFe
shareholdings during the past year, and its designees
Khaled Al-Haroon, Maha Razzuqi and Nader Sultan
lefe our board of directors. We have all benefited from
their contributions to our company, and we will miss

their vision and sound advice.

On behalf of our board of directors and the 7,500 men
and women of GlobalSantaFe, I thank you for your

continued support.

Jon A.Marshall
President and CEO
March 1, 2006




Average Revenues Per Day
From Contract Driling

65.9

83.5

($ in thousands)

78.9
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WORLDWIDE OPERATIONS

Contract Driling

Our confract drilling business benefited
throughout 2005 from surging demand and
accelerating dayrates as oil and gas companies
intensified their efforts to replace declining
reserves and boost production to meet the

energy needs of an expanding global economy.

The robust demand for offshore rigs drove

the average utilization rate for our worldwide
contract drilling fleet to 96 percent in 2005,
including average utilization of 98 percent
during the second half of the year, compared
with 86 percent for 2004. As offshore markets
heated up throughout the year, exploration

and production companies became increasingly
concerned about potential delays in their planned

drilling programs due to the lack of future rig

availability, and many responded by pursuing
longer-term contracts to meet their requirements.
These trends contributed to our record year-end
contract drilling backlog of $4.8 billion, of
which approximately $1.9 billion of revenue is
expected to be realized in 2006, eclipsing our

total backlog of $1.7 billion at the close of 2004.

The positive market fundamentals that
contributed to our 274 percent increase in
contract drilling operating income during 2005
remained firmly in place as we entered the new
year, and our outlook for 2006 remains one of
continuing increases in demand, high levels of
utilization and improvement in dayrates for our

drilling rigs with available uncontracted time.

GlobalSantaFe is well positioned to capitalize on
these trends and improve shareholder returns as

we remain focused on the needs of our customers



Cheryl Richard
Senior Vice President,
Human Resources

“GlobalSantaFe's strong
commitment to people
goes well beyvond
competitive pay and
benefits to include
career development and
succession programs
that ensure our future
workforce is prepared to
build on our success.” -

Average Fleet Utilization

85%

86%

96%
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and continuous improvement in the quality and
cost-effectiveness of our operations. We have

a committed and well-trained workforce with
deep experience in every major drilling region of
the world, and we operate a diverse, modern fleet
of premium-qualiry jackups, semisubmersibles
and drillships that allows us to deliver the
equipment our customers need, anywhere they

need it.

Our fleet capabilities were enhanced in 2005
with the conclusion of a four-year, billion-dollar
construction program and the delivery of two
ulera-deepwater semisubmersible rigs, the GSF
Development Driller I and GSF Development Driller
II. These fifth-generation semis are designed to
drill to 37,500 feet in water depths up to 7,500
feet, either in full dynamic-positioning mode or

conventionally moored. Following repairs to both

rigs caused by thruster damage and damage from

Hurricane Katrina, the GSF Development Driller 11
commenced operations in November 2005, and
the GSF Development Driller [ is scheduled to start

working in the second quarter of 2006.

Hurricane Katrina was one of two major storms
thar caused significant damage to offshore
equipment and facilities in the U.S. Gulf of
Mexico and catastrophic damage to che onshore
Gulf Coast region. We safely evacuated more
than 900 people from nine jackups and four
semisubmersibles and repositioned the GSF C.R.
Luigs drillship prior to Hurricane Katrina, which
struck our deepwater semis, and Hurricane

Rita, which hit our jackups. Through che
exceptional efforts of our employees and the
cooperative support of customers and suppliers,

most of our fleet resumed operations within a




Roger B. Hunt
Senior Vice President,
Marketing

"Our customers continue
to boek rigs farther in
advance, despite the
capacity additions rhat
have been annourced for

our industry, because they
expect drilling markets

to remain strong, and

they have confidence in
GlobalSantaFe.”

“In this period of
growing demand and
dayrates, we are more
focused than ever on
meeting the needs

of our customers and
earning their recognition
as the world's best
provider of offshore
drilling services.”

W. Matt Ralls
Executive Vice President
£ and Chief Operating

Officer
few dagfs of these storms and all but two severely We spent approximately $25 million to
damaged jackup rigs from our pre-storm fleet reactivate the mid-water semisubmersible
have returned to work or are scheduled to begin GSF Arctic II in 2005 from cold-stack at
service'in the first half of 2006. We are still Invergordon, Scotland, and it immediately
assessing the economic feasibility of repairing began a North Sea concract when it became
these two rigs, the GSF High Island I1I and available in the third quarter.
GSF Adriatic VII.
| In the first quarter of 2006, we announced that
With indications of ongoing demand growth and ) ] )
1 we signed a letter of intent to provide a new
a limited supply of premium offshore equipment,
GContract Driing ‘ ) ultra-deepwater semisubmersible, to be named
Revenue Backlog we expect to see more “cold-stacked” rigs
(S in bilions) i ' o the GSF Development Driller 111, to a customer
a8 reentering the market, in addition to the spate of
— under a seven-year contract through 2016 valued
’ newbuilds that have been announced for delivery Y u8 va
through the first quarter of 2010. The cyclical ac approximacely §1 billion. We contracred
histoty, of over-construction by our industry Keppel FELS, Ltd. to build the new rig with
o remains cause for long-term concern, but there capabilities similar to our first two Development
10 appearg to be more than enough incremental Drilfers. Construction costs for the new rig are
D demand for the foreseeable future to absorb the expected to total approximately $590 million.
03 04 ‘05 projected capacity increase.

as of Dec. 31



Michael R. Dawson
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

"We will maintain a very
disciplined approach

to capital allocation
and expect to return a
significant portion of
our cash flow to our
shareholders.”

Incorme From Operations
($ in milions)

510.5

181.7
145.2
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0 Contract Drilling
{3 Dritling Management Services/Oil and Gas

Driling Management Services
GlobalSantaFe’s drilling management services
segment, which includes Houston-based
Applied Drilling Technology, Inc. (ADTI),
and Aberdeen-based ADT International, is the
world’s largest provider of turnkey drilling and
related engineering and management services.
Exploration and production companies rely on
our drilling management services segment to
effectively serve as their outsourced drilling
department. In 2005, improved operating
petformance by our drilling management
services segment generated substantially
improved operating income, despite fewer
turnkey projects. The segment drilled 80,
turnkey wells and performed 19 turnkey
completions in 2005, compared with 89
turnkey wells and 30 turnkey completions in

2004, as strong industry rig demand overall and

hurricane damage in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico
resulted in fewer available rigs than in 2004.
Tight rig markets will continue to challenge
ADTT's ability to contract equipment in 2006

and may result in fewer turnkey projects.

Oiland Gas

The primary mission of our Challenger Minerals
(CMI) oil and gas division is to develop turnkey
opportunities for our drilling management
services segment and to help fund those projects
by attracting outside investors to participate on
an equity basis in the wells. CMI takes a small
interest in the wells and generates revenues from
its share of the produced oil and natural gas. In
2005, this segment helped secure 32 contracts
for drilling management services and continued
to benefit from higher oil production and

improved prices for oil and natural gas.




UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

2005 FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005
Commission file number 1-14634
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(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Cayman Islands : 98-0108989
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Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (281) 925-6000

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Name of each exchange

Title of each class on which registered
Ordinary Shares $.01 par value : New York Stock Exchange
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
‘ None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined by Rule 405 of the
Securities Act.  Yes No [}

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d)
of the Act. Yes ] No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90
days. Yes No [ ‘

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information
statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. []

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a
non-accelerated filer. See definition of “accelerated filer” and “large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act. (check one): Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer [ | Non-Accelerated Filer []

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act). Yes [ ] No

The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates computed
by reference to the price at which the common equity was last sold as of the last business day of the Registrant’s
most recently completed second fiscal quarter (June 30, 2005) was approximately $9.0 billion (the executive
officers and directors of the registrant and Kuwait Petroleum Corporation and its affiliates are considered
affiliates for purposes of this calculation).

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant’s classes of common stock, as of the
latest practicable date: Ordinary Shares, $.01 par value, 247,144,146 shares outstanding as of February 28, 2006.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Proxy Statement in connection with the 2006 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders are
incorporated into Part III of this Report.
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Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

We make available on our website, free of charge, at www. globalsantafe.com our annual report on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to these reports as
soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission.
The information contained in our website does not constitute a part of this Annual Report.

‘

EARNINGS CONFERENCE CALL

On Wednesday, May 3, 2006, we are scheduled to release our first quarter 2006 financial results after
trading closes on the New York Stock Exchange. On May 4, 2006, at 10:00 a.m. Central Time (11:00 a.m.
Eastern Time), we are scheduled to hold an earnings conference call to discuss the results.

Interested parties may participate in the conference by calling (617) 213-8067, confirmation code 17701410.
The call is also available through our website at www.globalsantafe.com. We recommend that listeners connect
to the website prior to the conference call to ensure adequate time for any software download that may be needed
to hear the webcast. Replays will be available starting at 1:00 p.m. Central Time (2:00 p.m. Eastern Time) on the
day of the conference call by webcast on our website or by telephoning (617) 801-6888, confirmation code
15214319. Both services will discontinue replays at 7:00'p.m. Central Time on May 11, 2006..



FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, companies are provided a “safe harbor” for
discussing their expectations regarding future performance. We believe it is in the best interests of our
shareholders and the investment community to use these provisions and provide such forward-looking
information. We do so in this report and other communications. Forward-looking statements are often but not
always identifiable by use of words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “budget,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,”
might,” “plan, ”p

2

29 il oo LINY3 2 4¢

“forecast,” “intend,” “may, predict,” “project,” “should,” and “will.”

Our forward-looking statements include statements about the following subjects:

* our possible or assumed results of operations;

» our funding and financing plans; |

» the dates drilling rigs will become available following completion of current contracts;

»  with respect to our new ultra-deepwater semisubmersible, the dates it is expected that construction will
commence, the rig will be delivered and will commence its first contract, as well as the estimate of the
construction costs for the rig;

* our estimation of the costs to repair the risers on the GSF Development Driller I and the GSF
Development Driller 1] and a spare riser string;

e our estimation of the estimated costs to remediate thruster defects on the GSF Development Driller I and
the GSF Development Driller I and our expectation regarding who will bear those costs;

+ our expectation that we will likely replace the jackup GSF Adriatic IV, which was lost in a fire, and the
GSF High Island 11l and GSF Adriatic VII, which were damaged in Hurricane Rita, if either is declared
a constructive total loss;

» our estimation of the construction cost, capitalized cost, capital spares, startup expenses, customer-
required modifications, mobilization costs, costs related to the thruster defect and capitalized interest for
the GSF Development Driller I and GSF Development Driller II;

*  our expectation that we will fund all remaining construction and startup costs of the GSF Development
Driller I and GSF Development Driller 11, as well as the construction of our new semisubmersible, from
our existing cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities balances, and future cash flow from
operations;

* our expectations that the 60-day waiting period under our loss of hire insurance will serve as the only
deductible for the Hurricane Katrina event and that a single $10 million hull and machinery deductible
will serve as the only deductible damage to the rigs caused by Hurricane Rita;

* our estimates of the damage to certain of our rigs as a result of Hurricanes Katrina and Rita and costs to
repair, and our belief that we will be able to recover certain of the costs to remediate the damage from
underwriters;

»  our expectation that we will fund the costs we incur associated with remediating the rigs damaged by
Hurricanes Katrina and Rita, to the extent they are not recovered from the insurance underwriters, from
our existing cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities balances, and future cash flow from
operations;

* our expectation that the downtime for various rig repairs and possible permanent loss of two of these
rigs will have an adverse effect on our results of operations in future periods;

* our estimate of the length of time the GSF High Island Il and GSF High Island IV will be out of service
as a result of damage from Hurricane Rita;




our expectation that the GSF High Island 111 and the GSF Adriatic VII will either be out of service for
two years for repairs or will be declared constructive total losses and permanently removed from service
as a result of damage from Hurricane Rita and our estimate of the time by which that determination will
be made;

our estimation of the expected delay in commencement of initial operations of the GSF Development
Driller I due to thruster defects, damage from Hurricane Katrina and repair of the riser;

our estimate of the total after tax negative impact on our net income for 2005 as a result of damage
inflicted by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita;

our expectation that the damage inflicted by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita will not have a material impact
to our financial position in 2006;

our contract drilling and drilling management services revenue backlogs and the amounts expected to be
realized in 2006;

i

our estimate of undiscounted future cash flows relating to the determination of impairment of rigs and
drilling equipment; '

the expected outcomes of legal and administrative proceedings, their materiality, potential insurance
coverage and their expected effects on our financial position and results of operations;

the assumptions as to risk-free interest rates, stock volatility, dividend yield and expected lives of
awards used to estimate the fair value of stock-based compensation awards;

the return assumptions developed by our consultants in determining expected long-term rate of return on
pension plan assets assumption;

our expectations regarding future conditions in various geographic markets in which we operate and the
prospects for future work, contract terms and dayrates in those markets;

our expectations regarding equipment supply and demand in various geographic markets:

our expectations regarding the impact of the entry into service of new rigs under construction, and rigs
being upgraded or reactivated;

our expectation that further new rig construction announcements are likely and that additional existing
rigs will be reactivated; -

estimated costs in 2005 for drilling management services;

our use of critical accounting estimates and the assumptions and estimates made by management during
the preparation of our financial statements;

our estimated capital expenditures in 2006;
our future contractual dbligations;

our estimate of the effect of the adoption of SFAS 123R on our net income in 2006 and our expectation
that the adoption will not have a material impact on our consolidated cash flows or financial position;

our expectation that we will fund various commitments, primarily related to our debt and capital lease
obligations, leases for office space and other property and equipment, as well as the construction of our
new ultra-deepwater semisubmersible drilling rig, with existing cash, cash equivalents, marketable
securities and future cash flows from operations;

our expectation that our effective tax rate will continue to fluctuate from year to year as our operations
are conducted in different taxing jurisdictions;

our ability to meet all of our current obligations, including working capital requirements, capital
expenditures, total lease obligations, construction and development expenses, and debt service, from our
existing cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities balances and future cash flow from operations;

4




our expectation that, if required, any additional payments made under certain fully defeased financing
leases would not be material to our financial position, results of operations or cash flows in any given
year;

our belief that our exposure to interest rate fluctuations as a result of fixed-for-floating interest rate
swaps is not material to our financial position, results of operations or cash flows;

our belief that credit risk in our commercial paper, U.S. Treasury Notes, money-market funds and
Eurodollar time deposits with a variety of financial institutions with strong credit ratings is minimal;

our possible election to change our insurance coverage and our belief that such changes in coverage
could effectively increase the amount of risk against which we are not insured;

our belief that we may experience instability in the world’s insurance market as a result of the

* catastrophic damage to the oil and gas industry infrastructure in the Gulf of Mexico brought about by

Hurricanes Katrina and Rita, and resulting insurance claims;

our estimation that the Minerals Management Service of the U.S. Department of Interior or Insurance
Underwriters, or both, may impose operating criteria in the Gulf of Mexico that could increase the
capital cost or cost of operations or reduce the area of operations for rigs operating there, which could
materially and adversely affect our operations and financial condition; '

our ability to maintain adequate insurance at rates we consider reasonable and our ability to obtain
insurance against certain risks; and

any other statements that are not historical facts.

Our forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this report and are based on currently available
industry, financial, and economic data and our operating plans. They are also inherently uncertain, and investors
must recognize that events could turn out to be materially different from our expectations.

Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to:

*

higher than anticipated accruals for performance-based compensation due to better than anticipated
performance, higher than anticipated severance expenses due to unanticipated employee terminations,
higher than anticipated legal and accounting tees due to unanticipated financing or other corporate
transactions, and other factors that could increase G& A expenses;

a material or extended decline in expenditures by the oil and gas industry, which is significantly affected
by indications and expectations regarding the level and volatility of oil and natural gas prices, which in
turn are affected by such things as political, economic and weather conditions affecting or potentially
affecting regional or worldwide demand for oil and natural gas, actions or anticipated actions by OPEC,
inventory level, deliverability constraints, and futures market activity;

if a competitor succeeds in enjoining us from using our dual drilling activity structure and method;
the extent to which customers and potential customers continue to pursue-ultra-deepwater drilling;

the extent to which we are required to idle rigs or to enter into lower dayrate contracts in response to
future market conditions;

exploration success or lack of exploration success by our customers and potential customers;
our ability to enter into and the terms of future drilling contracts;

the entry into service of newly constructed, upgraded or reactivated rigs;

our ability to win bids for turnkey drilling operations;

rig availability and our ability to hire suitable rigs at acceptable rates;

our ability to retain and attract qualified personnel;




the availability of adequate insurance at a reasonable cost;
the occurrence of an uninsured or unidentified event;

the implementation of additional operational reQuirements in the Gulf of Mexico by governmental
agencies or insurers;

the risks of failing to complete a well or wells under turnkey contracts;
other risks inherent in turnkey contracts; '

our failure to retain the business of one or more;,significant customers;
the termination or renegotiation of contracts by customers;

the operating hazards inherent in drilling for oil'! and natural gas;

the risks of international operations and compliance with foreign laws;

political and other uncertainties inherent in non-U.S. operations, including exchange and currency
fluctuations and the limitations on the ability to repatriate income or capital to the U.S.;

compliance with or breach of environmental laws;

proposed United States tax law changes or other changes in the tax laws or regulations of the U.S. or
another country or changes in tax treaties;

limitations on our ability to use our U.S. tax net operating loss carryforwards;

changes in employee demographics that impact the estimated remaining service lives of the active
participants in our pension plans;

the impact of governmental laws and regulations and the uncertainties involved in their administration,
particularly-in some foreign jurisdictions;

the highly competitive and cyclical nature of our business, with periods of low demand and excess rig
availability;

the level of construction of new rigs, upgrade of existing rigs and reactivation of cold-stacked rigs;

the continuation or escalation of existing armed;hostilities, outbreak of war or other armed conflicts or
terrorist attacks; ?

the effect of SARS or other public health threats on our international operations;
political or social disruptions that limit oil and/or gas production;

the actions of our competitors in the oil and gas-drilling industry, which could significantly influence rig
dayrates and utilization;

delays or cost overruns in our rig upgrade, refurbishment and construction projects, including
remediation of thruster defects, hurricane damage and riser problems, caused by such things as
shortages of materials or skilled labor, unforeseen engineering problems, unanticipated actual or
purported change orders, work stoppages, shipyard financial or operating difficulties, adverse weather
conditions or natural disasters, unanticipated cost increases, and the inability to obtain requisite permits
or approvals;

the ultimate insurance recoveries for damages caused by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita;
the discoveries of additional damage to the rigs impacted by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita;

the unforeseen startup problems inherent in commencing operations with any new rig, including such
things as engineering, permitting, crewing and equipment problems;

the occurrence or nonoccurrence of anticipated changes in our revenue mix between domestic and
international drilling markets due to changes in our customers’ oil and gas drilling plans, which can be
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the result of such things as changes in regional or worldwide economic conditions and fluctuations in
the prices of oil and natural gas, which in turn could change or stabilize effective tax rates;

« the vagaries of the legislative process due to the unpredictable nature of politics and national and world
events, among other things;

» currently unknown rig repair needs and/or additional opportunities to accelerate planned maintenance
expenditures due to presently unanticipated rig downtime;

» changes in oil and natural gas drilling technology or in our competitors’ drilling rig fleets that could
make our drilling rigs less competitive or require major capital investments to keep thern competitive;

» the adequacy of sources of liquidity;

» the incurrence of secured debt or additional unsecured indebtedness or other obligations by us or our
subsidiaries;

» the uncertainties inherent in dealing with financial and other third-party institutions that could have
internal weaknesses unknown to us;

* changes in accepted interpretations of accounting guidelines and other accounting pronouncements;

» the number and severity of future litigation claims, including asbestos-related claims, and the
sufficiency of insurance; '

» the effects and uncertainties of legal and administrative proceedings and other contingencies; and

» such other factors as may be discussed in this report in “Item 1A. Risk Factors” section and elsewhere,
and in our other reports filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

You should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. Each forward-looking statement
speaks only as of the date of the particular statement, and we disclaim any obligation or undertaking to
disseminate any updates or revisions to our statements, forward-looking or otherwise, to reflect changes in
our expectations or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statements are
based.




PARTI

ITEMS 1. AND 2. BUSINESS AND PROPERTIES .

GlobalSantaFe Corporation is an offshore oil and gas drilling contractor, owning or operating a fleet of 61
marine drilling rigs. As of February 28, 2006, our fleet included 45 cantilevered jackup rigs, 11 semisubmersible
rigs, three drillships, and two additional semisubmersible rigs we operate for third parties under a joint venture
agreement (see “Joint Venture, Agency and Sponsorship Relationships and Other Investments”). Included in
these fleet amounts are four jackup rigs and one semisubmersible rig that are currently not capable of performing
drilling operations due to damage arising as a result of hurricanes Katrina and Rita. The semisubmersible rig and
two of the jackup rigs are currently undergoing remediations while the damage to the other two jackup rigs is
currently being assessed and one or both of these rigs may be declared constructive total losses. (See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Involuntary
Conversions of Long-Lived Assets and Related Recoveries.”) We also have a contract for the construction of an
additional ultra-deepwater semisubmersible, to be named the GSF Development Driller 111, and construction is
expected to cornmence in the first quarter of 2006.

We provide offshore oil and gas contract drilling services to the oil and gas industry worldwide on a daily
rate (“dayrate”) basis. We also provide oil and gas drilling management services on either a dayrate or
completed-project, fixed-price (“turnkey”) basis, as well as drilling engineering and drilling project management
services, and we participate in oil and gas exploration and production activities. Business segment and
geographic information is set forth in'Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. We are a Cayman Islands company, with our executive offices in Houston, Texas.

Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms “w‘e ” “us” and “our” refer to GlobalSantaFe Corporation
and its consolidated subsidiaries. Substantially all of our businesses are conducted by subsidiaries of
GlobalSantaFe Corporation.

MERGER OF SANTA FE INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION AND GLOBAL MARINE INC.

On November 20, 2001, Santa Fe International Corporation (“Santa Fe International”) and Global Marine
Inc. (“Global Marine”) consummated their business combination with the merger (the “Merger”) of an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of Santa Fe International with and into Global Marine, with Global Marine surviving -
the Merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of Santa Fe International. In connection with the Merger, Santa Fe
International was renamed GlobalSantaFe Corporation. The Merger was accounted for as a purchase business
combination in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. As the
stockholders of Global Marine owned slightly over 50%. of GlobalSantaFe Corporation after the Merger and
filled the majority of senior management positions, Global Marine was considered the acquiring entity for
accounting purposes. ‘

CONTRACT DRILLING

Substantially all of our domestic offshore contract drilling operations are conducted by GlobalSantaFe
Drilling Company, a wholly owned subsidiary headquartered in Houston, Texas. International offshore contract
drilling operations are conducted by a number of our subs1d1ar1es and joint venture companies with operations in
25 countries throughout the world.

Rig Fleet. We have a modern, diversified fleet of 61 mobile offshore drilling rigs as of February 28, 2006,
including six cantilevered heavy-duty harsh environment (“HDHE”) jackups, 39 cantilevered jackups, 11
semisubmersibles, including two ultra-deepwater semisubmersibles, three ultra-deepwater, dynamically
positioned drillships, and two additional semisubmersible rigs we operate for third parties. All of our rigs, with
the exception of the GSF Britannia jackup, were placed into service in 1974 or later, and, as of February 28,
2006, the average age of the rigs in our fleet was approximately 21 years.
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Our fleet is deployed in major offshore oil and gas operating areas worldwide. The principal areas in which
the fleet is currently deployed are the U.S. Gulf of Mexico, the North Sea, West Africa, Southeast Asia, the

Middle East, the Mediterranean Sea, South America and eastern Canada.

The following table lists the rigs in our drilling fleet as of February 28, 2006, indicating the year each rig
was placed in service, each rig’s maximum water and drilling depth capabilities, as currently equipped, current

location, customer, and the date each rig is estimated to become available.

RiG FLEET
Status as of February 28, 2006

YEAR
PLACED MAXIMUM DRILLING
IN WATER DEPTH  DEPTH CURRENT ESTIMATED
SERVICE CAPABILITY CAPABILITY LOCATION CUSTOMER  AVAILABILITY(1)
Heavy-Duty Harsh
Environment Jackups
GSF Galaxyl ....... ... 1991 400 ft. 30,000 ft.  North Sea Total UK 10/07
GSF Galaxy Il .......... 1998 400 ft. 30,000 ft.  Eastern Canada ExxonMobil 12/06
GSF Galaxy IIT ......... 1999 400 ft. 30,000 ft.  North Sea Nexen 06/07
GSF Magellan .......... 1992 350 ft. 30,000 ft.  North Sea Shell 03/07
GSF Monitor ........... 1989 350 ft. 30,000 ft.  Trinidad & Tobago BP 04/09
GSF Monarch .......... 1988 350 ft. 30,000 ft.  North Sea Shell 04/07
Cantilevered Jdckups
GSF ConstellationI ... .. 2003 400 ft. 30,000 ft.  Trinidad & Tobago BP 08/07
GSF ConstellationII . . . ... 2004 400 ft. 30,000 ft.  Argentina Total 09/09
GSFBaltic............. 1983 375 ft. 25,000 ft.  West Africa Total 02/07
GSF AdraticIT ......... 1981 350 ft. 25,000 ft.  West Africa ChevronTexaco 06/07
GSF AdraticIIT ........ 1982 350 ft. 25,000 ft.  U.S. Gulf of Mexico ADTI 05/06
GSF Adriatic VII ....... 1983 350 ft. 20,000 ft.  U.S. Gulf of Mexico — 3)
GSF AdriaticIX ........ 1981 350 ft. 20,000 ft.  West Africa Total 06/08
GSF AdriaticX ......... 1982 350 ft. 25,000 ft.  Mediterranean Sea  Petrobel 11/08
GSF Key Manhattan . . . .. 1980 350 ft. 25,000 ft.  Mediterranean Sea  Petrobel 07/08
GSF Key Singapore . .... 1682 350 ft. 25,000 ft.  Mediterranean Sea  Petrobel 06/08
GSF Adnatic VI ........ 1981 328 ft. 20,000 ft.  West Africa Marathon 07/07
GSF Adriatic VIIT ... .. .. 1983 328 ft. 25,000 ft.  West Africa ExxonMobil 04/07
GSF Adrniatic I .......... 1981 300 ft, 25,000 ft.  West Africa Chevron Texaco 03/07
GSF AdriaticV ......... 1979 300 ft. 20,000 ft.  West Africa Chevron Texaco 04/07
GSF Adriatic XI ........ 1983 300 ft. 25,000 ft.  Southeast Asia Petronas Cargali 01/07
GSF Compact Driller .... 1993 300 ft. 25,000 ft.  Southeast Asia ChevronTexaco 11/07
GSF Galveston Key ..... 1978 300 ft. 25,000 ft.  Southeast Asia Cuulong JOC 04/08
GSF Key Gibraltar ...... 1976 300 ft. 25,000 ft.  Southeast Asia ChevronThailand 03/07
GSF Key Hawaii . ....... 1983 300 ft. 25,000 ft.  Middle East Dolphin Energy 12/06
GSF Labrador .......... 1983 300 ft. 25,000 ft.  North Sea Perenco 04/08
GSFMainPassI ........ 1982 300 ft. 25,000 ft.  U.S. Guilf of Mexico Chevron Texaco 08/06
GSF Main Pass IV ..., .. 1982 300 ft. 25,000 ft.  U.S. Gulf of Mexico Devon Energy 06/06
GSF Parameswara . ... ... 1993 300 ft. 25,000 ft.  Southeast Asia Total 07/08
GSFRigl34 ........... 1982 300 ft. 20,000 ft.  Southeast Asia Talisman 04/07
GSFRigl136 ........... 1982 300 ft. 25,000 ft.  Southeast Asia Total 09/07
GSF High Island 11 .. .. .. 1979 2) 20,000 ft.  U.S. Gulf of Mexico — 05/06(3)
GSF High Island IV ... .. 1980 270 ft. 20,000 ft.  U.S. Gulf of Mexico Nexen 12/06(3)
GSFHighIsland V ... ... 1981 270 ft. 20,000 ft.  West Africa Pecten Cameroon 03/07
GSF High Island T .. ... .. 1979 250 ft. 20,000 ft.  U.S. Gulf of Mexico Samson Contour 09/06
GSF High Island III .. ... 1980 250 ft. 20,000 ft.  U.S. Guif of Mexico — : 3)
GSF High Island VII . .. .. 1982 250 ft. 20,000 ft.  West Africa Total Cameroon 06/07
GSF High Island VIIT .... 1982 250 ft. 20,000 ft.  U.S. Gulf of Mexico Energy Partners Ltd. 09/06
GSF High Island IX ..... 1983 250 ft. 20,000 ft.  Middle East — 06/07
GSFRigl103 ........... 1974 250 ft. 20,000 ft.  Middle East Occidental 10/06
GSFRig105 ........... 1975 250 ft. 20,000 ft.  Middle East Petrobel 07/06
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YEAR
PLACED MAXIMUM DRILLING

IN WATER DEPTH  DEPTH CURRENT ESTIMATED
SERVICE CAPABILITY CAPABILITY LOCATION CUSTOMER AVAILABILITY(1)
GSFRigl24 ............... 1980 250 ft. 20,000 ft.  Middle East Lukoil 08/06
GSFRig127 ............... 1981 250 ft. 20,000 ft.  Middle East Occidental 06/07
GSFRigl4l ............... 1982 250 ft. 20,000 ft. ~ Middle East Suco 03/07
GSF Britannia .............. 1968 230 ft. 20,000 ft.  North Sea Shell 04/07
Semisubmersibles
GSF Development DrillerI .... 2005 7,500 ft. 37,500 ft.  U.S. Gulf of Mexico BHP 06/08(3)
GSF Development Driller II ... 2005 7,500 ft. 37,500 ft.  U.S. Guif of Mexico BP 12/08
GSFCelticSea .............. 1998 5,750 ft. 25,000 ft.  U.S. Gulf of Mexico ENI Petroleum 03/08
GSFArctic] ................ 1983 3,400 ft. 25,000 ft.  U.S. Gulf of Mexico Nexen 02/10
GSFRig135 ............... 1983 2,800 ft. 25,000 ft.  West Africa ExxonMobil 12109
GSFRig140 ............... 1983 2,400 ft. 25,000 ft.  North Sea British Gas 04/09
GSF AleutianKey ........... 1976 2,300 ft. 25,000 ft.  Trinidad & Tobago EOG 07/08
GSF ArcticlII .............. 1984 1,800 ft. 25,000 ft. ~ North Sea Shell 12/07
GSF ArcticIV .............. 1983 1,500 ft. 25,000 ft.  North Sea BP 07/10
GSF Grand Banks ........... 1984 1,500 ft. 25,000 ft.  Eastern Canada Husky 02/09
GSF ArcticIl ............ ... 1982 1,200 ft. 25,000 ft.  North Sea Paladin 04/07
Drillships 1
GSFCR.Luigs ............. 2000 10,000 ft. 35,000 ft.  U.S. Gulf of Mexico BHP 04/09
GSFJackRyan.............. 2000 10,000 ft. 35,000 ft.  West Africa BP Angola 03/09
GSF Explorer ............... 1998 7.800 ft. 30,000 ft.  U.S. Gulf of Mexico BP 04/09
Third-Party Owned
Semisubmersibles ‘ .
Dada Gorgud ............... 1980 1,558 ft. 25,000 ft.  Azerbaijan BP 01/08
Istiglal .................... 1991 1,558 ft. 25,000 ft.  Azerbaijan BP 01/08

(1) Estimated based on the anticipated completion date of current commitments, including executed contracts, letters of intent, and other
customer commitments for which contracts have not yet been executed.

(2) Damage occurred to the legs of the rig during Hurricane Rita. Until such time as the damaged leg sections can be replaced, we anticipate
a temporary reduction in rated water depth of the rig to the 200' to 225' range from the previous 270' water depth, We anticipate it will
take approximately seven months to obtain replacement leg sections.

(3) These rigs sustained damage during hurricanes Katrina and Rita. Evaluations are still ongoing for the GSF High Isiand 1l and the GSF
Adriatic VI to determine if they will be repaired or declared total constructive losses. The GSF High Island Il and the GSF High Island
1V are expected to resume drilling operations in the second quarter of 2006. The GSF Development Driller I is expected to begin
operations in the second quarter of 2006.

During the first quarter of 2004, we retired the drillship Glomar Robert F. Bauer from active service. As a
result, we accelerated the remaining depreciation on this rig, which resulted in a $1.5 million charge to
depreciation expense in the first quarter of 2004. As a result of continued improvements in the offshore drilling
markets, we sold this rig in the fourth quarter of 2005 for $25 million and recorded a net gain of $23.5 million.
There was no tax impact related to this transaction. K

On May 21, 2004, we completed the sale of our land drilling business to Precision Drilling Corporation for a
total sales price of $316.5 million in an all-cash transaction. Our land drilling business consisted of a fleet of 31
rigs, 12 of which were locaied in Kuwait, eight in Venezuela, four in Saudi Arabia, four in Egypt and three in
Oman. For further information, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations—Operating Results—Sale of Land Drilling Fleet (Discontinued Operations).”

Rig Types. Jackup rigs have elevating legs which extend to the sea bottom, providing a stable platform for
drilling, and are generally preferred in water depths of 400 feet or less. All of our jackup rigs have drilling
equipment mounted on cantilevers, which allow the equipment to extend outward from the rigs’ hulls over fixed
drilling platforms and enable operators to drill both exploratory and development wells. In addition, seven of our
jackups have been equipped with skid-off packages, which allow the drilling equipment to be transferred to fixed
production platforms.

1
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We own one of the world’s largest fleets of HDHE jackup rigs. Three of our HDHE rigs, the GSF Galaxy I,
GSF Galaxy Il and GSF Galaxy 111, are Universe class rig designs capable of operating in water depths up to 400
feet and are currently qualified to operate year-round in the harsh environment of the central North Sea in water
depths of up to 360 feet. Our three other HDHE jackup rigs, the GSF Monarch, GSF Monitor and GSF Magellan,
are Monarch class rig designs capable of operating in water depths of up to 350 feet. These rigs are capable of
operating year-round in the central North Sea in water depths of up to 300 feet.

Semisubmersible rigs are floating offshore drilling units with pontoons and columns that, when flooded with
water, cause the unit to partially submerge to a predetermined depth. Most semisubmersibles are anchored to the
sea bottom, but some use dynamic positioning (“DP”), which allows the vessels to be held in position by
computer-controlled propellers, known as thrusters. Semisubmersibles are classified into five generations,
distinguished mainly by their age, environmental rating, variable deck load and water-depth capability. The GSF
Aleutian Key is an upgraded second-generation conventionally moored semisubmersible capable of drilling in
water depths up to 2,300 feet. The GSF Arctic I, GSF Arctic I, GSF Arctic HI, GSF Arctic IV, GSF Grand
Banks, GSF Rig 135 and GSF Rig 140 semisubmersibles are third-generation, conventionally moored rigs
suitable for drilling in water depths ranging from 1,200 to 3,400 feet. The GSF Celtic Sea, which utilizes a
mooring system that is DP-assisted, is a fourth-generation semisubmersible capable of drilling in water depths of
up to 5,750 feet. The fifth-generation ultra-deepwater semisubmersibles GSF Development Driller I and GSF
Development Driller 11 utilize a system that offers either conventional mooring or DP and are capable of drilling
in water depths of up to 7,500 feet.

Our “deepwater” rigs consist of our semisubmersibles and drillships. We consider rigs with a maximum
water-depth capability of 7,500 feet or more, such as the semisubmersibles GSF Development Driller I and GSF
Development Driller II and the drillships GSF C.R. Luigs, GSF Jack Ryan and GSF Explorer, to be “ultra-
deepwater” rigs.

The GSF C.R. Luigs, GSF Jack Ryan and GSF Explorer are dynamically positioned, ultra-deepwater
driliships capable of drilling in water depths up to 10,000 feet, 10,000 feet and 7,800 feet, respectively, as
currently equipped. With modifications, maximum water depth capabilities would be 12,000 feet for the GSF
C.R. Luigs and GSF Jack Ryan, and 10,000 feet for the GSF Explorer. Drillships are generally preferred for
deepwater drilling in remote locations w1th moderate weather environments because of their mobility and large
load carrying capability.

We own all of the drilling rigs in our fleet in the table above excluding those specifically described as being
owned by third parties, the GSF Explorer, which is subject to a capital lease with a remaining term of 21 years, and
the GSF C.R. Luigs and GSF Jack Ryan, which are subject to fully defeased capital leases, each with a remaining
term of 15 years. None of our offshore drilling rigs is currently subject to any outstanding liens or mortgages.

In January 2003, in order to take advantage of an attractive financing structure, we entered into a lease-
leaseback arrangement with a European bank related to the GSF Britannia cantilevered jackup. Pursuant to this
arrangement, we leased the GSF Britannia to the bank, which then leased the rig back to us, each lease being for
a five-year term. We have classified this arrangement as a capital lease.

In the first quarter of 2006 we entered into a contract with Keppel FELS, a shipyard located in Singapore, for
construction of a new ultra-deepwater semisubmersible, to be named the GSF Development Driller I11. Construction-
costs, excluding capital spares, startup costs, capitalized interest, customer-required modifications and mobilization
costs, are estimated to total approximately $590 million, with construction commencing in the first quarter of 2006
and delivery currently expected during the first quarter 2009. In the first quarter of 2006 we made an initial shipyard
progress payment of $53 million. We anticipate funding construction through our existing cash, cash equivalents
and marketable securities balances and future cash flow from operations. We have entered into a letter of intent with
a major oil and gas company for a seven-year contract for the rig, providing for expected revenues of approximately
$1 billion, and expect to firalize a drilling contract in the first quarter of 2006.
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Backlog. Our contract drilling backlog at December 31, 2005, was $4.8 billion, consisting of $3.8 billion
related to executed contracts and $1.0 billion related to customer commitments for which contracts had not yet
been executed as of February 28, 2006. Approximately $1.9 billion of the backlog is expected to be realized in -
2006. Our contract drilling backlog at December 31, 2004 was $1.7 billion.

Drilling Contracts and Major Customers. Contracts to employ our crewed drilling rigs extend over a
specified period of time or the time required to drill a specified well or number of wells. While the final contract
for employment of a rig is the result of negotiations between us and the customer, most contracts are awarded
based upon competitive bidding. For a discussion of competitive conditions, see “Item 1A. Risk Factors—The
Intense Price Competition and Cyclicality of the Drilling Industry, Which is Marked by Periods of Low Demand,
Excess Rig Availability and Low Dayrates, Could Have a Material Adverse Effect on Our Revenues and
Profitability.” The rates specified in drilling contracts are generally on a dayrate basis and vary depending upon
the type of rig employed, equipment and services supplied, geographic location, term of the contract, competitive
conditions at the time of negotiations and other variables. Each contract provides for a basic dayrate during
drilling operations, and may include performance premitims or lower rates or no payment for periods of
equipment breakdown, adverse weather or other conditions which may be beyond our control. When a rig
mobilizes to or demobilizes from an operating area, a contract may provide for different dayrates, specified fixed
amounts or no payment during the mobilization or demobilization. Our ability to obtain favorable contract terms
and conditions is dependent on market conditions. We are generally able to avoid contract language allowing
termination at the convenience of our customers in longer term contracts, and in the current period of high
demand none of our contracts allow such termination without the imposition of significant penalties, generally
equal to the full dayrate for all of the remaining term or a substantial percentage of it. Such payments may,
however, not fully compensate us for the loss of the contract. Contracts may also terminate for other reasons. See
“Ttem L A. Risk Factors—We May Suffer Losses if our Customers Terminate or Seek to Renegotiate their
Contracts.”

Our business is subject to the usual risks associated with having a limited number of customers for our
services. One customer accounted for more than 10% of consolidated revenues in 2005: BP provided $261.0
million of contract drilling revenues and $1.2 million of 0il and gas revenues. One customer accounted for more
than 10% of consolidated revenues in 2004: Total S.A. (*“Total”’) provided $186.0 million of contract drilling
revenues. Two customers each accounted for more than 10% of consolidated revenues in 2003: Total provided
$234.2 million of contract drilling revenues, and ExxonMaobil provided $231.6 million of contract drilling
revenues. Our results of operations could suffer a material adverse effect if any of our major customers
terminates its contracts with us, fails to renew our existing contracts or refuses to award new contracts to us. See
“Item 1A. Risk Factors—We Rely Heavily on a Small Number of Customers and the Loss of a Significant
Customer Could Have a Material Adverse Impact on Our Financial Results.”

DRILLING MANAGEMENT SERVICES

We provide drilling management services primarily on a turnkey basis through a wholly owned subsidiary,
Applied Drilling Technology Inc. (*“ADTI”), and through ADT International, a division of one of our U.K.
subsidiaries. ADTI operates primarily in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico, and ADT International operates primarily in
the North Sea. Under a typical turnkey arrangement, we will assume responsibility for the design and execution
of a well and deliver a logged or cased hole to an agreed depth for a guaranteed price, with payment contingent
upon satisfactory completion of the drilling program. As.part of our turnkey drilling services, we provide
planning, engineering and management services beyond the scope of our traditional contract drilling business and
thereby assume greater risk. In addition to turnkey arrangements, drilling management services also participates
in project management operations. In our project management operations we provide certain planning,
management and engineering sérvices, purchase equipment and provide personnel and other logistical services to
customers. Our project management services differ from turnkey drilling services in that the customer retains
control of the drilling operations and thus retains the risk associated with the project.
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Our drilling management services business is also subject to the usual risks associated with having a limited
number of customers for its services. In 2005, one customer, Lundin Petroleum, accounted for $97.5 million, or
16.5%, of drilling management services revenues. Two customers each accounted for more than 10% of drilling
management services revenues in 2004: William G. Helis Company, LLC provided $60.6 million, or 11.4%, of
drilling management services revenues, and Lundin Britain Limited provided $56.6 million, or 10.7%, of drilling
management services revenues. In 2003, one customer, BG Group, accounted for $98.9 million, or 18.7%, of
drilling management services revenues. These revenues were for project management operations in the North Sea
in 2003, substantially all of which were reimbursable revenues. Reimbursable revenues represent reimbursements
received from the client for certain out-of-pocket expenses and have little or no effect on operating income. No
turnkey drilling customer accounted for more than 10% of drilling management services revenues for 2003. See
“Item 1A. Risk Factors—We Rely Heavily on a Small Number of Customers and the Loss of a Significant
Customer Could Have a Material Adverse Impact on Our Financial Results.”

As of December 31, 2005, our drilling management services revenue backlog was an estimated $23.5
million, all of which is expected to be realized in 2006. Our drilling management services backlog was an
estimated $29.0 million at December 31, 2004.

OIL AND GAS OPERATIONS

We conduct oil and gas exploration, development and production activities through our oil and gas division.
We acquire interests in oil and gas properties principally in order to facilitate the awarding of turnkey contracts
for our drilling management services operations. In this capacity, we facilitated the award of 32 projects (24
turnkey wells and 8 well completions) in 2005. We participated in 17 of the 24 turnkey wells, of which 9 were
successful. Our oil and gas activities are conducted primarily in the United States offshore Louisiana and Texas
and in the U.K. sector of the North Sea.

In December 2003, we participated in a drilling project in West Africa off the coast of Mauritania. We sold
our interest in this project for approximately $6.1 million and recorded a gain of $2.7 million ($2.0 million net of
taxes) in connection with this sale in the first quarter of 2004, In September 2004, we completed the sale of 50%
of our interest in the Broom Field, a development project in the North Sea. We received net proceeds of $35.9
million and recorded a gain of $25.1 million ($13.3 million net of taxes) in connection with this sale. We retained
an eight percent working interest in this project. Pursuant to the terms of the sale, if commodity prices exceeded a
specified amount, we were also entitled to additional post-closing consideration equal to a portion of the
proceeds from the production attributable to this interest sold through September 2005. In 2005, we recorded an
additional gain associated with this deferred consideration arrangement of $4.5 million ($2.7 million net of
taxes), which represents the entire deferred consideration earned under the sales agreement.

JOINT VENTURE, AGENCY AND SPONSORSHIP RELATIONSHIPS AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

In some areas of the world, local customs and practice or governmental requirements necessitate the
formation of joint ventures with local participation, which we may or may not control. We are an active
participant in several joint venture drilling companies, principally in Azerbaijan, Indonesia, Malaysia, Angola
and Nigeria.

In Azerbaijan, the semisubmersibles Istiglal and Dada Gorgud operate under long-term bareboat charters
between Caspian Drilling Company Limited (“CDC”), a joint venture in which we hold a 45% ownership
interest, and the owner of both rigs, the State Oil Company of the Azerbaijan republic (“SOCAR”), our sole
equity partner in CDC. SOCAR has granted exclusive bareboat charter rights to CDC for the life of the joint
venture. During 2005, these bareboat charter rights were extended through October 2011, pursuant to an
amendment to the agreement establishing CDC.

We also participate in a joint venture that operates a petroleum supply base in Indonesia. The Indonesian
supply base, in which we hold a 42% ownership interest, is located at Merak Point on the western portion of the
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island of Java. It provides both open and covered storage and bulk chemical trans-shipment facilities. The land
lease for this supply base extends through 2030. The joint venture has been offering this supply base for sale and
in October 2005 the joint venture entered into an agreement with a third party to sell the entity holding the lease
for the supply base. Completion of the sale is expected during the second quarter of 2006. The sale is not
expected to have a material impact on our financial statements.

Local laws or customs in some areas of the world dlso effectively mandate establishment of a relationship
with a local agent or sponsor. When appropriate in these areas, we enter into agency or sponsorship agreements.

EMPLOYEES

We had approximately 5,700 employees worldwide at December 31, 2005, excluding approximately 1,800
employees contracted through contract labor providers. We require highly skilled personnel to operate our
drilling rigs and, accordingly, conduct extensive personnel training and safety programs. Approximately 200 of
our local employees in Nigeria and 300 of our local employees in Trinidad are represented by labor unions.
Through our membership in the U.K. Drilling Contractors Association, we have also entered into a recognition
agreement with a union that covers approximately 850 of our 1000 employees in the North Sea.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The name, age as of December 31, 2005, and office or offices currently held by each of our executive
officers are as follows:

Name Age  Office or Offices

Jon A.Marshall ........... . 54 President and Chief Executive Officer

W.MattRalls ............ 56 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
Michael R. Dawson . ....... 52 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
RogerB.Hunt ............ 56  Senior Vice President, Marketing

James L. McCulloch . ...... 53 Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Cheryl D.Richard ......... 49  Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Marion M. Woolie ........ 51 Senior Vice President, Operations

R. Blake Simmons ........ 47  President of Applied Drilling Technology Inc.

Robert L. Herrin, Jr. ....... 47  Vice President and Controller

Officers serve for a one-year term or until their successors are elected and qualified to serve. Each executive
officer’s principal occupation has been as one of our executive officers or as an executive officer of one of our
predecessors, Santa Fe International or Global Marine, for more than the past five years, with the exception of
Ms. Richard, Mr. Simmons, and Mr. Herrin. Ms. Richard has been our Senior Vice President, Human Resources
since 2003. Prior to joining our organization, Ms. Richard was Vice President, Human Resources, with Chevron
Phillips Chemical Company from 2000 to 2003, prior to which she served in a variety of positions with Phillips
Petroleun Company (now ConocoPhillips), including operational, commercial and international positions.

Mr. Simmons has been President of Applied Drilling Technology Inc. since 2003. Previously he served as
Regional Vice President of GlobalSantaFe Drilling U.K. Limited. (“GSFDUKL”) from 2001 to 2003, prior to
which he served as President and Managing Director of ‘Global Marine UK Limited (now GSFDUKL) from 2000
to 2001. He was GlobalSantaFe Drilling Company’s Vice President, Sales and Contracts from 1998 to 2000.

Mr. Herrin has been Vice President and Controller since 2005. He previously served as Vice President of Internal
Audit from 2002 to 2005, prior to which he served as Director of Audit from 1997 to 2002. He joined the internal
audit department in 1989 and served as an Audit manager from 1990 until 1997.

Mr. Ralls was promoted to Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer in 2005. Mr. Ralls
previously served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from 1999 to 2005. Mr. Dawson was

promoted to Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in 2005. He previously served as Vice President
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and Controller from 2003 to 2005 and Vice President and Treasurer from 2001 to 2003, prior to which he was
Vice President, Investor Relations and Corporate Communications.

OTHER

For a discussion of the effects of environmental regulation, see “Item 1A. Risk Factors—Laws and
Governmental Regulations May Add to Costs or Limit Drilling Activity.” and “—Governmental Regulations and
Environmental Matters Could Significantly Affect Our Operations and Environmental Liabilities Could Have an
Adverse Effect on Us.” We have made and will continue to make expenditures to comply with environmental
requirements. To date we have not expended material amounts in order to comply and we do not believe that our
compliance with such requirements will have a material adverse effect upon our results of operations or
competitive position or materially increase our capital expenditures.

For a discussion of the risks associated with our foreign operations, see “Item 1A. Risk Factors—Our
International Operations Involve Additional Risks Not Generally Associated With Our Domestic Operations,
Which Could Have a Material Adverse Effect on Our Operations or Financial Results.” and “—We May Suffer
Losses as a Result of Foreign Exchange Restrictions, Foreign Currency Fluctuations, and Limitations on the
Ability to Repatriate Income or Capital to the U.S.”
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS )
Risk Factors

A MATERIAL OR EXTENDED DECLINE IN EXPENDITURES BY THE OIL AND GAS INDUSTRY, DUE TO A DECLINE
OR VOLATILITY IN OIL AND GAS PRICES, A DECREASE IN DEMAND FOR OIL AND GAS OR OTHER FACTORS,
CouLD SIGNIFICANTLY REDUCE OUR REVENUE AND INCOME.

Our business depends on the level of offshore oil and natural gas exploration, development and production
activity in markets worldwide. Prices and demand for oil and natural gas, and market expectations of potential
changes in demand and prices, significantly affect this level of activity. Worldwide military, political and
economic events have contributed to oil and natural gas price volatility and are likely to continue to do so in the
future. Numerous factors may affect oil and natural gas prices and, accordingly, the level of demand for our
services, including: '

+ worldwide demand for oil and natural gas;

e the ability of the Orgaflization of Petroleum Exporting Countries, or OPEC, to set and maintain
production levels and pricing; ’

» thelevel of productio@ by non-OPEC countries;
« changes in supply and demand resulting from the development of liquefied natural gas markets;

+ the worldwide military or political environment, including uncertainty or instability resulting from the
situation in Iraq or other armed hostilities in the Middle East or other geographic areas in which we
operate, or further acts of terrorism in the Uniteg States or elsewhere;

* labor, political or other disruptions that limit exploration, development and production in oil-producing
countries; '

+ domestic and foreign tax policy;

* laws and governmental regulations that restrict exploration and development of oil and natural gas in
various jurisdictions;

« advances in exploration and development technology that may affect the marketability of our rigs; and

« further consolidation of our customer base.

Depending on the market prices of oil and natural gas, companies exploring for oil and gas may cancel or
curtail their drilling programs, thereby reducing demand for drilling services. Even during periods of high prices
for oil and natural gas, companies exploring for oil and gas may cancel or curtail programs, or reduce their levels
of capital expenditures for exploration and production for a variety of reasons. Any reduction in the demand for

drilling services may materially erode dayrates and utilization rates for our rigs and adversely affect our financial
results. ‘ 1

THE INTENSE PRICE COMPETITION AND CYCLICALITY OF THE DRILLING INDUSTRY, WHICH IS MARKED BY
PERIODS OF Low DEMAND, EXCESS R1G AVAILABILITY AND Low DAYRATES, COULD HAVE A MATERIAL
ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR REVENUES AND PROFITABILITY.

The contract drilling business is highly competitive with numerous industry participants. The industry has
experienced consolidation in reecent years and may experience additional consolidation. Mergers among oil and
natural gas exploration and production companies have reduced the number of available customers.

Drilling contracts are, for the most part, awarded on.a competitive bid basis. Price competition is often the
primary factor in determining which qualified contractor is awarded a job, although rig availability and the
quality and technical capability of service and equipment are also factors. We compete with numerous offshore
drilling contractors, one of which is larger and has greater resources than us. Further, our business is subject to
the risks associated with having a limited number of customers for our services.
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We may be required to idle rigs or to enter into lower dayrate contracts in response to market conditions in
the future. The industry in which we operate historically has been cyclical, marked by periods of low demand,
excess rig supply and low dayrates, followed by periods of high demand, short rig supply and increasing
dayrates. During prior periods of high utilization and dayrates, industry participants have increased the supply of
rigs by ordering the construction of new units. This has often created an oversupply of drilling units and has
caused a decline in utilization and dayrates when the rigs enter the market, sometimes for extended periods of
time as rigs were absorbed into the active fleet. Orders for construction of as many as.52 jackup rigs have been
announced with delivery dates ranging from 2006 to 2009. All of these units are cantilevered units and are
considered to be premium units. In the ultra-deepwater sector, there have been announcements of as many as 16
new high-specification semisubmersible rigs, including our GSF Development Driller I11, four ultra-deepwater
drillships and the upgrade of as many as four other semisubmersibles to ultra-deepwater units, with delivery _
forecast to occur from the first quarter of 2007 through 2010. A number of the contracts for units currently under
construction provide for options for the construction of additional units and we believe further new construction
announcements are likely for all classes of rigs pursuant to the exercise of one or more of these options and
otherwise. In addition, we expect that a number of our competitors’ jackups and mid-water depth
semisubmersibles that are currently “cold-stacked” (i.e. minimally crewed with little or no scheduled
maintenance being performed) will continue to reenter the market. The entry into service of newly constructed,
upgraded or reactivated units will increase supply and could curtail a further strengthening of dayrates, or reduce
them, in the affected markets or result in a softening of the affected markets as rigs are absorbed into the active
fleet. Any further increase in construction of new drilling units may exacerbate the negative impacts on
utilization and dayrates. Lower utilization and dayrates in one or more of the regions in which we operate could
adversely affect our revenues and profitability. Prolonged periods of low utilization and dayrates could also result
in the recognition of impairment charges on certain of our drilling rigs or our goodwill balance if future cash
flow estimates, based upon information available to management at the time, indicate that the carrying value of
these assets may not be recoverable.

CONTINUING WORLD TENSIONS, INCLUDING AS THE RESULT OF WARS, OTHER ARMED CONFLICTS AND
TERRORIST ATTACKS, COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR BUSINESS.

Continuing world tensions, including those relating to the Middle East and North Korea, as well as terrorist
attacks in various locations and related unrest, have significantly increased worldwide political and economic
instability, including as it relates to the exploration for and production of oil and gas. The continuation or
escalation of existing armed hostilities or the outbreak of additional hostilities as a consequence of further acts of
terrorism or otherwise, could cause a downturn in the economies of the United States and other countries. A
lower level of economic activity could result in a decline in energy consumption or an increase in the volatility of
energy prices, either of which could adversely affect dayrates or utilization, and accordingly our results of
operations and future prospects. In addition, our operations in the Middle East could be directly adversely
affected by post-war conditions in Iraq to the extent armed hostilities, acts of terrorism or other unrest persist.
Acts of terrorism and threats of armed conflicts elsewhere in the Middle East and in or around various other areas
in which we operate, such as Southeast Asia and West Africa, could also directly limit or disrupt our markets and
operations through the evacuation of personnel, cancellation of drilling contracts, or loss of personnel or assets.
Accordingly, our business could be materially adversely affected by the continuation of existing armed conflicts
or future armed conflicts or acts of terrorism and any resulting instability, either as a result of the adverse effect
of these events on the oil and gas industry or the direct impact on our operations and assets.

Terrorism and world tensions have also caused instability in some of the world’s insurance and financial
markets. Immediately following the events of September 11, 2001, our war risk and terrorist insurance
underwriters canceled those coverages in accordance with the terms of the policies and would only reinstate them
for significantly higher premiums. We have reinstated and currently maintain war and terrorism coverage for
physical damage to our entire fleet. Such war and terrorism coverage is generally cancelable by underwriters on
forty-eight hours’ notice, and, accordingly, following any future acts of terrorism or armed conflicts in and
around the various areas in which we operate, underwriters could cancel this coverage completely or cancel and
then offer to reinstate on terms that may not be acceptable to us. We may not have insurance to cover any or all
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of our liabilities to our personnel for death or injury caused by terrorist acts. These developments will subject our
worldwide operations to increased risks and, depending on their magnitude, could have a material adverse effect
on our business.

United States Government regulations effectively preclude us from actively engaging in business activities
in certain countries, including oil-producing countries such as Iran. These regulations could be amended to cover
countries where we currently operate or where we may wish to operate in the future.

A COoMPETITOR HOLDS PATENTS THAT COULD PREVENT THE USE OF CERTAIN ASPECTS OF THE DUAL-
DRILLING CAPABILITIES OF OUR Two NEW-BUILD ULTRA-DEEPWATER SEMISUBMERSIBLES AND OUR NEwW-
BUILD ULTRA-DEEPWATER SEMISUBMERSIBLE TO BE CONSTRUCTED, WHICH COULD RESTRICT OUR ABILITY TO
MARKET THESE RIGS OR REDUCE THE LEVEL OF REVENUES THAT THESE R1GS CoOULD GENERATE.

A competitor holds patents in the U.S. and many other jurisdictions regarding the drilling structure and the
dual drilling activity method associated with dual drilling activity. We and two of our subsidiaries are defendants
in an action in the U.S. which seeks damages and an injunction preventing the use by us of the dual drilling
activity structure and method in the U.S. (see “Item 3. Legal Proceedings”). If granted, this injunction would
preclude the use of certain of the dual drilling capabilities in U.S. waters of the GSF Development Driller I, the
GSF Development Driller I, and the GSF Development Driller I1I, which could reduce the marketability of the
rigs, reduce the dayrate under their current contracts and restrict the dayrate they might otherwise earn in the
future. The competitor has patents in most other jurisdictions in which we might choose to market the three
semisubmersibles and, if it brought and was successful in similar actions in those jurisdictions, could restrict our
ability to use the dual drilling activity structure and method in those jurisdictions as well. The competitor was
awarded a partial summary judgment on the issue of whether the “apparatus™ fell within the scope of its patents,
an issue we did not contest. We believe that the focus of the lawsuit is on the validity and enforceability of the
patents and believe that the lawsuit is without merit and intend to vigorously defend it. We do not expect that the
matter will have a material adverse effect on our business or financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

CERTAIN OF OUR SUBSIDIARIES ARE SUBJECT TO LITIGATION THAT, IF NOT RESOLVED IN QOUR FAVOR AND NOT
SUFFICIENTLY INSURED AGAINST, COULD HAVE AN ADVERSE EFFECT ON Us.

We and our subsidiaries are subject to a variety of litigation and may be sued in additional cases. We cannot
predict the outcome of these cases or the potential costs to resolve them. In addition, we cannot assure you that
insurance will be applicable and sufficient in all cases. Certain of our subsidiaries are named as defendants in
numerous lawsuits alleging personal injury as a result of'exposure to asbestos, and one subsidiary has filed suit
against its insurance underwriters seeking a declaration as to its rights to insurance coverage and the proper
allocation among its insurers of liability for claims payments in order to assist in the future management and
disposition of these claims. The subsidiary is continuing to receive payment from its insurers for claim
settlements and legal costs and expects to continue to receive such payments during the pendency of this action.
That subsidiary is also a defendant in a lawsuit filed against it by the owner of a refinery constructed by the
subsidiary. The refinery owner has alleged that the subsidiary is required to defend and indemnify it against
claims alleging personal injury caused by exposure to asbestos at the refinery pursuant to the terms of contracts
entered into for the construction of the refinery. GlobalSantaFe Corporation has also been named as a defendant
in the pending litigation, on the basis of alter ego and other legal theories. To the extent that one or more pending
or future litigation matters are not resolved in our favor and are not covered by insurance, that could have an
adverse effect on our financial results and condition. For additional information regarding these legal
proceedings, see “Item 3. Legal Proceedings.”
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TURNKEY DRILLING OPERATIONS ARE CONTINGENT ON OUR ABILITY TO WIN BIDS AND ON RIG AVAILABILITY,
AND THE FAILURE TO WIN BIDS OR OBTAIN RIGS FOR ANY REASON MAY HAVE AN ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR
FINANCIAL RESULTS.

Our results of operations from our drilling management services segment may be limited by certain factors,
including our ability to find and retain qualified personnel, to hire suitable rigs at acceptable rates, and to obtain
and successfully perform turnkey drilling contracts based on competitive bids. Our ability to obtain turnkey
drilling contracts will largely depend on the number of these contracts available for bid, which in turn will be
influenced by market prices for oil and natural gas, among other factors. Furthermore, our ability to enter into
turnkey drilling contracts may be constrained from time to time by the availability of GlobalSantaFe or third-
party drilling rigs, the supply of which became even more constrained due to the number of rigs damaged and
destroyed as a result of Hurricane Katrina and Hurricane Rita. Accordingly, results of our drilling management
service operations may vary widely from quarter to quarter and from year to year.

TURNKEY DRILLING OPERATIONS EXPOSE Us TO ADDITIONAL RISKS, WHICH COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT QUR
PROFITABILITY, BECAUSE WE ASSUME THE RISK FOR OPERATIONAL PROBLEMS AND THE CONTRACTS ARE ON A
FIXED-PRICE BASIS.

We enter into a significant number of turnkey contracts each year. Our compensation under turnkey
contracts depends on whether we successfully drill to a specified depth or, under some of our contracts, complete
the well. Unlike dayrate contracts, where ultimate control is exercised by the operator, we are exposed to
additional risks when serving as a turnkey drilling contractor because we make all critical decisions. Under a
turnkey contract, the amount of our compensation is fixed at the amount we bid to drill the well. Thus, we are not
paid if operational problems prevent performance unless we choose to drill a new well at our own expense.
Further, we must absorb the loss if unforeseen problems arise that cause the cost of performance to exceed the
turnkey price. By contrast, in a dayrate contract, the customer generally retains these risks. The cost of
contingencies could exceed revenues earned under the turnkey contracts. We are not insured against all of these
risks associated with turnkey drilling operations.’

FAILURE TO OBTAIN AND RETAIN KEY PERSONNEL CoOULD IMPEDE OPERATIONS.

We require highly skilled personnel to operate our rigs and provide technical services and support for our
business. Competition for the skilled and other labor required for deepwater and other drilling operations,
including for our turnkey drilling and drilling management services business and our construction projects,
intensifies as the number of rigs activated or added to worldwide fleets or under construction increases. In
periods of high utilization, such as the current period, we have found it more difficult to find and retain qualified
individuals. We have experienced tightening in the relevant labor markets within the last year and have recently
sustained the loss of experienced personnel to our customers and competitors. In response to these market
conditions, we have instituted retention programs, including increases in compensation, and have incurred other
costs to retain our work force. If' these labor trends continue, they could increase our costs further or limit our
operations.

WE RELY HEAVILY ON A SMALL NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS AND THE LOSS OF A SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMER COULD
HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE IMPACT ON OUR FINANCIAL RESULTS.

Our contract drilling business is subject to the usual risks associated with having a limited number of
customers for our services. BP provided approximately $262.2 million, or 11.6%, of our consolidated revenues in
2005. Our five next largest customers for 2005 (ChevronTexaco, Total, ExxonMobil, ENI, and Lundin
Petroleum), none of which individually represented more than 10% of revenues, accounted in the aggregate for
approximately 36.5% of our 2005 consolidated revenues. Total and its affiliated companies provided
approximately $186.0 million, or 11%, of our consolidated revenues in 2004. Our five next largest customers for
2004 (ExxonMobil, ChevronTexaco, BP, BHP and AGIP), none of which individually represented more than
10% of revenues, accounted in the aggregate for approximately 31% of our 2004 consolidated revenues. Our
results of operations could be materially adversely affected if any of our major customers terminates its contracts
with us, fails to renew its existing contracts or refuses to award new contracts to us.
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Our drilling management services business is also subject to the usual risks associated with having a limited
number of customers for its services. In 2005, one customer, Lundin Petroleum, accounted for $97.5 million, or
16.5%, of drilling management services revenues. Our five next largest drilling management services customers,
none of which individually represented more than 10% of drilling management services revenues, accounted in
the aggregate for approximately 35% of drilling management services revenues for 2005. Two customers each
accounted for more than 10% of drilling management services revenues in 2004: William G. Helis Company,
LLC provided $60.6 million, or 11.4%, of drilling management services revenues, and Lundin Britain Limited
provided $56.6 million, or 10.7%, of drilling management services revenues. Our five next largest drilling
management services customers, none of which individually represented more than 10% of drilling management
services revenues, accounted in the aggregate for approximately 26% of drilling management services revenues
for 2004. ! '

WE MAY SUFFER LOSSES IF OUR CUSTOMERS TERMINATE OR SEEK TO RENEGOTIATE THEIR CONTRACTS.

Certain of our contracts with customers may be cancelable at the option of the customer upon payment of a
penalty. Such payments may, however, not fully compensate for us for the loss of the contract. Contracts also
customarily provide for either dutomatic termination or termination at the option of the customer for poor
performance in the event of total loss of the drilling rig, if drilling operations are suspended for extended periods
of time by reason of acts of God or excessive rig downtime for repairs, or in the event of other specified
conditions. Early termination of a contract may result ina rig being idle for an extended period of time. Our
revenues, results of operations and cash flow may be adversely affected by customers’ early termination of
contracts, especially if we are unable to recontract the affected rig within a short period of time. During
depressed market conditions, a customer may no longer need a rig that is currently under contract or may be able
to obtain a comparable rig at a lower daily rate. As a result, customers may seek to renegotiate the terms of their
existing drilling contracts or avoid their obligations under those contracts. The renegotiation of a number of our
drilling contracts could adversely affect our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

RiIG UPGRADE, REFURBISHMENT AND CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS, INCLUDING OUR CURRENT SEMISUBMERSIBLE
CONSTRUCTION PROJECT, AND R1G REPAIRS ARE SUBJECT TO RISKS INCLUDING DELAYS AND COST OVERRUNS,
WHICH CoULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE IMPACT ON OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

We currently have a contract for the construction of a new ultra-deepwater semisubmersible rig to be named
the GSF Development Driller 11I. We may also enter into contracts for the construction of additional rigs and may
make major upgrade and refurbishment expenditures for our fleet in the future. In addition, a number of our rigs
were damaged in Hurricanes Katrina and Rita and the GSF High Island II, the GSF High Island IV, and the GSF
Development Driller I are currently undergoing remediatién for hurricane damage. The damage to two other rigs,
the GSF High Island Il and the GSF Adriatic VII, is still being assessed. When the assessment is completed, which
is expected by the end of the first quarter of 2006, one or both of these rigs may undergo major refurbishment and
upgrade or may be determined to be constructive total losses. The GSF Development Driller I is also undergoing
remediation related to defective thrusters and for repair of problems with the rigid conduit lines of its riser. In
December 2005 problems were noted on the rigid conduit lines of the riser for the GSF Development Driller I,
which required that the rig be taken out of service until February 2006 for a temporary modification which allowed
it to resume operations. Similar issues have been noted on the GSF Development Driller I and the spare riser string.
Rig upgrade, refurbishment and construction projects and rig repairs are subject to the risks of delay or cost
overruns inherent in any large construction project, including the following:

+ - shortages of materials or skilled labor; ‘
* unforeseen engineering problems;

* unanticipated actual or purported change orders;‘-
» work stoppages;’ | ‘.

« financial or operating difficulties of the shipyard upgrading, refurbishing or constructing the rig;
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* adverse weather conditions;
* unanticipated cost increases; and

* inability to obtain any of the requisite permits or approvals.

Significant cost overruns or delays could materially and adversely affect our financial condition and results
of operations. We expect that the start of the initial drilling contract for the GSF Development Driller I will be
delayed to the second quarter of 2006, and that the GSF High Island Il and GSF High Island IV will be out of
service until the second quarter of 2006. The GSF High Island 11l and GSF Adriatic VII will either be out of
service for two years if refurbishment and upgrade are undertaken or will be permanently removed from service
if they are declared to be constructive total losses. The downtime for these repairs and possible permanent loss of
two of these rigs from our working fleet will have an adverse impact on our results of operations. The estimated
start dates could be later if the magnitude of the damage is greater than expected or if the remediation is delayed
by supply or personnel shortages, unforeseen engineering issues, adverse weather conditions or other
complications such as those referenced above. We could also encounter further unexpected difficulties or
complications in the use of these rigs following completion of repairs or of other rigs in the future that could
result in additional downtime or the cancellation of drilling contracts. In addition, our two newly completed
semisubmersibles, as well as the one about to commence construction employ advancements in technology that
may lead to certain difficulties, both operational and legal, as to our use of this technology. Our inability to use
this technology, or to use it efficiently, could render these rigs less competitive in the marketplace.

OUR BUSINESS INVOLVES NUMEROUS OPERATING HAZARDS AND WE ARE NOT FULLY INSURED AGAINST ALL
OF THEM AND THE AMOUNT OF RISK AGAINST WHICH WE ARE NOT INSURED MAY INCREASE; THE
OCCURRENCE OF AN UNINSURED OR UNIDENTIFIED EVENT COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON
OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION.

Our operations are subject to the usual hazards incident to the drilling of oil and natural gas wells, including
blowouts, explosions, oil spills and fires. Our activities are also subject to hazards peculiar to marine operations,
such as collision, grounding, and damage or loss from severe weather. All of these hazards can cause personal
injury and loss of life, severe damage to and destruction of property and equipment, pollution or environmental
damage and suspension of operations. We insure against, or have indemnification from customers for some, but
not all, of these risks. We insure only a small percentage of our fleet against loss of revenue for rigs that are
damaged. Our insurance contains various deductibles and limitations on coverage. The occurrence of a
significant event, including terrorist acts, war, civil disturbances, pollution, environmental damage or hurricanes,
not fully insured or indemnified against or the failure of a customer to meet its indemnification obligations, couid
materially and adversely affect our operations and financial condition.

Four of our semisubmersible drilling rigs in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico, the GSF Arctic I, the GSF Celtic Sea,
the GSF Development Driller I and the GSF Development Driller 11, sustained damage in Hurricane Katrina
during August 2005 that rendered them unable to perform drilling operations. As of December 31, 2005, the GSF
Arctic I and the GSF Celtic Sea had returned to service and the GSF Development Driller Il had gone on
contract, although it ceased operations from mid December 2005 until February 2006 due to problems with the
rigid conduit lines of its riser. The GSF Development Driller [ is still undergoing remediation which is currently
expected to be completed during the second quarter of 2006,

Less than a month after Hurricane Katrina, in September 2005 Hurricane Rita caused considerable damage
to four of our cantilevered jackup rigs in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico: the GSF High Island II, the GSF High
Island [II, the GSF High Island IV, and the GSF Adriatic VII. The GSF High Island Il and GSF High Island IV
are undergoing remediations that are expected to be completed in second quarter 2006 and the GSF High Island
I1I and the GSF Adriatic VII are still being evaluated to determine if they can be repaired or will be declared total
losses. The downtime for these repairs and possible permanent loss of two of these rigs from our working fleet
will have an adverse effect on our results of operations in future periods.
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All of these rigs are covered for physical damage under the hull and machinery provision of our insurance
policy, which carries a deductible of $10 million per occurrence. In addition, the GSF Arctic I, the GSF
Development Driller I and the GSF Development Driller II are covered by loss of hire insurance under which we
are reimbursed for 100 percent of each rig’s contracted dayrate for up to a maximum of 270 days per rig
following 60 days (the “waiting period”) of lost revenue. Our insurance policy provides that if claims for a single
event are filed under both the hull and machinery and loss of hire sections of the policy, we will bear only a
single deductible from that occurrence of no more than the highest deductible from any individual section.
Hurricane Katrina and Hurricane Rita are each considered to be a separate occurrence. Based on remediations
completed or in progress, the amount of revenue lost to us during the waiting period will be higher than the $10
million hull and machinery deductible. Therefore, the 60-day waiting period under our loss of hire insurance will
serve as the only deductible for the Hurricane Katrina event. None of the jackup rigs damaged during Hurricane
Rita were insured for loss of hire and, therefore, a single;$10 million hull and machinery deductible will apply
for damage to the rigs caused by Hurricane Rita. We will be making substantial insurance claims as a result of
the damage sustained by these rigs. As required by the financial accounting rules to record amounts we consider
to be collectible, we have recorded both an estimate of the loss for the damage to our rigs in the hurricanes and
an estimate of our expected insurance recovery for that loss. Although we are in the process of filing claims for
those losses, we have not recovered any amounts from our insurers, nor have we received any assurances from
them as to any such recovery. Further evaluations of the damage sustained by each rig may result in changes to
these estimates and accordingly may affect our financial results in future periods. In addition, we could receive
less than the anticipated amounts from our insurers for physical damage to our rigs, and we could therefore suffer
losses in excess of the $10 million deductible for hull and machinery damage for various reasons, including
disagreements with our insurers as to recoverable costs or financial difficulties of our insurers.

Moreover, there may be disputes with our insurers as to what amounts we may ultimately recover under our
loss of hire insurance due to the thruster damage sustained by the GSF Development Driller I and the GSF
Development Driller 11 prior to the hurricanes. The application of the 60-day waiting period provision is
complicated by the fact that at the time of the hurricane both rigs were undergoing thruster remediations and
accordingly, we already had put our insurance underwriters on notice as to a claim under the loss of hire section of
the policy. It is currently not clear how the 60-day waiting period for the loss of hire provision will apply given the
confluence of the thruster and hurricane damage. Differing interpretations of this provision could affect the amount
of our recovery under our loss of hire insurance. In addition, our insurance underwriters of our insurance carriers
have reserved their rights to decline coverage for the thruster damage claims on the two semisubmersibles in respect
of both the hull and machinery and loss of hire coverage, which could lead to a denial of our claims. Accordingly,
the total amount that may be recovered from our insurers for loss of hire currently cannot be determined and
therefore we have not recorded any loss of hire recoveries telated to the thruster damage. See “Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital
Resources—Investing and Financing Activities” for more information regarding these matters.

The catastrophic damage to the oil and gas industry infrastructure in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico brought about
by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita.and resulting insurance claims produced extremely large losses in the energy
insurance market and has led to substantial increases in reinsurance premiums and significant restrictions in
coverage for our direct insurance underwriters. As a result, we may experience instability in the world’s
insurance markets, including capital shortfalls and liquidity concerns for insurers of our assets. Our deductible
for insurance for rig physical damage is currently $10 million per occurrence, subject to a $20 million aggregate
deductible and a $10 million per occurrence deductible for liability claims. As a result of insurance market
conditions and developments, we may be required to pay significantly higher insurance premiums, or we may
choose to increase our deductibles in order to offset or mitigate premium increases. We may also experience
reductions and exclusions from coverage, such as elimination of coverage, or significant restrictions on the
amount of money recoverable, for Gulf of Mexico windstorm claims, or we may elect to change our insurance
coverage, by increasing deductibles, retentions and other limitations on coverage, which could effectively
increase the amount of risk against which we are not insured. We may not be able to maintain adequate insurance
at rates we consider reasonable or be able to obtain insurance against certain risks in the future. These
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developments may subject us to increased risks and could materially and adversely affect our operations and
financial condition.

OUR ABILITY TO OPERATE OUR RIGS IN THE U.S. GULF OF MEX1CO COULD BE RESTRICTED BY GOVERNMENT
REGULATION OR REQUIREMENTS OF OUR INSURANCE UNDERWRITERS

Hurricanes Katrina and Rita caused damage to a number of rigs in the Gulf of Mexico fleet and rigs that
were moved off location by the storms may have done damage to platforms, pipelines, wellheads and other
drilling rigs. The Minerals Management Service (“MMS”) of the U.S. Department of the Interior is conducting
hearings to determine methods to prevent or reduce the number of such incidents in the future. Insurance
underwriters may require that drilling rigs meet certain operational criteria as a condition of coverage. MMS
regulation or insurance underwriter requirements may mandate that jackup drilling rigs operating in the Gulf of
Mexico operate with a higher air gap during hurricane season, effectively reducing the water depth in which they
can operate, or that they meet stricter criteria in terms of the soil conditions in which they operate. The MMS or
underwriters may take other steps that could increase the cost of operations or reduce the area of operations for
these rigs, thus reducing their marketability. The MMS and insurance underwriters may also require that
semisubmersibles operating in the Gulf of Mexico strengthen their mooring systems or take other steps in order
to prevent the rigs from floating off location in adverse weather conditions, theéreby materially increasing the
capital costs of these rigs. Implementation of MMS regulations or requirements of our insurance underwriters
may subject us to increased costs or limit the operational capabilities of our rigs and could materially and
adversely affect our operations and financial condition.

OUR INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS INVOLVE ADDITIONAL RISKS NOT GENERALLY ASSOCIATED WITH
DoMESTIC OPERATIONS, WHICH COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON QUR OPERATIONS OR
FINANCIAL RESULTS. '

Risks associated with our international operations, any of which could limit or disrupt our markets or
operations, include heightened risks of: ‘

* terrorist acts, war and civil disturbances;

* expropriation or nationalization of assets;

s renegotiation or nullification of existing contracts;

+ foreign taxation, including changes in law or interpretation of existing law;

¢ assaults on property or personnel;

» changing political conditions;

* foreign and domestic monetary policies; and

+ travel limitations or operational problems caused by public health threats.

Additionally, ourability to compete in the international drilling market may be adversely affected by
non-U.S. governmental regulations favoring or requiring the awarding of drilling contracts to local contractors or
requiring foreign contractors to employ citizens of, or purchase supplies from, a particular jurisdiction.
Furthermore, foreign governmental regulations, which may in the future become applicable to the oil and natural

gas industry, could reduce demand for our services, or such regulations could directly affect our ability to
compete for customers or significantly increase our costs.

Due to our structure and extensive foreign operations, our effective tax rate is based on the provisions of
numerous tax treaties, conventions and agreements between various countries and taxing jurisdictions, as well as
the tax laws of many jurisdictions. Changes in one or more of these tax regimes or changes in the interpretation
of existing laws in these regimes could also have a material adverse effect on us.
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PuBLiC HEALTH THREATS COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS
AND OUR FINANCIAL RESULTS.

Public health threats, such as Severe Acute Respira_{ory Syndrome (SARS), a highly communicable disease,
outbreaks of which occurred early in 2003 in Southeast Asia and other parts of the world in which we operate, or
the widespread transmission of avian influenza (bird flu) in humans, could adversely impact the global economy,
the worldwide demand for oil and natural gas, and the level of demand for our services. Any quarantine of
personnel or inability to access our offices or rigs could adversely affect our operations. Travel restrictions or
operational problems in any part of the world in which we operate, or any reduction in the demand for drilling
services caused by public health threats in the future, may materially impact operations and adversely affect our
financial results.

WE MAY SUFFER LOSSES AS A RESULT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RESTRICTIONS, FOREIGN CURRENCY
FLUCTUATIONS, AND LIMITATIONS ON THE ABILITY TO REPATRIATE INCOME OR CAPITAL TO THE U.S.

A substantial portion of our international drilling and services contracts are partially payable in local
currency in amounts that are generally intended to approximate our estimated local operating costs, with the
balance of the payments under the contract payable in U.S. dollars (except in Malaysia, where we will likely be
paid entirely in local currency). In certain jurisdictions, including Egypt and Nigeria, regulations exist which
determine the amounts payable;in local currency. Those amounts can exceed the local currency costs being
incurred, leading to accumulations of excess local currency, which in certain instances can be subject to either
temporary blocking or difficulties in converting to U.S. dollars. To the extent our revenues and assets
denominated in local currency do not equal our local operating expenses and liabilities, or during periods of idle
time when no revenue is earned, we are exposed to currency exchange transaction losses, which could materially
and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. We incurred foreign currency exchange
losses totaling approximately $2.3 million in 2005. We incurred foreign currency exchange losses totaling
approximately $6.1 million in 2004. Our foreign currency exchange gains and losses were immaterial for 2003.
Although we have not historically entered into financial hedging arrangements to manage risks relating to
fluctuations in currency exchange rates, we may enter into such arrangements in the future.

LAWS AND GOVERNMENTAL REGULATIONS MAY ADD TO COSTS OR LIMIT DRILLING ACTIVITY.

Our business is affected by changes in public policy and by federal, state, foreign and local laws and
regulations relating to the energy industry. The drilling industry is dependent on demand for services from the oil
and natural gas exploration and production industry and, accordingly, we are directly affected by the adoption of
laws and regulations curtailing exploration and development drilling for oil and natural gas for economic,
environmental and other policy reasons. We may be required to make significant capital expenditures to comply
with governmental laws and regulations. It is also possible that these laws and regulations may in the future add
significantly to our operating costs or may significantly limit drilling activity.

Governments in some non-U.S. countries have become increasingly active in regulating and controlling the
ownership of concessions, companies holding concessions, the exploration for oil and natural gas, and other
aspects of the oil and natural gas industries in these couritries. In some areas of the world, this governmental
activity has adversely affected the amount of exploration and development work done by major oil companies
and may continue to do so.

GOVERNMENTAL REGULATIONS AND ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS COULD SIGNIFICANTLY AFFECT OUR
OPERATIONS AND ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITIES COULD HAVE AN ADVERSE EFFECT ON Us.

Our operations are subject to numerous federal, state, and local laws and regulations controlling the
discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment. As a
result, the application of these laws could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations by
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increasing our cost of doing business, discouraging our customers from drilling for hydrocarbons, or subjecting
us to liability. For example, we, as an operator of mobile offshore drilling units in navigable U.S. waters and
certain offshore areas, including the Outer Continental Shelf, are liable for damages and for the cost of removing
oil spills for which we may be held responsible, subject to certain limitations. Our historical and current
operations may involve the use or handling of materials that may be classified as environmentally hazardous
substances. Laws and regulations protecting the environment have generally become more stringent and may in
certain circumstances impose “strict liability,” rendering a person liable for environmental damage without
regard to negligence or fault. Environmental laws and regulations may expose us to liability for the conduct of or
conditions caused by others or for acts that were in compliance with all applicable laws at the time they were
performed. We have potential liabilities under various statutes regulating the cleanup of a number of hazardous
waste disposal sites and cannot assure you that we will not be named in similar matters in the future. In addition,
one of our subsidiaries is a defendant, along with nineteen other companies, in a lawsuit filed on behalf of three
landowners in Louisiana. That lawsuit alleges that the defendants contaminated the plaintiffs’ property with
naturally occurring radioactive material, produced water, drilling fluids, chlorides, hydrocarbons, heavy metals
and other contaminants as a result of oil and gas exploration activities. To the extent that one or more pending or
future environmental matters or lawsuits are not resolved in our favor and are not covered by insurance, that
could have an adverse effect on our financial results and condition. For a discussion of potential environmental
liabilities affecting us, see “Item 3. Legal Proceedings—Environmental Matters.”

WE ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGES IN TaX LAWwS.

We are a Cayman Islands company and we operate through our various subsidiaries in numerous countries
throughout the world including the United States. Consequently, we are subject to changes in tax laws, treaties,
and regulations in and between countries in which we operate, including treaties between the U.S. and other
nations. Our income tax expense is based upon our interpretation of the tax laws in effect in various countries at
the time that the expense was incurred. A material change in these tax laws, treaties or regulations, including
those in and involving the U.S., could result in a higher effective tax rate on our worldwide earnings.

Proposed legislation has been introduced in the U.S. Congress over the past several years that would limit
the deductibility of certain interest expense on related-party indebtedness. A similar proposal has also been
included in the President’s fiscal year 2007 budget proposals. Such legislation, if enacted, could cause a
significant increase in our U.S. tax liability. The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 mandated the U.S.
Treasury to complete a study on the effect of certain deductions such as related-party interest. It is possible that
the U.S. Congress will propose further legislation in this regard after the study has been completed.

Our income tax returns are subject to review and examination in various countries. We are currently under
review in various countries, and some of those countries have issued proposed adjustments to our tax returns.
While we have agreed to certain adjustments in some of the countries, we believe that our tax returns are
materially correct as filed, and we will defend ourselves against any adjustments that we determine to be
unwarranted. We cannot rule out the possibility that we may not prevail in all cases or that the final outcome of
any future assessment may be adverse to us. However, we do not believe that the ultimate resolution of these
outstanding or future assessments will have a material adverse affect on our financial position, results of
operations and cash flows.

WE MAY BE LIMITED IN OUR USE OF NET OPERATING LOSSES.

Our ability to benefit from our deferred tax assets depends on us having sufficient future earnings to utilize
our net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards before they expire. We have established a valuation allowance
against the future tax benefit for a number of our foreign NOL carryforwards, and we could be required to record
an additional valuation allowance against our foreign or U.S. deferred tax assets if market conditions change
materially and, as a result, our future earnings are, or are projected to be, significantly less than we currently
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estimate, Our NOL carryforwards are subject to review and potential disallowance upon audit by the tax
authorities of the jurisdictions where the NOLs were incurred.

As of December 31, 2005, we had approximately $375.9 million of NOL carryforwards for U.S. federal
income tax purposes. These NOL carryforwards include:NOL carryforwards of Global Marine from periods prior
to the 2001 merger of Global Marine with one of our subsidiaries. Section 382 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code
could limit the use of some of these Global Marine NOL carryforwards if the direct and indirect ownership of the
stock of Global Marine changed by more than 50% in certain circumstances over a prescribed testing period. The
Internal Revenue Service may take the position that the Merger caused a greater-than-50-percent ownership
change with respect to Global Marine. If the Merger did not result in such an ownership change, changes in the
ownership of our ordinary shares following the Merger may have resulted in such an ownership change. In the
event of such an ownership change, the Section 382 rules would limit the utilization of Global Marine’s NOL
carryforwards in each taxable year ending after the ownership change to an amount equal to a federal long-term
tax-exempt rate published monthly by the Internal Revenue Service, multiplied by the fair market value of all of
Global Marine’s stock, each determined at the time of the ownership change. For purposes of this calculation, the
value of Global Marine’s stock:at such time may be subject to adjustments that would further limit our ability to
utilize Global Marine’s NOL carryforwards. If a limitation were imposed under Section 382, it could result in
Global Marine’s NOL carryforwards expiring unused or-in our inability to fully offset taxable income with NOLs
in a particular year, even though our NOL carryforwards exceeded our taxable income for that year.

WE MAaY BE REQUIRED TO ACCRUE ADDITIONAL TAX LIABILITY ON CERTAIN EARNINGS.

We have not provided for U.S. deferred taxes on the unremitted earnings of our U.S. subsidiaries that are
permanently reinvested. Should a distribution be made from the unremitted earnings of these U.S. subsidiaries,
we could be required to record additional U.S. current and deferred taxes that, if material, could have an adverse
effect on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

OUR SHAREHOLDERS HAVE LIMITED RIGHTS UNDER CAYMAN ISLANDS LAW.

We are incorporated undeﬁ the laws of the Cayman Islands, and our corporate affairs are governed by our
memorandum of association and our articles of association and by the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. Principles of law relating to matters such as the validity of corporate procedures, the fiduciary
duties of management, directors and controlling shareholders, and the rights of shareholders differ from those
that would apply if we were incorporated in a jurisdiction within the United States. Further, the rights of
shareholders under Cayman Islands law are not as clearly established as the rights of shareholders under
legislation or judicial precedent applicable in some U.S. jurisdictions. As a result, our shareholders may face
more uncertainty in protecting their interests in the face of actions by the management or directors than they
might have as shareholders of a corporation incorporated in a U.S. jurisdiction.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In August 2004, certain of our subsidiaries were named as defendants in six lawsuits filed in Mississippi,
five of which are pending in the Circuit Court of Jones County and one of which is pending in the Circuit Court
of Jasper County, Mississippi, alleging that certain individuals aboard our offshore drilling rigs had been exposed
to asbestos. These six lawsuits are part of a group of twenty-three lawsuits filed on behalf of approximately 800
plaintiffs against a large number of defendants, most of which are not affiliated with us. Our subsidiaries have
not been named as defendants in any of the other seventeen lawsuits. The lawsuits assert claims based on theories
of unseaworthiness, negligence, strict liability, and our subsidiaries’ status as Jones Act employers, and seek
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unspecified compensatory and punitive damages. In general, the defendants are alleged to have manufactured,
distributed or utilized products containing asbestos. In the case of our named subsidiaries and that of several
other offshore drilling companies named as defendants, the lawsuits allege those defendants allowed such
products to be utilized aboard offshore drilling rigs. We have not been provided with sufficient information to
determine the number of plaintiffs who claim to have been exposed to asbestos aboard our rigs, whether they
were employees nor their period of employment, the period of their alleged exposure to asbestos, nor their
medical condition. Accordingly, we are unable to estimate our potential exposure to these lawsuits. We
historically have maintained insurance that we believe will be available to address any liability arising from these
claims. We intend to defend these lawsuits vigorously, but there can be no assurance as to their ultimate
outcome.

We and two of our subsidiaries are defendants in a lawsuit filed on July 28, 2003, by Transocean Inc.
(“Transocean”) in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas, Houston Division. The lawsuit
alleges that the dual drilling structure and method utilized by the GSF Development Driller I and the GSF
Development Driller II semisubmersibles infringe on United States patents granted to Transocean. The lawsuit
seeks damages, royalties and attorneys’ fees, together with an injunction that would prevent the use of the dual
drilling capabilities of the rigs. On December 1, 2003, the court granted a partial summary judgment in favor of
Transocean on the issue of whether the “apparatus” aboard our rigs was so similar to that patented by Transocean
that it fell within the scope of their patents, an issue we had not contested. We believe the focus of the lawsuit is the
validity and enforceability of the patents; that is, whether the patents would have or should have been issued had
Transocean supplied the patent office with all of the available information regarding similar methods and apparatus
either used by the industry or designed for its use prior to Transocean’s claimed invention date. These issues will be
the subject of the trial, which is not expected to occur prior to the summer of 2006. We believe that the lawsuit is
without merit and intend to vigorously defend it. We do not expect that the matter will have a material adverse
effect on our business or financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

One of our subsidiaries filed suit in February 2004 against its insurance underwriters in the Superior Court
of San Francisco County, California, seeking a declaration as to its rights to insurance coverage and the proper
allocation among its insurers of liability for claims payments in order to assist in the future management and
disposition of certain claims described below. The subsidiary is continuing to receive payment from its insurers
for claim settlements and legal costs, and expects to continue to receive such payments during the pendency of
this action.

The insurance coverage in question relates to lawsuits filed against the subsidiary arising out of its involvement
in the design, construction and refurbishment of major industrial complexes. The operating assets of the subsidiary
were sold and its operations discontinued in 1989, and the subsidiary has no remaining assets other than the
insurance policies involved in the litigation and funds received from the cancellation of certain insurance policies.
The subsidiary has been named as a defendant, along with numerous other companies, in lawsuits alleging personal
injury as a result of exposure to asbestos. As of December 31, 2003, the subsidiary had been named as a defendant
in approximately 4,000 lawsuits, the first of which was filed in 1990, and a substantial number of which are
currently pending. We believe that as of December 31, 2005, from $30 million to $40 million has been expended to
resolve claims, with the subsidiary having expended $4 million of that amount due to insurance deductible
obligations, all of which have now been satisfied. Because we rely on information from the insurers of our
subsidiary for information regarding the amounts expended in settlement and defense of these lawsuits and are not
able to verify or confirm the information, the amount expended by the insurers is not known with precision. The
subsidiary continues to be named as a defendant in additional lawsuits and we cannot predict the number of
additional cases in which it may be named a defendant nor can we predict the potential costs to resolve such
additional cases or to resolve the pending cases. However, the subsidiary has in excess-of $1 billion in insurance
limits. Although not all of that will be available due to the insolvency of certain insurers, we believe that the
subsidiary will have sufficient insurance available to respond to these claims. We do not believe that these claims
will have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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The same subsidiary has been a defendant in a lawsuit filed against it by Union Oil Company of California
(“Union”) in the Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois. That lawsuit arises out of claims alleging personal injury
caused by exposure to asbestos at a refinery owned by Union and constructed by the Company’s subsidiary.
Union has alleged that the subsidiary is required to defend and indemnify it pursuant to the terms of contracts
entered into for the construction of the refinery. GlobalSantaFe Corporation has also been named as a defendant
in the pending litigation. Union intends to attempt to establish liability against GlobalSantaFe Corporation as the
alter ego of, and successor in interest to, its subsidiary and on the basis of a fraudulent conveyance of the
subsidiary’s assets, and seeks to pierce the corporate veil between the subsidiary and GlobalSantaFe Corporation.
We believe that the allegations of the lawsuit are without merit and intend to vigorously defend against the
lawsuit, but we cannot provide any assurance as to its ulfimate outcome.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

We have certain potential liabilities under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act (“CERCLA”) and similar state acts regulating cleanup of various hazardous waste disposal sites,
including those described below. CERCLA is intended to ‘'expedite the remediation of hazardous substances without
regard to fault. Potentially responsible parties (“PRPs”) for each site include present and former owners and
operators of, transporters to and generators of the substances at the site. Liability is strict and can be joint and
several. '

We have been named as a PRP in connection with a site located in Santa Fe Springs, California, known as
the Waste Disposal, Inc. site. We and other PRPs have agreed with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(“EPA™) and the U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ”) to settle our potential liabilities for this site by agreeing to
perform the remaining remediation required by the EPA. The form of the agreement is a consent decree, which
has now been entered by the court. The parties to the settlement have entered into a participation agreement,
which makes us liable for approximately 8% of the remediation costs. Although the remediation costs cannot be
determined with certainty until the remediation is complete, we expect that our share of the remaining
remediation costs will not exceed approximately $500,000. There are additional potential liabilities related to the
site, but these cannot be quantified, and we have no reason at this time to believe that they will be material.

We have also been named as a PRP in connection with a site in California known as the Casmalia Resources
Site. We and other PRPs have entered into an agreement with the EPA and the DOJ to resolve potential
liabilities. Under the settlement, we are not likely to owe any substantial additional amounts for this site beyond
what we have already paid. Thére are additional potentialI liabilities related to this site, but these cannot be
quantified at this time, and we have no reason at this timé to believe that they will be material.

We have been named as one of many PRPs in connection with a site located in Carson, California, formerly
maintained by Cal Compact Landfill. On February 15, 2002, we were served with a required 90-day notification
that eight California cities, on behalf of themselves and other PRPs, intend to commence an action against us
under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA™). On April 1, 2002, a complaint was filed by the
cities against us and others alleging that we have liabilities in connection with the site. However, the complaint
has not been served. The site was closed in or around 1965, and we do not have sufficient information to enable
us to assess our potential liability, if any, for this site.

Resolutions of other claims by the EPA, the involved state agency and/or PRPs are at various stages of
investigation. These investigations involve determinations of:

+ the actual responsibility attributed to us and the other PRPs at the site;

+ appropriate investigatory and/or remedial actions; and

+ allocation of the costs of such activities among the PRPs and other site users.
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Our ultimate financial responsibility in connection with those sites may depend on many factors, including:
+ the volume and nature of material, if any, contributed to the site for which we are responsible;
* the numbers of other PRPs and their financial viability; and

* the remediation methods and technology to be used.

It is difficult to quantify with certainty the potential cost of these environmental matters, particularly in
respect of remediation obligations. Nevertheless, based upon the information currently available, we believe that
our ultimate liability arising from all environmental matters, including the liability for all other related pending
legal proceedings, asserted legal claims and known potential legal claims which are likely to be asserted, is
adequately accrued and should not have a material effect on our financial position or ongoing results of
operations. Estimated costs of future expenditures for environmental remediation obligations are not discounted
to their present value.

On July 11, 2005, one of our subsidiaries was served with a lawsuit filed on behalf of three landowners in
Louisiana in the 12% Judicial District Court for the Parish of Avoyelles, State of Louisiana. The lawsuit names
nineteen other defendants, all of which are alleged to have contaminated the plaintiffs’ property with naturally
occurring radioactive material, produced water, drilling fluids, chlorides, hydrocarbons, heavy metals and other
contaminants as a result of oil and gas exploration activities. The lawsuit specifies 95 wells drilled on the
property in question beginning in 1939 and alleges that our subsidiary was the operator or non-operating partner
in 13 of the wells during certain periods of time. The plaintiffs allege that the defendants are liable on the basis of
strict liability, breach of contract, breach of the mineral leases, negligence, nuisance, trespass, and improper
handling of toxic or hazardous substances, that their storage and disposal of toxic and hazardous substances
constituted an ultra-hazardous activity, and that they violated various state statutes. The lawsuit seeks unspecified
amounts of compensatory and punitive damages, payment of funds sufficient to conduct an environmental
assessment of the property in question, damages for diminution of property value and injunctive relief requiring
that defendants restore the property to its prior condition and prevent the migration of toxic and hazardous
substances. We do not have sufficient information at this time to form an opinion as to the merits of the lawsuit
or its potential liability, if any, but intend to vigorously defend against the lawsuit.

OTHER LEGAL MATTERS

We and our subsidiaries are defendants or otherwise involved in a number of lawsuits in the ordinary course
of business. In the opinion of management, our ultimate liability with respect to these pending lawsuits is not
expected to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to a vote of our security holders during the fourth quarter of 2005.




PART I1

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

* Our Ordinary Shares, $.01 par value per share, are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the
symbol “GSF.” The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices of our Ordinary Shares as reported on
the New York Stock Exchange Composite Transactions Tape for the calendar periods indicated.

Price per Share

High Low

2005 ;

First QUarter . ..........cooveven... S $39.05  $31.95

Second QUArLET . . ...ttt e e 44.00 32.27

Third Quarter . . .. ... e i e 48.00 40.30

FourthQuarter . .............. ... .... e e 50.22 39.15
2004 ‘

FArSt QUAItEr ...\ ovo et oot e e e e e $30.69  $23.44

Second Quarter ..................... e 28.94  24.03

ThirdQuarter . .........covvevne. ... [P 31.75 24,53

Fourth QUAITET . .. .o ot ettt e et 3320 2722

On February 28, 2006, the ¢losing price of the Ordin.ary Shares, as reported by the NYSE, was $55.34 per
share. As of February 28, 2006, there were approximately 2,744 shareholders of record of Ordinary Shares. This
number does not include shareholders for whom shares are held in a nominee or street name.

D1vIDEND POLICY .

We paid dividends of $0.05i per share in all quarters in 2004, $0.075 in the first two quarters of 2005, and
$0.15 in the last two quarters of 2005. On December 8, 20035, our Board of Directors increased the dividend to
$0.225 payable to shareholders of record as of December 31 2005. This dividend was paid on January 13, 2006.
The dividends paid in a given quarter relate to the immediately preceding quarter. Our payment of dividends in
the future, if any, will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on our results of operations,
financial condition, cash requirements, future business prospects, and other factors.

ISSUER REPURCHASES OF ORDINARY SHARES
The following table details our repurchases of ordmary shares for the three months ended December 31,

2005:
Total Number of Maximum Approximate
Shares Purchased as  Dollar Value of Shares
Total Number : Part of Publicly that May Yet be
of Shares Average Price Announced Plans or Purchased Under the
Period 1 Purchased Per Share Programs Plans or Programs
October 1 -31,2005............... — — —_ $98.6 million(2)
November 1 -30,2005............. — — — $98.6 million(2)
December 1 - 31,2005 ....... e 20,000,000(1)  $48.86 — $98.6 million(2)
Total ....................... 20,000,000(1) $48.86 — $98.6 million(2)

(1) We purchased 20,000,000 of our shares from a subsidiary of Kuwait Petroleum Corporation on
December 19, 2005, pursuant to a privately negotiated stock purchase transaction. We purchased these
shares with the net proceeds to us from a concurrent public offering of an equivalent number of shares. All
20,000,000 shares were purchased at a price of $48.86 per share, which was the same as the net price
received by us in the public offering.

(2) On March 3, 2006, our Board of Directors authorlzed us to repurchase up to $2 billion of our ordinary shares
from time to time. This repurchase plan superseded our prior plan, authorized by our Board of Directors in
August 2002 authorizing the purchase of up to $150 million of our ordinary shares. The repurchase of shares
set forth in the table above was not pursuant to the August 2002 plan and no repurchases were made under
the plan in the quarter ended December 31, 2005.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

In the following table, our operating results for 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002 represent operations of the
combined company. Operating results for 2001 include Global Marine’s operations for the full year and Santa Fe
International’s operations from the November 2001 merger date (42 days). As a result, comparisons to data for
2001 may not be meaningful. The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with “Item 7. '
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the audited
consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included under “Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.”

GLOBALSANTAFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

FIVE-YEAR REVIEW
(In millions, except per share and operational data)

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Financial Performance
Revenues:
Contractdrilling ......... ... ... $1,640.2 $1,176.9 $1,263.9 $1,458.8 $ 960.4
Drilling management SETvices ..................... 566.6 515.2 5234 4006 409.3
Ofland gas . ...ttt 56.7 316 20.9 10.6 13.9
Total TeVenuUES .. ...ovvie i $2,263.5 $1,723.7 $1,808.2 $1,870.0 $1,383.6
Operating income: .
Contractdrilling ....... ... ... ... ... ... $ 4453 % 119.1 $ 1380 $ 3347 $ 3385
Drilling management services . .................... 31.3 6.7 317 28.6 334
Oilandgas ....... ...y 339 19.4 12.0 4.8 8.4
Gain (loss) on involuntary conversion of long-lived
assets, net of related insurance recoveries and loss of
hirerecoveries (1) ......... ... (6.2) 24.0 —_ — —
Gainonsaleofassets (2) . .....cvvvviivinien... 28.0 27.8 — — 35.6
Impairment loss on long-lived asset (3) ............. — (1.2) —_ — —
Restructuring costs (4) .. ... i — — 3.4) — (22.3)
COrporate EXpenSes . ... ...ovueeernnerernnneneans (67.9) 62.0) (52D (61.8) (28.1)
Total operating income . ..................... 464.4 133.8 1256 3063 365.5
Other income (expense) :
INterest eXPense . .. ... ert it (41.3) (55.5) (67.5) (57.1) (57.4)
Interest capitalized ................. ... ... . ... 38.1 41.0 349 20.5 1.1
Interestincome ..........coiiiininiiiii, 22.7 12.3 11.2 15.1 139
Loss on retirement of long-term debt (5) ............ — (32.4) — — —_
Other (6) ... i e 2.1 1.2) 25.0 2.3 (0.6)
Total other income (expense) ................. 21.6 (35.8) 36 (19.2) 43.0)
Income before income taxes .................. 486.0 98.0 129.2 287.1 322.5
Provision for income taxes:
Current income tax provision ..................... 57.1 52.6 26.7 45.9 22.2
Deferred income tax provision (benefit) ............. 5.8 14.0 (11.7) (20.3) 101.5
Total provision for income taxes (7) ............ 62.9 66.6 15.0 25.6 123.7
Income from continuing operations ............ 423.1 314 114.2 261.5 198.8
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax effect (8) .. — 112.3 15.2 16.4 —
Netincome .........ccuiiiiunniinannnn. .. $ 4231 $ 1437 $ 1294 $ 2779 $ 1988




2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Earnings per ordinary share (Basic):

Income from continuing operations ........... $ 176 $§ 013 $ 049 $ 112 $ 152
Income from discontinued operations ......... — 0.48 0.06 0.07 —_
Netincome ......... [ $ 176 § 061 $ 055 $ 119 $ 1.52

Earnings per ordinary share (Diluted): .

Income from continuing operations ........... $ 173 $ 013 $ 049 $ 111§ 1.50

Income from discontinued operations ......... - 0.48 0.06 0.07 —

Netincome .....oovivevinnenennennn.. $ 173 $ 061 $ 055 $ 118 $ 1.50

Average ordinary shares—Basic ................. - 2409 234.8 233.2 2337 130.5
Average ordinary shares—Diluted . ............... . 2451 2372 234.9 236.5 137.5
Cash dividends declared per ordipary share (9) ...... $ 0600 $ 0225 $ 0.175 $ 0.13 $0.0325
Capital expenditures (10) ....................... $ 3969 § 4529 §$ 4660 $ 5741 §$§ 1584
Depreciation, depletion and amortization .......... § 2753 $ 2568 § 2575 § 2391 § 1463
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges ............... " 540 1.66 2.04 4.31 4.36
Financial Position (end of year) ,
Working capital ......... ... . ..., $ 9938 § 4516 $1,0207 § 7120 § 7222
Properties and equipment, net e $4,317.8 $4,329.9 $4,180.2 $4,194.0 $3,897.6
Total @8Sets .. .o vvvti e $6,222.1 $5,998.2 $6,149.7 $5,828.7 $5,528.9
Long-term debt, including capital lease obligations .. $ 574.2 § 586.0 $1,2309 § 9419 § 9292
Shareholders’ equity .. ... ..o veiiniennn. $4,957.5 $4,4664 $4,327.6 $4,234.2 $4,033.2
Operational Data :
Average rig utilization (11)(13) ................. . 96% 86% 85% 89% 93%
Average revenues perday (12) (13) ............... $78,900 $63,500 $65900 $72400 $75.400
Number of active rigs—(end of year) (13) . ......... : 61 59 59 58 58
Tumnkey wellsdrilled ............ ... ... .... ' 80 89 85 78 97
Turnkey completions .......................... ; 19 30 31 20 22
Number of employees (end of year) ............... 5,700 5,300 7,100 7,200 8,400
(1)  In the third quarter of 2005 our fleet in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico was impacted by both Hurricane Katrina

@

and Hurricane Rita. In that quarter we recorded an involuntary loss totaling $127 million against the
carrying value of rigs damaged in the storms, offset by $117 million in anticipated insurance recoveries.
The net loss of $10 mililion for that quarter represents our insurance deductible for Hurricane Rita, while
the 60-day waiting period under our loss of hire insurance policy will serve as the only insurance deducible
for Hurricane Katrina. In the fourth quarter of 2005 we recorded $3.8 million for estimated recoveries from
insurers under this loss of hire insurance policy related to Hurricane Katrina, resulting in a net loss for
2005 of $6.2 million. In 2004, the jackup GSF Adriatic IV encountered well control problems, caught fire
and sank while drilling in the Mediterranean Sea off the coast of Egypt. We received insurance proceeds
totaling $40.0 million, net of our deductible, and recorded a gain of $24.0 million, net of taxes.

The 2004 amount includes the sale of our oil and gas division’s interests in two oil and gas projects. In the
first quarter 2004, our oil and gas division sold its interest in a drilling project in West Africa for -
approximately $6.1 million, recording a gain of $2.7 million. In the third quarter 2004, our oil and gas
division sold a portion of its interest in the Broom;Field development project in the North Sea for
approximately $35.9 million, recording a gain of $25.1 million. Pursuant to the terms of the Broom Field
sale, if commodity prices exceeded a specified amount, we were also entitled to additional post-closing
consideration equal to a portion of the proceeds from the production attributable to this interest sold
through September 2005. In 2005 we recorded an additional gain associated with this deferred
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consideration arrangement of $4.5 million, which represents the entire deferred consideration earned under
the sales agreement. In 2005 we also soid the Glomar Robert F. Bauer driliship for $25 million and
recorded a net pre-tax gain of $23.5 million. The 200! amount includes a $35.1 million gain on the sale of
the Glomar Beaufort Sea I concrete island drilling system, which was sold in June 2001,

In 2004, we sold the platform rig Rig 82 for a nominal sum in connection with our exit from the platform
rig business and recognized an impairment loss of approximately $1.2 million.

Restructuring costs for 2003 represent changes in estimated restructuring costs associated with Global
Marine recorded in 2001 in connection with the Merger.

In 2004 we completed the redemption of the entire outstanding $300 million principal amount of Global
Marine Inc.’s 7 8% Notes due 2007, recognizing a loss on the early retirement of debt of approximately
$32.4 million.

The 2003 amount includes $22.3 million awarded to us as a result of the settlement of claims filed in 1993
with the United Nations Compensation Commission for losses suffered as a result of the Iragi invasion of
Kuwait in 1990. The claims were for the loss of four rigs and associated equipment, lost revenue and
miscellaneous expenditures.

In 2004, we completed a subsidiary realignment to separate our international and domestic holding
companies, which included transferring ownership of certain rigs between our domestic and international
subsidiaries. The transaction resulted in a charge of $42.5 million, $5.1 million of which is included in
current tax expense and $37.4 million of which is inctuded in deferred tax expense. The 2001 amount
includes a $47.2 million charge for increased valuation allowances, partially offset by adjustments to prior
years’ tax contingencies. '

In 2004, we sold our land drilling business for a total sales price of $316.5 million, recognizing a gain of
$113.1 million, net of taxes. Operating results for our land drilling operations have historically been
included in contract drilling results. As a result of this sale, however, results of land drilling operations
have been excluded from contract drilling results and are reflected in “Income from discontinued
operations, net of tax effect” for all periods presented. Land rig operations for 2001 (42 days) are
considered immaterial to our results of operations. .

In 2001, cash dividends declared per ordinary share included a regular quarterly cash dividend of $0.0325
per ordinary share approved by our Board of Directors in December 2001. Global Marine historically did
not pay dividends on its common stock.

Capital expenditures include $49.8 million, $63.9 million, $16.6 million, $19.2 million and $6.4 million of
capital expenditures related to our rig building program that had been accrued but not paid as of
December 31, 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The average rig utilization rate for a period represents the ratio of days in the period during which the rigs
were under contract to the total days in the period during which the rigs were available to work.

Average revenues per day is the ratio of rig-related contract drilling revenues divided by the aggregate
contract days, adjusted to exclude days under contract at zero dayrate. The calculation of average revenues
per day excludes non-rig related revenues, consisting mainly of reimbursed expenses, totaling $67.4
million, $32.5 million, $46.9 million, $64.4 million, and $26.5 million for the years ended December 31,
2005, 2004, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. Average revenues per day including these reimbursed
expenses would have been $82,300, $65,100, $67,700, $74,500, and $77,800, for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. The calculation of average revenues per day
excludes all contract drilling revenues related to our platform rig operations.

The GSF High Island Il and the GSF Adriatic VII have been excluded from our calculation of utilization
and average revenues per day effective September 23, 2005 and September 26, 2005, respectively. Both
rigs sustained damage during Hurricane Rita and until it can be determined if the rigs will be repaired or
declared a total constructive loss, we no longer consider them available for contract. Until a determination
is made, however, we still consider them part of our active rig count.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

We are an offshore oil and gas drilling contractor, owning or operating a fleet of 61 marine drilling rigs. Our
fleet includes 45 cantilevered jackup rigs, 11 semisubmersibles and three drillships and two additional :
semisubmersible rigs we operate for third parties under a joint venture agreement. Included in these fleet
numbers are four jackup rigs and one semisubmersible rig that are currently not capable of performing drilling
operations due to damage arising as a result of hurricanes Katrina and Rita. The semisubmersible rig and two of
the jackup rigs are currently undergoing remediations while the damage to the other two jackup rigs is currently
being assessed and one or both of these rigs may be declared constructive total losses (see “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Involuntary Conversion of Long-
Lived Assets and Related Recoveries”). Until a declaration can be made, both jackup rigs are unable to be
contracted and they have been excluded for purposes of our utilization calculations. We also have a contract for
the construction of an additional ultra-deepwater semisubmersible, to be named the GSF Development Driller 111,
and construction is expected to commence in the first quarter of 2006.

We provide offshore oil and gas contract drilling services to the oil and gas industry worldwide on a daily
rate (“dayrate”) basis. We also provide oil and gas drilling management services on either a dayrate or
completed-project, fixed-price (“turnkey™) basis, as well as drilling engineering and drilling project management
services, and we participate in oil and gas exploration and production activities, principally in order to facilitate
the acquisition of turnkey contracts for our drilling management services operations.

We derive substantially all of our revenues from our contract drilling and drilling management services
operations, which depend on the level of drilling activity in offshore oil and natural gas exploration and
development markets worldwide. These operations are subject to a number of risks, many of which are outside
our control. For a discussion of these risks, see “Item 1A. Risk Factors.”

On May 21, 2004, we comipleted the sale of our land drilling business to Precision Drilling Corporation for a
total sales price of $316.5 million in an all-cash transaction. Our land drilling fleet consisted of 31 rigs, 12 of
which were located in Kuwait, eight in Venezuela, four in Saudi Arabia, four in Egypt and three in Oman.
Operating results for our land drilling operations had historically been included in contract drilling results. As a
result of this sale, however, results of land drilling operations have been excluded from contract drilling results
and are reflected in “Income from discontinued operations, net of tax effect” in the consolidated statements of
income for the year ended 2004 and 2003. For further information regarding our land drilling operations, see
“Operating Results—Sale of Land Drilling Fleet (Discontinued Operations).”

Critical Accounting Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are impacted by the accounting policies used and the estimates and
assumptions made by management during their preparation. These estimates and assumptions used in connection
with some of these policies affect the carrying values of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the amounts of revenues and expenses recognized during the period.
Actual results could differ from such estimates and assumptions. We consider our accounting estimates to be
critical in areas where both: (1) the nature of the estimatés and assumptions used are material due to the levels of
subjectivity and judgment necessary to account for highly uncertain matters or the susceptibility of such matters
to change, and (2) the impact of the estimates and assumptions is material to our operating results or financial
condition. Following is a discussion of our critical accounting estimates in the areas of pension costs, properties
and depreciation, impairment, income taxes and turnkey drilling costs.

PENSION COSTS

Our pension costs and liabilities are actuarially determined based on certain assumptions including expected
long-term rates of return on plan assets, rate of increase in future compensation levels and the discount rate used

to compute future benefit obligations. Actual results could differ materially from these actuarially determined
amounts.
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We use a December 31 measurement date for our pension plans. The following assumptions were used to
determine our pension benefit obligations:

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
US.Plans UK. Plans U.S.Plans UK. Plans
Discountrate ........ ...t 5.50% 5.00% 5.75% 525%
Rate of compensation increase . ............. ..., 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
The following weighted average assumptions were used to determine our net periodic pension cost:
Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003

US.Plans UK. Plans US.Plans UK. Plans U.S.Plans U.K. Plans

Discountrate ......................... 575% 5.25% 6.25% 5.50% 6.75% 6.75%
Expected long-term rate of return ... ...... 8.75% 8.50% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 8.00%
Rate of compensation increase ........... 4.00% 4.00% 4.50% 4.25% 4.50% 4.75%

The discount rates used to calculate the net present value of future benefit obligations at December 31, 2005
and 2004, and pension costs for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, for both our U.S. and U.K.
plans are based on the average of current rates earned on long-term bonds that receive a Moody’s rating of Aa or

better.

We employ third-party consultants for our U.S. plans who use a portfolio return model to assess the initial
reasonableness of the assumption on expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. Using asset class return,
variance, and correlation assumptions, the model produces both the expected return and the distribution of
possible returns (at every fifth percentile) for the chosen portfolio. Return assumptions developed by these
consultants are forward-looking gross returns and are not developed solely by an examination of historical
returns. The building block approach used by the portfolio return model begins with the current U.S. Treasury
yield curve, recognizing that expected returns on bonds are heavily influenced by the current level of yields. The
model then adds corporate bond spreads and equity risk premiums based on current market conditions, to develop
the return expectations for each asset class based on the investment mix for our pension plans. The volatility and
correlation assumptions are also forward-looking. They take into account historical relationships, but are adjusted
by our consultants to reflect expected capital market trends.

We also employ third-party consultants for our U.K. plans who assess the reasonableness of the assumption on’
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets based on surveys of various U.K. plans with similar asset
allocations and investment targets. This assumption on expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is compared
to various projections of long-term rates of returns compiled by both U.K. governmental agencies and banks.

Following is a summary of how changes in the assumed discount rate and expected return on assets,
assuming all other factors remain unchanged, would affect the net periodic pension and postretirement benefit
expense for 2005 and related pension and postretirement benefit obligations as of December 31, 2005:

Discount Rate Return on Plan Assets
2005 +0.25% -0.25% +0.25% -0.25%
(In millions)

Net Periodic Pension Cost:

US.plans ........ . $239 $222 §257 8233 $24.6

UK.plans ... $151 $ 132 § 171 8148 $15.4
Accumulated Benefit Obligation:

US.plans .. ... $353.5 $341.6 $365.8 N/A N/A

UK.plans ... ... $161.8 $1546 $176.8 N/A N/A
Projected Benefit Obligation:

US.plans . ... $397.4 $383.6 $411.7 N/A N/A

UK.plans ... o $1793 $167.6 $192.1 N/A N/A




As of December 31, 2005, we had an unrecognized actuarial loss totaling $163.5 miilion for our U.S. and
U.K. plans. This loss will be recognized in net periodicipension cost over the estimated remaining service lives of
the active participants in the plans. Approximately $14.0 million of this loss is expected to be recognized in
2006.

The calculation of our other postretirement benefits costs and liabilities includes the weighted-average
annual assumed rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered medical benefits. This assumption is based on
data available to management at the time the assumption is made. Actual results could differ materially from
estimated amounts.

For further discussion of the components of our net periodic pension cost and funded status of our pension
plans, see Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

PROPERTIES AND DEPRECIATION

Rigs and Drilling Equipment. Capitalized costs of rigs and drilling equipment include all costs incurred in
the acquisition of capital assets including allocations of interest costs incurred during periods that assets are
under construction and while they are being readied for their initial contract. Expenditures for maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Costs of property sold or retired and the related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts; resulting gains or losses are included in income.

Depreciation and amartization. We depreciate our rigs and equipment over their remaining estimated useful
lives. Our estimates of these remaining useful lives may:be affected by such factors as changing market
conditions, technological advances in the industry or changes in regulations governing the industry, among other
things. We rely primarily on external sources of information as well as our own internal market data in assessing
the impact of these factors on estimates of remaining useful lives. Estimates of remaining useful lives are also
impacted by mechanical and structural factors. We review engineering data, operating history, maintenance
history and third party inspections to assess useful lives from a structural and mechanical perspective. In
determining estimated salvage values, we look primarily to external sources of information as well as our own
internal data regarding the values of scrap metal and salvaged equipment. Changes in any of the assumptions
made in estimating remaining useful lives and salvage values of our properties and equipment could result not
only in increases or decreases in annual depreciation expense, but also could impact our criteria for analyzing
properties and equipment for impairment.

We periodically evaluate the remaining useful lives and salvage values of our rigs, giving effect to operating
and market conditions and upgrades performed on these ngs As a result of recent analyses performed on our
drilling fleet, effective January 1, 2004, we increased the remaining lives on certain rigs in our jackup fleet to
13 years from a range of 5.6 to 10.1 years, increased salvage values of these and other rigs in our jackup fleet
from $0.5 million per rig to amounts ranging from $1.2 to $3.0 million per rig, and increased the salvage values
of our semisubmersibles and certain of our drillships from $1.0 million per rig to amounts ranging from $2.5 to
$4.0 million per rig. The effect of these changes in estimates was a reductlon to depreciation expense for the year
ended December 31, 2004, of approx1mately $18.3 mllllon

Impairment of Rigs and Drilling Equipment. We review our long-term assets for impairment when changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable, in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-lived Assets.” SFAS No. 144, among other things, requires that long-lived assets and certain intangibles to
be held and used be reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value and establishes criteria to determine
when a long-lived asset is classified as available for sale. Assets to be disposed of and assets not expected to
provide any future service potential are recorded at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.
We did not incur any impairment charges in 2005. We recorded an impairment charge of approximately $1.2
million in the first quarter of 2004 related to the sale of the platform rig Rig 82 for a nominal sum in connection
with our exit from the platform rig business. We did not incur any impairment charges in 2003.
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Our determination of impairment of rigs and drilling equipment, if any, requires estimates of undiscounted
future cash flows. Actual impairment charges, if any, are recorded using an estimate of discounted future cash
flows. The determination of future cash flows related to our rigs and drilling equipment requires us to estimate
dayrates and utilization in future periods, and such estimates can change based on market conditions,
technological advances in the industry or changes in regulations governing the industry. Significant changes to
the assumptions underlying our current estimates of cash flows could require a provision for impairment in a
future period.

INCOME TAXES

We are a Cayman [slands company and we operate through our various subsidiaries in numerous countries
throughout the world including the United States. Consequently, our tax provision is based upon the tax laws and
rates in effect in the countries in which our operations are conducted and income is earned. The income tax rates
imposed and methods of computing taxable income in these jurisdictions vary substantially. Our effective tax
rate for financial statement purposes will continue to fluctuate from year to year as our operations are conducted
in different taxing jurisdictions. Current income tax expense represents either liabilities expected to be reflected
on our income tax returns for the current year, nonresident withholding taxes, or changes in prior year tax
estimates which may result from tax audit adjustments. Our deferred tax expense or benefit represents the change
in the balance of deferred tax assets or liabilities as reported on the balance sheet. Valuation allowances are
established to reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will not be realized. In order to determine the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities, as well as of
valuation allowances, we must make estimates and assumptions regarding future taxable income, where rigs will
be deployed and other matters. Changes in these estimates and assumptions, as well as changes in tax laws, could
require us to adjust the deferred tax assets and liabilities or valuation allowances, including as discussed below.

Our ability to realize the benefit of our deferred tax assets requires that we achieve certain future earnings
levels prior to the expiration of our NOL carryforwards. We have established a valuation allowance against the
future tax benefit of a portion of our NOL carryforwards and could be required to record an additional valuation
aliowance if market conditions deteriorate and future earnings are below, or are projected to be below, our
current estimates.

As of December 31, 2004, $71.6 miilion of a $76.1 million U.S. NOL was expected to expire unutilized at
the end of 2005. As a result, we carried a $71.6 million valuation allowance against the 2005 expiring NOL. Over
the course of 2005, U.S. taxable income increased significantly as compared to the 2004 estimate to the extent
that only $6.3 million of the 2005 expiring NOL was unutilized at the end of the year. As a consequence, $69.8
million of the U.S. valuation allowance was released which resulted in a $24.9 million U.S. tax benefit in 2005.
As of December 31, 2005 all of the remaining valuation allowance relates to foreign NOL carryforwards.

In August 2005 Hurricane Katrina damaged four of our semisubmersible rigs in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico,
and in late September 2005 Hurricane Rita caused damage to four jackup rigs in the U.S. Guif of Mexico. As a
result of the damage, we recorded, a $127 million involuntary conversion loss offset by $117 miilion in insurance
recoveries. The impact on U.S. taxable income consists of the net $10 million loss, which represented the hull
and machinery deductible, and the $3.8 million we recorded in the fourth quarter related to expected recoveries
from insurers under our loss of hire insurance policy, as discussed in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis—
Involuntary Conversion of Long-Lived Assets and Related Recoveries.” The net tax impact of the $10 million
hull and machinery deductible and the expected $3.8 million insurance recoveries under our loss of hire
insurance is $2.7 million, all of which is included in the $29 million estimated negative impact of the hurricanes
on our 2005 results.

In November 2005 the drillship Glomar Robert. F. Bauer was sold resulting in a gain for financial
accounting purposes of $23.5 million, which was not subject to income taxes in any jurisdiction.
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In December 2004, we completed a subsidiary realignment to separate our U.S. and foreign holding
company structures. This realignment included the redemption of a minority interest in a foreign subsidiary held
by one of our U.S. subsidiaries, along with the intercompany sale of certain rigs between U.S. and foreign
subsidiaries based upon current projections of the long-term geographic areas of operations of these rigs. These
transactions generated a U.S. taxable gain which resulted in a total tax expense of approximately $135.0 million.
This expense was reduced in part by the recognition of $77.4 million of tax benefits resulting from the release of
valuation allowances previously recorded against a portion of our U.S. NOL carryforwards, the recognition of a
$6.8 million tax benefit from the release of deferred tax liabilities and the deferral of $8.3 million of tax expense
related to the gain on the intercompany rig sales. This net deferred tax benefit will be recognized for financial
reporting purposes over the remaining useful lives of the rigs. The total tax expense recognized for financial
reporting purposes was $42.5 million, comprised of $37.4 million of deferred tax expense and $5.1 million of
current tax expense. !

‘We have not provided for U.S. deferred taxes on the unremitted earnings of our U.S. subsidiaries that are
permanently reinvested. Should a distribution be made to us from the unremitted earnings of these U.S.
subsidiaries, we could be required to record additional U.S. current and deferred taxes.

For a discussion of the impact of changes in estimates and assumptions affecting our deferred tax assets and
liabilities, along with the components of our current and deferred income tax provisions, assets and liabilities, see
“Operating Results—Income Taxes” following in this section and Note 11 of Notes To Consolidated Financial
Statements. ‘

TURNKEY DRILLING ESTIMATES

Turnkey drilling projects often involve numerous subcontractors and third party vendors, and, as a result,
the actual final project cost is typically not known at the time a project is completed. We therefore rely on
detailed cost estimates created by our project engineering staff to compute and record profits upon completion of
turnkey drilling projects based on known revenues. These cost estimates are adjusted as final actual project costs
are determined, which may result in adjustments to previously recorded amounts. Further, we recognize
estimated losses on turnkey drilling projects immediately upon occurrence of events which indicate that it is
probable that a loss will be incurred and, depending on the timing of the events leading to loss recognition in
relation to completion of the project, these cost estimates' could be relatively significant to the total project costs.
For a discussion of the estimated costs recognized as part of our turnkey drilling operations at December 31,
2005, and the impact of revisions to estimated prior period costs on our drilling management services operations,
see “Operating Results—Drilling Management Services.”

Current Market Conditions and Trends

Although market conditions continue to improve in all of the world’s major offshore markets, historically
the offshore drilling business has been cyclical, marked by periods of low demand, excess rig supply and low
dayrates, followed by periods of high demand, short rig supply and increasing dayrates. These cycles have been
volatile and have traditionally been influenced by a number of factors, including oil and gas prices, the spending
plans of our customers and the highly competitive nature of the offshore drilling industry. Even when rig markets
appear to have stabilized at a certain level of utilization and dayrates or appear to be improving, these markets
can change swiftly, making it difficult to predict trends or conditions in the market. The relocation of rigs from
weak markets to stable or strong markets may also have a significant impact on utilization and dayrates in the
affected markets. A summary of current industry market conditions and trends in our areas of operations follows:

Worldwide

Our current worldwide market outlook for 2006 is one of continuing increases in demand, the result of
which should be continued high levels of utilization and improvement in dayrates for our drilling rigs with
available uncontracted time. ‘
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As market conditions improve further, we expect that a number of our competitors’ jackups and mid-water
depth semisubmersibles that are currently “cold-stacked” (i.e. minimally crewed with little or no scheduled
maintenance being performed) will continue to reenter the market. In addition, orders for the construction of 52
jackup rigs have been announced with delivery dates ranging from 2006 to 2009. All of these units are
considered to be premium units. In the ultra-deepwater sector, there have been announcements of 16 new high-
specification semisubmersible rigs, including our GSF Development Driller lll, four ultra-deepwater drillships,
and the upgrade of four other semisubmersibles to ultra-deepwater units, with delivery forecast to occur from the
first quarter of 2007 through 2010. A number of the contracts for units currently under construction provide for
options for the construction of additional units, and we believe further new construction announcements are
likely for all classes of rigs pursuant to the exercise of one or more of these options or otherwise. During prior
periods of high utilization and dayrates, the entry into service of newly constructed, upgraded and reactivated rigs
created an oversupply of drilling units and a decline in utilization and dayrates, sometimes for extended periods
of time as rigs were absorbed into the active fleet. We do not currently anticipate that this increase in the number
of active units will have a significant adverse effect on dayrates in the near future as there are indications of
increased demand for these units over the course of the next few years. Any further increase in construction of
new drilling units, however, may exacerbate any adverse effect on future utilization and dayrates.

Deepwater and Ultra-Deepwater Market

Dayrates for deepwater and ultra-deepwater rigs escalated in 2005, reaching historical highs. This trend has
continued into 2006. All deepwater and ultra-deepwater vnits in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico are fully contracted for
virtually all of 2006. Deepwater and ultra-deepwater units outside of the U.S. Gulf of Mexico are also fully
employed through virtually all of 2006. Deepwater requirements of oil companies continue to grow, and, to the
extent the demand created by these new projects cannot be addressed through rig farmouts, the projects will have
to be deferred until 2007 or 2008. Under these market conditions, we anticipate that we will continue to
experience upward pressure on dayrates for our deepwater and ultra-deepwater rigs.

U.S. Gulf of Mexico

Jackup fleet utilization in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico remained above the 90 percent level at the end of 2005,
and associated dayrates continue to rise. All marketed semisubmersibles in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico are currently
fully employed. Terms of contracts began to lengthen in the second quarter of 2005 and this trend continues. The
impact of Hurricanes Katrina and Rita on both the jackup and semisubmersible fleets in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico
has been significant, with hurricane-related damage putting a number of rigs out of service temporarily and in
some cases permanently. We expect that the effect of these storms, which have reduced rig supply, will result in
continued upward pressure on dayrates and longer contract terms in this market in 2006.

North Sea

The market for mid-water depth semisubmersibles, HDHE jackups and standard jackups continues to
improve in the North Sea. We believe the market for HDHE and standard-specification jackup rigs will remain
strong in 2006, with dayrates for these rigs continuing to increase. Dayrates for marketed semisubmersibles in the
North Sea have surpassed historical highs for work commencing in mid 2006 and we expect the demand for the.
rigs to remain strong.

West Africa

Demand in each segment of the West Africa market continues to strengthen. The West Africa jackup fleet is
currently fully utilized, and dayrates are increasing to record levels. The mid-water semisubmersible segment has
also experienced full employment and high dayrates. Similarly, in the deepwater and ultra-deepwater segments,
we have observed strong demand and increasing dayrates. There is no availability within the present offshore
fleet in West Africa, and, as a consequence, we expect rigs to move into the region during 2006.
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Southeast Asia

Dayrates for jackups in the Southeast Asia market surpassed historical highs during 2005. We continue to
expect increasing demand to exdeed the available supply of rigs for 2006, creating shortages of available rigs and
possibly delaying some drilling programs. Due to increases in demand in other jackup markets, we believe it is
unlikely that there will be any significant movements of rigs into this area from other markets in 2006. As a
result, we expect upward pressure on dayrates to continue at least until the delivery of the speculative newbuild
rigs (rigs that are built without a client commitment) currently under construction in Singapore. The newbuild
delivery period currently extends from early 2006 to 2010, with peak delivery activity of speculative rigs
scheduled to occur in 2007.

Middle East and Mediterranean

We expect the jackup market in the Mediterranean to remain in balance through 2006. By early 2007, we
expect the jackup fleet in the Mediterranean to increase by at least two additional units in order to meet demand
requirements associated with announced exploration and development projects. The Gulf of Suez continues to
remain strong with all ten jackups in this area fully utilized. Dayrates for this sector are at all-time highs. Strong
market fundamentals remain intact for the Arabian Gulf due primarily to increasing demand offshore Saudi
Arabia and Qatar. We anticipate the near-term supply shortages and opportunities for significant increases in
dayrates in the Arabian Gulf jackup market to be at least partially offset in 2007 by the delivery of newbuild rigs
currently under construction.

South America and Other

The other markets in which we operate, South America, Canada and the Azerbaijan area of the Caspian Sea,
remain stable and we expect little change through 2006.

Labor markets

We require highly skilled personnel to operate our rigs and provide technical services and support for our
business. Competition for the skilled and other labor required for deepwater and other drilling operations,
including for our turnkey drilling and drilling management services business and our construction projects,
intensifies as the number of rigs activated or added to worldwide fleets or under construction increases. In
periods of high utilization, such as the current period, we have found it more difficult to find and retain qualified
individuals. We have experienced tightening in the relevant labor markets within the last year and have recently
sustained the loss of experienced personnel to our customers and competitors. In response to these market
conditions we have instituted retention programs, including increases in compensation, and have incurred other
costs to retain our work force. We expect these programs, along with the other costs, to increase our offshore
labor costs by approximately $65 million for 2006. If these labor trends continue, they could increase our costs
further or limit our operations.

Proposed Regulations and Insurance Underwriter Requirements

Hurricanes Katrina and Rita caused damage to a number of rigs in the Gulf of Mexico fleet and rigs that
were moved off location by the storms may have done damage to platforms, pipelines, wellheads and other
drilling rigs. The MMS is conducting hearings to determine methods to prevent or reduce the number of such
incidents in the future. Insurance underwriters may require that Gulf of Mexico drilling rigs meet certain
operational criteria as a condition of coverage. MMS regulation or insurance underwriter requirements may
mandate that jackup drilling rigs operating in the Gulf of Mexico operate with a higher air gap during hurricane
season, effectively reducing the water depth in which théy can operate, or that they meet stricter criteria in terms
of the soil conditions in which they operate. The MMS or underwriters may take other steps that could increase
the cost of operations or reduce the area of operations for these rigs, thus reducing their marketability. The MMS
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and insurance underwriters may also require that semisubmersibles operating in the Gulf of Mexico strengthen
their mooring systems or take other action to prevent the rigs from floating off location in adverse weather
conditions, thereby materially increasing the capital costs of these rigs. Implementation of MMS regulations or
requirements of our insurance underwriters may subject us to increased costs or limit the operational capabilities
of our rigs and could materially and adversely affect our operations and financial condition.

Operating Results
OVERVIEW
Data relating to our continuing operations by business segment follows:

Increase Increase
2005 (Decrease) 2004 (Decrease) 2003

($ in millions)

Revenues: (1) ‘
Contractdrilling . ....... ... ... ... ... ... .. $1,664.5 40% $1,191.8 (6)% $1,266.6

Drilling management ........................ 590.3 11% 531.5 1% 528.4
Oilandgas ..., 56.7 79% 31.6 51% 209
Less: intersegment revenues . .. ................ (48.0) 54% 31.2) 305% 7.7

$2,263.5 31%  $1,723.7 5)% $1,808.2

Operating income: (2)

Contractdrilling ......... ... .. ... . ... ... $ 4453 274% $ 119.1 (14)% $ 138.0
Drilling management ........................ 313 367% 6.7 (79% 31.7
Oilland gas ........coovviiiiiiiiin ., 33.9 75% 19.4 62% 12.0

Gain (Loss) on involuntary conversion of long-
lived assets, net of related recoveries and loss of

hire recoveries ..............coiuininonn (6.2) 24.0 —

Gainonsaleofassets ........................ 28.0 27.8 —

Impairment loss on long-lived asset ............. — (1.2) —
Restructuring costs ......... ... .o — — (3.4)
Corporate €Xpenses . .. .. .v.vv v (67.9) 10% (62.0) 18% (52.7)
$ 4644 247% $ 133.8 7% $ 125.6

(1) Revenues for each segment, excluding intersegment revenues, is set forth in Note 14 in the notes to our
consolidated financial statements.
(2) Excludes intersegment revenues and expenses.

Operating income increased by $330.6 million to $464.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2005,
from $133.8 million in 2004, due primarily to higher dayrates and utilization for the drilling fleet, better turnkey
operating performance, increases in oil production, and a $23.5 million gain related to the sale of the drillship
Glomar Robert F. Bauer. These factors were offset in part by higher depreciation expense, due in part to the

addition of the GSF Constellation II cantilevered jackup to our fleet at the end of the third quarter of 2004, higher

depletion expense due to increased oil production, a $10 million loss resulting from the rigs damaged in
Hurricane Rita in September 2005, offset in part by $3.8 million for estimated recoveries from insurers under our
loss of hire insurance policy relating to Hurricane Katrina, and the impact of a number of rigs being unable to
perform driling operations as a result of damage sustained during the hurricanes. (See “Involuntary Conversion
of Long-Lived Assets and Related Recoveries”™ for further discussion of the impact of the hurricanes.) Operating
income for 2004 includes a $24 million gain recorded from an insurance settlement related to the loss of the GSF
Adriatic IV, along with a $25.1 million gain related to the sale of a portion of a working interest in the Broom
Field development project in the North Sea by our oil and gas division. Operating income for 2005 includes a
$4.5 million gain related to deferred consideration earned under that sales agreement.
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Operating income for 2004 increased by $8.2 million to $133.8 million from $125.6 million for 2003 due
primarily to a $24.0 million gain recorded from an insurance settlement related to the loss of the GSF Adriatic IV
and gains totaling $27.8 million recorded in connection with the sale of our oil and gas division’s interest in a
drilling project off the coast of Mauritania and the sale of a portion of our oil and gas division’s working interest
in the Broom Field development project in the North Sea. These gains are discussed in more detail below.
Excluding these gains, along with an impairment loss of $1.2 million recorded in connection with the sale of the
platform rig Rig 82, adjusted operating income for 2004 was $83.2 million, a decrease of $42.4 million from the
prior year. This decrease was dﬁe primarily to lower turnkey drilling performance and lower dayrates and
utilization for our drilling fleet,'particularly our ultra-deepwater and West Africa fleets, offset in part by higher
oil volumes produced. We have provided operating income excluding the unusual items noted above, along with
the corresponding change in operating income, because we believe that the excluded items are unrelated to
operational performance for 2004 and, accordingly, that providing operating income excluding these items will
provide assistance in comparing the results between the periods.

Sale of Land Drilling Business (Discontinued Operationiv)

On May 21, 2004, we completed the sale of our land drilling business to Precision Drilling Corporation for a
total sales price of $316.5 million in an all-cash transaction. Our land drilling business consisted of a fleet of 31
rigs, 12 of which were located in Kuwait, eight in Venezuela, four in Saudi Arabia, four in Egypt, and three in
Oman. As a result of this sale, we recognized a gain of $113.1 million, including a net tax benefit of $1.1 million,
in the second quarter of 2004. - ' '

Land drilling operations have historically been included in our contract drilling segment operating results.
As aresult of this sale, however, results of land drilling operations have been excluded from contract drilling
results and are reflected in “Income from discontinued operations, net of tax effect” in the consolidated
statements of income for all periods presented. The following table lists the contribution of our land rig fleet to
our consolidated operating results for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003
‘ (In millions)
Revenues ............. ... ... .. e $ 43.9 $106.5
Expenses (income): ‘ '
Direct operating expenses ............ e 279 74.2
Depreciation ...................... PP 40 15.7
EXIt COStS . oot e e 6.8 —
Gainonsaleofassets ............ ..o, (112.0) —
117.2 16.6
Provision for income taxes, including a net tax benefit of $1.1 in
2004 related to the gainon sale ofassets ................... 49 1.4
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax effect .......... $1123 $ 152

In connection with the sale of our land drilling business, we implemented an exit plan that included the
closing of four area offices in Kuwait, Oman, Saudi Arabia'and Venezuela, and the separation of approximately
1,400 employees. These employees were primarily rig personnel and related shorebase and area office personnel.
These activities were completed as of December 31, 2004.
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Estimated costs associated with this exit plan were recorded as a pretax charge in the second quarter of
2004. These accrued costs, changes in estimated costs and payments related to these exit activities for the period
from May 21, 2004, to December 31, 2004, are summarized as follows:

Employee
Severance Office
Costs Closures Other Total
(In millions)

Accrued €XIECOSES ..o vt $43 $05 $14 $62
Changes in estimated costs .................... 1.2 (0.3) 0.3) 0.6
Payments ......... ... i i (5.5 0.2) (L.1)  (6.8)
Liability at 12/31/04 ........ ... ... ... .. ..... $— $— $— $—

Gains on Sales of Assets

During the first quarter of 2004, we retired the drillship Glomar Robert F. Bauer from active service. As a
result, we accelerated the remaining depreciation on the rig, which resulted in a $1.5 million charge to
depreciation expense in the first quarter of 2004. As a result of continued improvements in the offshore drilling
markets, we sold this rig in the fourth quarter of 2005 for $25 million and recorded a net gain of $23.5 million.
There was no tax impact related to this transaction.

In September 2004, our oil and gas division completed the sale of 50% of its interest in the Broom Field, a
development project in the North Sea. We received net proceeds of $35.9 million in connection with the sale and
recorded a gain of $25.1 million ($13.3 million net of taxes) in 2004. We retained an eight percent working
interest in this project. Pursuant to the terms of the sale, if commodity prices exceeded a specified amount, we
were also entitled to additional post-closing consideration equal to a portion of the proceeds from the production
attributable to this interest sold through September 2005. In 2005 we recorded an additional gains associated with
this deferred consideration arrangement of $4.5 million ($2.7 million net of taxes), which represents the entire
deferred consideration earned under the sales agreement.

In December 2003, our oil and gas division participated in a drilling project in West Africa off the coast of
Mauritania. Our share of the costs incurred in connection with this project totaled approximately $3.4 million,
$2.9 million of which was classified as unproved oil and gas properties at December 31, 2003. In March 2004,
we sold our interest in this project for approximately $6.1 million and recorded a gain of $2.7 million
($2.0 million net of taxes) in connection with this sale in the first quarter of 2004.
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Asset Impairments

In April 2004, we sold the platform rig Rig 82 for a nominal sum in connection with our exit from the platform

rig business and recognized an impairment loss of approximately $1.2 million in the first quarter of 2004.

CONTRACT DRILLING OPERATIONS

ey
ey

3

Data with respect to our contract drilling operations follows:

Increase/ Increase/
2005 . (Decrease) 2004 (Decrease) 2003

($ in millions, except average revenues per day)

Contract drilling revenues by area: (1) ‘
West Africa................... $ 3565 77% $ 2019 ChH% § 2555

US. Gulfof Mexico ............ 3257 24% 263.7 (10)% 291.6
NorthSea .................... 288.0 40% 205.3 (19% 2533
Southeast Asia ................ 196.9 25% 157.6 3% 153.1
South America ................ 131.5 21% 109.1 326% 25.6
Middle East . ... ... e 118.5 35% 87.8 9% 80.5
Mediterranean Sea . ............ 72.6 19% 61.2 8% 56.7
Other ........ ... ..ot 174.8 66% 105.2 30)% 150.3
$1,664.5 40% $1,191.8 (6)% $1,266.6
Average marine rig utilization by area:
West Africa . .................. 97% 20% 81% 3% 79%
U.S.Gulfof Mexico ............ 96% 1% 95% 0% 95%
North Sea ........ e 89% 20% 74% 1% 73%
Southeast Asia . ............... 97% 11% 87% 1% 86%
South America ................ 100% 22% 82% 14% T2%
MiddleEast ... ................ 97% 8% 90% (10)% 100%
Mediterranean Sea ............. 100% 6% 94% 9% 86%
Other ............ ... ... ... 93% 7% 87% 10% 79%
Total average rig utilization: (3) ....... 96% 12% 86% 1% 85%
Average revenues per day: (2) (3) ... .. $ 78,900 24% $ 63,500 ®H% $65900

Includes revenue earned from affiliates.

Average revenues per day is the ratio of rig-related contract drilling revenues divided by the aggregate
contract days. The calculation of average revenues per day excludes non-rig related revenues, consisting
mainly of reimbursed expenses, totaling $67.4 million, $32.5 million and $46.9 million, respectively, for the
years ended 2005, 2004, and 2003. Average revenues per day including these reimbursed expenses would
have been $82,300, $65,100 and $67,700 for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The calculation of average
revenues per day excludes all contract drilling revenues related to our platform rig operations, which have
historically not been material to our contract drilling operations. We completed our planned exit from our
platform rig operations in the first quarter of 2004.

The GSF High Island Il and the GSF Adriatic VII have been excluded from our calculation of utilization
and average revenues per day effective September 23, 2005 and September 26, 2005, respectively. Both rigs
sustained substantial damage during Hurricane Rita and until it can be determined if the rigs will be repaired
or declared constructive total losses we no longer consider them available for contract.

Year Ended December 31, 2005, Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

Contract drilling revenues increased by $472.7 million to $1,664.5 million for the year ended December 31,

2005, compared to $1,191.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Higher dayrates and utilization for
our drilling fleet accounted for $250.5 million and $170.5 million, respectively, of this increase and higher
reimbursable and other revenues accounted for $35.0 million and $16.7 million, respectively, of the remainder.
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The increase in drilling revenues was due primarily to higher dayrates and utilization throughout our fleet.
We experienced increases in both dayrates and utilization for most of our fleet with the exception of the GSF
Adriatic 1V cantilevered jackup offshore Egypt which sank in the third quarter of 2004, the cantilevered jackups
GSF High Island 11, GSF High Island I and GSF Adriaric VIi, all U.S. Gulf of Mexico, which were idle in the
fourth quarter of 2005 due to damage sustained from Hurricane Rita, lower utilization for the GSF Explorer

drillship, which was in the shipyard during the second quarter of 2003, and the mobilization of the GSF

Adriatic VII cantilevered jackup from Trinidad to the U.S. Gulf of Mexico during the second quarter of 2005.

The mobilization of marine rigs between the geographic areas shown below also affected each area’s
revenues and utilization noted in the table above. These mobilizations were as follows:

Completion
Rig Rig Type From Io _ Date
GSF Jack Ryan Drillship West Africa U.S. Gulf of Mexico  Jan-04
GSF Constellation [ Cantilevered Jackup  Southeast Asia South America May-04
GSF High Island IX Cantilevered Jackup  West Africa Middle East Jun-04
GSF Constellation II Cantilevered Jackup  Shipyard South America - Jun-04
GSF Jack Ryan Drillship U.S. Gulf of Mexico South America Aug-04
GSF Arctic | Semisubmersible U.S. Gulf of Mexico South America Aug-04
GSF Adriatic XI Cantilevered Jackup North Sea Southeast Asia Oct-04
GSF Adriatic X Cantilevered Jackup  U.S. Gulf of Mexico Mediterranean Nov-04
GSF Adriatic I Cantilevered Jackup U.S. Gulf of Mexico West Africa Nov-04
GSF Jack Ryan Drillship South America West Africa Mar-05
GSF Adriatic VII Cantilevered Jackup  South America U.S. Gulf of Mexico  Apr-05
GSF Explorer Drillship U.S. Gulf of Mexico Other (Black Sea) May-05
GSF Arctic | Semisubmersible South America U.S. Gulf of Mexico  Jul-05
GSF Development Driller II Semisubmersible Shipyard U.S. Gulf of Mexico  Nov-05
GSF Aleutian Key Semisubmersible West Africa South America Dec-05

Contract drilling operating income and margin excluding intersegment revenues and expenses increased to
$445.3 million and 27%, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $119.1 million and 10%,

respectively, for 2004, due primarily to higher rig utilization and dayrates as discussed above, offset by higher
reimbursable expenses, repairs and maintenance expenses, labor expenses and other operating costs associated
with higher utilization throughout our worldwide fleet. Reimbursable revenues represent reimbursements from
customers for certain out-of-pocket expenses incurred and have little or no effect on operating income. Repairs
and maintenance expense for 2005 includes approximately $18.7 million related to the reactivation of the GSF
Arctic Il semisubmersible which had been cold-stacked in the North Sea prior to resumption of operations in
September 2005. Contract drilling depreciation expense also increased for the year ended December 31, 2005
compared to 2004 due primarily to the addition of the GSF Constellation Il cantilevered jackup, which was
placed in service during the third quarter of 2004, and to upgrades on several other rigs in our fleet during 2004,

Our contract drilling backlog at December 31, 2005, was $4.8 billion, consisting of $3.8 billion related to
executed contracts and $1.0 billion related to customer commitments for which contracts had not yet been
executed as of February 28, 2006. Approximately $1.9 billion of the backlog is expected to be realized in 2006.
Our contract drilling backlog at December 31, 2004, was $1.7 billion.

Year Ended December 31, 2004, Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2003

Contract drilling revenues decreased by $74.8 million to $1,191.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2004, from $1,266.6 million for 2003. Lower dayrates and utilization for our drilling fleet accounted tor $34.6
million and $21.2 million, respectively, of this decrease, and lower reimbursable and other revenues accounted
for $14.4 million and $4.6 million, respectively, of the remainder. Reimbursable revenues represent
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reimbursements from customers for certain out-of-pocket expenses incurred and have little or no effect on
operating income. Other revenues include rig mobilization fees and miscellaneous fees including fees for labor,
material, rental, handling and incentive bonuses.

The decreases in dayrates and utilization were due primarily to lower dayrates and utilization for our ultra-
deepwater rigs and for our West Africa drilling fleet, along with lower utilization and dayrates for the GSF
Galaxy Il off the eastern coast of Canada, which remained idle for substantially all of the first half of 2004 before
resuming operations in June 2004, and to the exit from substantially all of our platform rig business during the
fourth quarter of 2003. These decreases were offset in part by increases in dayrates for the U.S. Gulf of Mexico
jackup fleet and by the full-period utilization of the GSF .Grand Banks offshore Canada, which was idle for the
first half of 2003.

Contract drilling operating income and margin excluding intersegment revenues and expenses decreased to
$119.1 million and 10%, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $138.0 million and 10.9%,
respectively, for 2003, due primarily to the lower rig utilization and dayrates discussed above along with a
decrease in contract drilling expenses due primarily to lower labor costs, primarily as a result of lower utilization
and the exit from our platform rig operations as discussed above, lower reimbursable expenses and lower repair
and maintenance expenses. Contract drilling depreciation expense also decreased for the year ended December
31, 2004 compared to 2003 as a result of the changing the estimates of remaining depreciable lives and salvage
values for a portion of our fleet, as noted in the discussion of our critical accounting policies and estimates, offset
in part by depreciation expense related to the GSF Constellation I and the GSF Constellation 11, placed in service
in August 2003 and September 2004, respectively, and to upgrades on several other rigs in our fleet.

DRILLING MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Results of operations from our drilling management services segment may be limited by certain factors,
including our ability to find and retain qualified personnel, to hire suitable rigs at acceptable rates, and to obtain and
successfully perform turnkey drilling contracts based on competitive bids. Our ability to obtain turnkey drilling
contracts is largely dependent on the number of such contracts available for bid, which in turn is influenced by
market prices for oil and gas, among other factors. Furthermore, our ability to enter into turnkey drilling contracts
may be constrained from time to time by the availability of GlobalSantaFe or third-party drilling rigs, the supply of
which has become even more constrained due to the number of rigs damaged and destroyed as a result of Hurricane
Katrina and Hurricane Rita. Drilling management services results are also affected by the required deferral of
turnkey drilling profit related to 'wells in which our oil and gas division is either the operator or holds a working
interest. This turnkey profit is credited to our full-cost pool of oil and gas properties and is recognized over future
periods through a lower depletion rate as reserves are produced. Accordingly, results of our drilling management
service operations may vary widely from quarter to quarter and from year to year.

Year Ended December 31, 2005, Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

Drilling management services revenues increased by $58.8 million to $590.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003, from $531.5 million for 2004. Approximately $157.5 million of this increase was
attributable to higher average revenues per turnkey project and $4.8 million was attributable to an increase in
daywork and other revenues, offset in part by an $86.1 million decrease due to a decrease in the number of
turnkey projects completed and a $17.4 million decrease in reimbursable revenues. The increase in average
revenues per turnkey project is a result of obtaining higher contract prices due to increases in drilling costs,
primarily dayrates, which have increased due to higher demand in the offshore drilling rig market. This higher
demand has also limited the availability of drilling rigs, contributing to a decrease in the number of turnkey
projects completed compared to prior year. The offshore drilling rig market has been further constrained by the
number of rigs damaged and destroyed during Hurricane Katrina and Hurricane Rita. The decrease in
reimbursable revenues is due primarily to a decrease in project management operations in 2005. As noted above
in the discussion of our contract drilling results, however, reimbursable revenues represent reimbursements
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received from the client for certain out-of-pocket expenses and have little or no effect on operating income. We
completed 99 turnkey projects in 2005 (80 wells drilled and 19 well completions), compared to 119 turnkey
projects in 2004 (89 wells drilled and 30 well completions).

Drilling management services operating income and margin, excluding intersegment revenues and expenses,
increased to $31.3 million and 5.5%, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2005, from $6.7 million and
1.3%, respectively, in 2004, due primarily to better turnkey performance in 2005. Our turnkey operating results
for 2005 included losses totaling $4.3 million on 3 of the 99 turnkey projects completed compared to losses
totaling approximately $21.1 million on 14 of our 119 projects completed during the year ended December 31,
2004. We also incurred a loss of $0.9 million in connection with our project management operations during the
first quarter of 2004.

Turmnkey drilling projects often involve numerous subcontractors and third party vendors and, as a result, the
actual final project cost is typically not known at the time a project is completed (see “Critical Accounting
Policies and Estimates—Turnkey Drilling Estimates”). Results for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,
were favorably affected by downward revisions to cost estimates of wells completed in prior years totaling $2.7
million and $3.3 million, respectively, which represented approximately less than 1.0% and 1.0%, respectively,
of drilling management services expenses for 2004 and 2003. The effect of these revisions was more than offset,
however, by the deferral of turnkey profit totaling $17.1 million in 20035 and $17.6 million in 2004 related to
wells in which our oil and gas division was either the operator or held a working interest. This turnkey profit has
been credited to our full cost pool of oil and gas properties and will be recognized through a lower depletion rate
as reserves are produced. Estimated costs included in 2005 driiling management services operating results totaled
approximately $33.7 million at December 31, 2005. To the extent that actual costs differ from estimated costs,
results in future periods will be affected by revisions to this amount.

As of December 31, 2005, our drilling management services backlog was approximately $23.5 million, all
of which is expected to be realized in 2006. Our drilling management services backlog was approximately $29
million at December 31, 2004.

Year Ended December 31, 2004, Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2003

Drilling management services revenues increased by $3.1 million to $531.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004, from $528.4 million for 2003. Approximately $97.0 million of this increase was attributable
to higher average revenues per turnkey project and $10.7 million was attributable to an increase in the number of
turnkey projects completed, offset in part by an $83.2 million decrease in reimbursable revenues and a $21.4
million decrease in daywork and other revenues. The decrease in reimbursable revenues is due primarily to a
decrease in project management operations in 2004. As noted above in the discussion of our contract drilling
results, however, reimbursable revenues represent reimbursements received from the client for certain
out-of-pocket expenses and have little or no effect on operating income. We completed 119 turnkey projects in
2004 (89 wells drilled and 30 well completions), compared to 116 turnkey projects in 2003 (85 wells drilled and
31 well completions).

Drilling management services operating income and margin excluding intersegment revenues and expenses,
however, decreased to $6.7 million and 1.3%, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2004, from $31.7
million and 6.1%, respectively, in 2003, due primarily to losses totaling approximately $21.1 million on 14 of our
119 projects completed during the year ended December 31, 2004. We also incurred a loss of $0.9 million in
connection with our project management operations during the first quarter of 2004. Our turnkey operating
results for 2003 include losses totaling $7.8 million on eight of the 116 turnkey projects completed. -

Results for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, were favorably affected by downward revisions to
cost estimates of wells completed in prior years totaling $3.3 million and $4.8 million, respectively, which

represented approximately 1.0% and 1.3%, respectively, of drilling management services expenses for 2003 and
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2002. The effect of these revisions was more than offset, however, by the deferral of turnkey profit totaling $17.6
million in 2004 and $12.1 million in 2003 related to wells in which our oil and gas division was either the
operator or held a working interest. This turnkey profit has been credited to our full cost pool of oil and gas
properties and will be recognized through a lower depletion rate as reserves are produced. Estimated costs
included in 2004 drilling management services operating results totaled approximately $35.3 million at
December 31, 2004.

O1L AND GAS OPERATIONS

We acquire interests in oil and gas properties principally in order to facilitate the acquisition of turnkey
contracts for our drilling management services operations.

Year Ended December 31, 2005, Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

Oil and gas revenues increased by $25.1 million to. $56.7 million for the year to date ended December 31,
2005 from $31.6 million for 2004. Increases in oil production and prices, along with an increase in gas prices
accounted for $23.2 million, $3.4 million, and $4.6 million, respectively, of this increase, offset in part by a
decrease of $6.1 million due to lower gas volumes produced.

Operating income from our oil and gas operations increased by $14.5 million to $33.9 million in 2005 from
$19.4 million in 2004, due primarily to the increased revenues discussed above, offset in part by an increase in
lease operating expenses resulting from increases in oil production.

Year Ended December 31, 2004, Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2003

Oil and gas revenues increased by $10.7 million to $31.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2004
from $20.9 million for 2003. Increases in oil production and prices, along with an increase in gas prices
accounted for $11.1 million, $1.4 million, and $1.7 million, respectively, of this increase, offset in part by a
decrease of $3.5 million due to lower gas volumes produced.

Operating income from our oil and gas operations increased by $7.4 million to $19.4 million in 2004
compared to $12.0 million in 2003, due primarily to the increases in revenues discussed above, offset in part by
increases in lease operating expense as a result of the increases in oil production.

INVOLUNTARY CONVERSION OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS Ali'\ID RELATED RECOVERIES

Four of our semisubmersible drilling rigs in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico, the GSF Arctic 1, the GSF Celtic Sea,
the GSF Development Driller { and the GSF Development Driller I, sustained damage in Hurricane Katrina
during August 2005 that rendered them unable to perform drilling operations. As of December 31, 2005, the GSF
Arctic I and the GSF Celtic Sea-had returned to service and the GSF Development Driller 1] had gone on
contract, although it ceased operations from mid December 2005 until February 2006 due to problems with the
rigid conduit lines of its riser. The GSF Development Driller I is still undergoing remediations which are
currently expected to be completed during the second quarter of 2006.

Less than a month later, in late September, Hurricane Rita caused damage to four of our cantilevered jackup
rigs in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico: the GSF High Island 11, the GSF High Island Il the GSF High Island IV and the
GSF Adriatic VII. As of December 31, 2005, the GSF High Island II is undergoing repairs that are expected to be
completed in second quarter 2006 and the GSF High Island Ill and the GSF Adriatic VII are still being evaluated
to determine if either can be repaired or whether one or both will be declared a total constructive loss, as
discussed below. Subsequent to year end 2005 the GSF High Island IV entered the shipyard and remediations are
expected to be completed in second quarter 2006.
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All of these rigs are covered for physical damage under the hull and machinery provision of our insurance
policy, which carries a deductible of $10 million per occurrence. In addition, the GSF Arcric I, the GSF
Development Driller [ and the GSF Development Driller IT are covered by loss of hire insurance under which we
are reimbursed for 100 percent of each rig’s contracted dayrate for up to a maximum of 270 days per rig
following 60 days (the “waiting period”) of lost revenue.

Qur insurance policy provides that if claims for a single event are filed under both the hull and machinery
and loss of hire sections of the policy, we will bear only a single deductible from that occurrence of no more than
the highest deductible from any individual section. Hurricanes Katrina and Rita are each considered to be a
separate occurrence. Based on remediations completed for the GSF Development Driller Il and the remediations
in progress for the GSF Development Driller I, the amount of revenue we lost during the waiting period will be
higher than the $10 million hull and machinery deductible. Therefore, the 60-day waiting period under our loss of
hire insurance will serve as the only deductible for the Hurricane Katrina event. The application of the 60-day
waiting period provision with regard to the GSF Development Driller I and GSF Development Driller 11,
however, is complicated by the fact that at the time of the hurricane both rigs were undergoing thruster
remediations and accordingly, we had already put our underwriters on notice as to a claim under the loss of hire
section of the policy. As discussed at “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Investing and Financing Activities” in December 2005 we recorded $3.8 million for loss
of hire recoveries with respect to the GSF Development Driller I but did not record any loss of hire recoveries
with respect to the GSF Development Driller 11. We also did not receive any loss of hire proceeds with respect to
the GSF Arctic I, which resumed operations within 60 days of Hurricane Katrina. None of the jackup rigs
damaged during Hurricane Rita were insured for loss of hire and, therefore, a single $10 million hull and
machinery deductible will apply for damage to the rigs caused by Hurricane Rita.

Based on preliminary and ongoing evaluations of the damage sustained by these rigs, we have recorded an
estimated involuntary conversion loss totaling approximately $127 million against the carrying value of the rigs.
The majority of this loss has been offset by expected insurance recoveries totaling $117 million, which is
included in “Accounts receivable from insurers” on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2005.
The net loss of $10 million discussed above represents our deductible for Hurricane Rita, and is included in
“Involuntary conversion of long-lived assets, net of related recoveries and loss of hire recoveries” in the
Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2005. Capital costs incurred to remediate
damage to the rigs will increase the capitalized value of the rigs. While we have recorded our best estimates of
the damage sustained by each rig based on the information presently available, further evaluations or other
developments could result in an adjustment to our financial results in future periods.

Upon completion of our damage assessment on the GSF High Island [1I and GSF Adriatic VII, which should
be completed by the end of the first quarter of 2006, it is possible that one or both of the rigs will be out of
service for approximately two years if refurbishment and upgrade is undertaken or be permanently removed from
service if declared to be a constructive total loss. During Hurricane Rita, both rigs had their legs sheared off and
their drilling capabilities destroyed, together with other damage. If either the GSF High Island 11l or GSF
Adriatic VI is declared to be a constructive total loss, we will be entitled to receive the total insured values of the
rigs of $55 million and $70 million, respectively, of which $4.4 million and $15.0 million, respectively, is
already included in “Accounts receivable from insurers,” as discussed above. Taking into consideration the losses
already recorded on the GSF High Island [il and GSF Adriatic VII, they have a current book value of $1.2
million and $1.4 million, respectively, which is equal to their estimated salvage value. If the rigs are declared to
be a constructive total loss, we will record gains on the GSF High Island 11l and GSF Adriatic VII of $49.4
million and $53.6 million, respectively, which is equal to the remaining insurance proceeds not already recorded
as “Accounts receivable from insurers,” less their book value. Title to the rigs will then pass to our insurance
underwriters. In the event that we determine to remediate the damage to the rigs and return them to service, we
will be entitled to receive up to $38.5 million for the GSF High Island I1I and up to $49 million for the GSF
Adriatic VII, which includes the amounts already recorded in “Accounts receivable from insurers,” as discussed
above, towards the repair costs and we will maintain ownership of the rigs. Any capital costs incurred to
remediate damage to the rigs will increase the capitalized value of the rigs.
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We estimate that for 2005, the damage inflicted by Hurricane Katrina and Hurricane Rita had a negative
impact of $29 million, or $0.12 per diluted ordinary share, on our net income. This was due primarily to reduced
revenue from the damaged rigs along with the pre-tax $10 million deductible, as discussed above. These negative
. effects were partially offset by reductions in operating expenses, the estimated loss of hire recovery from
insurers, and tax benefits associated with the reduction in revenue and the $10 million deductible.

We do not expect the damage inflicted by Hurricane Katrina and Hurricane Rita to have a material impact
on our 2006 financial position or results of operations.

In August 2004, the jackup GSF Adriatic IV encountered well control problems, caught fire and sank while
drilling in the Mediterranean Sea off the coast of Egypt. All of our personnel on board the rig were evacuated
safely, although the rig was a total loss. We received insurance proceeds totaling $40.0 million, net of our
deductible, and recorded a gain of $24.0 million, net of taxes, in the third quarter of 2004.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005, increased by $3.7 million to
$60.2 million, or 2.7% of revenues, from $56.5 million, or 3.3% of revenues, for 2004. The increase in general
and administrative expenses was due primarily to pension expense for two retiring executives, amortization of
restricted stock, which was granted to employees in February 2005 and is expensed over a three-year period, and
costs associated with training and support our of new enterprise resource management software system, which
was placed into service on January 1, 2005, along with costs incurred in connection with the implementation of
this system in our foreign offices.

General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2004, increased by $8.7 million to
$56.5 million, or 3.3% of revenues, from $47.8 million, or 2.6% of revenues, for 2003. The increase in general
and administrative expenses was due primarily to an increase in management bonus accruals from relatively low
2003 levels, as discussed below, along with an increase in consulting fees incurred as part of our implementation
of the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. .

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE

Interest expense was $41.3 million for 2005, $55.5 million for 2004 and $67.5 million for 2003. The
decrease in interest expense for 2005 was due primarily to the retirement of Global Marine’s 7 3% Notes due
2007 in the second quarter of 2004 and the repurchase of the Zero Coupon Convertible Debentures during the
second and third quarters of 2003, as discussed below in “Liquidity and Capital Resources—Investing and
Financing Activities.” The decrease in interest expense in: 2004 compared to 2003 is due primarily to the
retirement of Globa! Marine Inc.’s 7¥3% Notes due 2007.0n June 30, 2004.

We capitalized $38.1 million, $41.0 million and $34.9 million of interest costs in 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, primarily in connection with our rig expansion program discussed in “Liquidity and Capital
Resources—Investing and Financing Activities.”

Interest income increased to $22.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, from $12.3 million in
2004, due primarily to an increase in our average rate of return on our investments. Interest income increased to
$12.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, from $11.2 million in 2003, due primarily to an increase in
our average cash and marketable securities balances for 2004 as a result of the receipt of proceeds from the sale
of our land rig fleet, the insurance proceeds from the loss of the GSF Adriatic 1V and the sale of a portion of our
oil and gas division’s interest in the Broom Field, offset iri part by funds used to redeem Global Marine Inc.’s
7V8% Notes due 2007..
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On June 30, 2004, we completed the redemption of the entire outstanding $300 million principal amount of
Global Marine Inc.’s 7 V5% Notes due 2007, for a total redemption price of $331.7 million, plus accrued and
unpaid interest of $7.1 million. We recognized a loss on the early retirement of debt of approximately $21.0
million, net of tax of $11.4 million, in the second quarter of 2004. We funded the redemption price from our
existing cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities balances.

Other income of $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, consists of realized gains on
marketable securities related to our nonqualified pension plans, offset by costs incurred to settle a Canadian tax
audit for the years 1998-2001 and expenses incurred to support our employees after hurricanes Katrina and Rita.
Other expense of $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, includes a loss of $3.8 million on a
commodity derivative entered into in the first quarter of 2004, offset in part by realized gains of $1.6 million on
the sale of marketable securities related to one of our nonqualified pension plans. Other income totaled $25.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2003, due primarily to $22.3 million awarded to us in 2003 as a result of
the settlement of claims filed in 1993 with the United Nations Compensation Commission (“UNCC”) for losses
suffered as a result of the Iraqi invasion of Kuwait in 1990. The claims were for the loss of four rigs and
associated equipment, lost revenue and miscellaneous expenditures.

INCOME TAXES

Our effective income tax rates for financial reporting purposes were approximately 13%, 68% and 12% for
the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The effective rate for 2004 includes the effect
of a $42.5 million charge related to the subsidiary realignment discussed below. Excluding the $42.5 million
charge, our income tax expense would have been $24.1 million, which when compared to our pretax income
from continuing operations of $98.0 million, yields an effective tax rate of 25% for 2004. The 2005 effective tax
of 13% is lower than 2004 due primarily to a change in our mix of earnings between domestic earnings and
foreign earnings with an increase in foreign earnings in low tax jurisdictions. Earnings in low taxed jurisdictions
increased significantly in 2005 along with a $23.5 million book gain on the sale of the drilling rig Glomar
Robert. F. Bauer that was not subject to tax. U.S. taxable income also increased, resulting in the utilization of
$71.6 million of an expiring U.S. NOL. The utilization of this portion of the NOL triggered the release of a
previously recorded valuation allowance and the recognition of a $24.9 million tax benefit. The 2005 effective
tax rate was further reduced due to lower statutory (ax rates in various foreign jurisdictions and a net tax benefit
from the resolution of tax audits and tax return filings at amounts lower than had been previously estimated. The
effective rate for 2003 was reduced by the effect of the $22.3 million UNCC award, partially offset by a net total
of $3.2 million of other discrete items. Excluding these settlements, our adjusted pretax income from continuing
operations for 2003 would have been $106.9 million, which when compared to the tax provision from continuing
operations of $15.0 million, yields an adjusted effective tax rate of 14%. The adjusted effective tax rate of 25%
for 2004 is higher than 2003 due primarily to a change in our mix of earnings between domestic earnings and
foreign high and low tax jurisdictions. The tax provision for 2003 also includes a net deferred tax benefit of $11
million related to the release of a valuation allowance against our U.K. NOL carryforwards. We determined
during 2003 that, based on earnings projections at that time, it was more likely than not that the remaining NOL
carryforwards balance in this jurisdiction would be fully utilized. The effective tax rates for 2004 and 2003
excluding the effects of these unusual items are presented because we believe that these effective tax rates will
provide assistance in comparing the results between the periods.

In December 2004, we completed a realignment of our subsidiaries to separate our international and
domestic holding companies to improve operational and financial efficiencies within our organization. This
realignment included the redemption of a minority interest in a foreign subsidiary held by one of our U.S.
subsidiaries, along with the intercompany sale of certain rigs between U.S. and foreign subsidiaries based upon
current projections of the long-term geographic areas of operations of these rigs. These transactions generated a
U.S. taxable gain which resulted in a total tax expense of approximately $135.0 million. This expense was
reduced in part by the recognition of $77.4 million of tax benefits resulting from the release of valuation
allowances previously recorded against a portion of our U.S. NOL carryforwards, the recognition of a $6.8
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million tax benefit from the release of deferred tax liabilities and the deferral of $8.3 million of tax expense
related to the gain on the intercompany rig sales. This net deferred tax benefit will be recognized for financial
reporting purposes over the remaining useful lives of the rigs. The total tax expense recognized for financial
reporting purposes was $42.5 million, comprised of $37.4 million of deferred tax expense and $5.1 million of
current tax expense.

We intend to permanently reinvest all of the unremitted earnings of our U.S. subsidiaries in their businesses.
As aresult, we have not provided for U.S. deferred taxes on $1.1 billion of cumulative unremitted earnings at
December 31, 2005. Should a distribution be made to us from the unremitted earnings of our U.S. subsidiaries,
we could be required to record additional U.S. current and deferred taxes. It is not practicable to estimate the
amount of deferred tax liability associated with these unremitted earnings.

TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES

Until December 2005, Kuwait Petroleum Corporation, through its wholly owned subsidiary, SFIC Holdings
(Cayman), Inc., owned a portion of our outstanding shares. At December 31, 2004, Kuwait Petroleum
Corporation held 43,500,000 ordinary shares, approximately 18.4% of our ordinary shares. During 2005, we
repurchased all 43,500,000 ordinary shares from Kuwait Petroleum Corporation with the net proceeds of public
offerings of an equal number of ordinary shares, as described under “Liquidity and Capital Resources—Investing
and Financing Activities.” Kuwait Petroleum Corporation’s ownership interest had entitled it to certain rights
pursuant to an intercompany agreement entered into with Santa Fe International in connection with the initial
public offering of Santa Fe International and amended in connection with the Merger.

The intercompany agreement, as amended, provided that, as long as Kuwait Petroleumn Corporation and its
affiliates, in the aggregate, owned at least 10% of our outstanding ordinary shares, the consent of SFIC Holdings
was required to change the jurisdiction of any of our existing subsidiaries or incorporate a new subsidiary in any
jurisdiction in a manner materially adversely affecting the rights or interests of Kuwait Petroleum Corporation
and its affiliates or to reincorporate us in another jurisdiction and provide SFIC Holdings rights to access
information concerning us. The intercompany agreement, as amended, also provided that SFIC Holdings had the
right to designate up to three representatives to our Board of Directors based on SFIC Holdings” ownership
percentage. As of December 31, 2005, all of SFIC Holdings’ representatives on cur Board of Directors had
resigned.

We still maintain an agency agreement with a subsidiary of Kuwait Petroleum Corporation that obligates us
to pay certain agency fees in return for their sponsorship that allows us to operate in Kuwait. During the year
ended December 31, 2005, we paid $34,000 of agency fees pursuant to the agency agreement. We did not earn
any revenues from KOC or its affiliate during 2005. During the year ended December 31, 2004, we earned
revenues from KOC and its affiliate for performing land contract drilling services in the ordinary course of
business totaling $20.5 million and paid $211,000 of agency fees pursuant to the agency agreement. During the
year ended December 31, 2003, we earned revenues from KOC and its affiliate for performing land contract
drilling services in the ordinary course of business totaling $45.6 million and paid $444,000 of agency fees
pursuant to the agency agreement. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, we had accounts receivable from affiliates of
Kuwait Petroleum Corporation of $0.1 million and $2.1 million, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

SOURCES OF LIQUIDITY

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities and cash generated
from operations. As of December 31, 2005, we had $837.3 million of cash, cash equivalents and marketable
securities, all of which were unrestricted. We had $808.6 million in cash, cash equivalents and marketable
securities at December 31, 2004, all of which were unrestricted. Cash generated from operating activities totaled
$591.2 million, $224.8 million and $399.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.
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We entered into an agreement dated June 22, 2003, to sell the Glomar Robert F. Bauer drillship for $25
million. We completed this sale in November 2005, and we recorded a $23.5 million gain in the fourth quarter of
200s.

INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

During the first quarter of 2005, we took delivery of our two ultra-deepwater semisubmersibles ordered
from PPL Shipyard PTE, Ltd. of Singapore (“PPL”), the GSF Development Driller I and the GSF Development
Driller I1. Construction costs for the GSF Development Driller I totaled approximately $309 million, excluding
an estimated $105 million of capital spares, startup expenses, customer-required modifications and mobilization
costs, $31 million related to the thruster defect discussed below, and $75 million of capitalized interest. We have
incurred a total of approximately $421 million of capitalized costs related to the GSF Development Driller I,
excluding capitalized interest, as of December 31, 2005. Construction costs for the GSF Development Driller 11
totaled approximately $309 million, excluding an estimated $79 million of capital spares, startup expenses,
customer-required modifications and mobilization costs, $28 million related to the thruster defect discussed
below, and $47 million of capitalized interest. We have incurred a total of approximately $414 million of
capitalized costs related to the GSF Development Driller 11, excluding capitalized interest, as of December 31,
2005. Both of these rigs sustained hurricane-related damage during 2005. We expect to recover the costs to
remediate the hurricane-related damage to these rigs from our underwriters.

During the second quarter of 2005 we discovered a defect and resulting damage in the thruster nozzles on
the two new ultra-deepwater semisubmersibles. Both rigs were being remediated for the thruster defect and
resulting damage when they sustained additional damage as a result of Hurricane Katrina. This additional
damage further delayed the start of the initial drilling contracts for the GSF Development Driller Il and the GSF
Development Driller I. Remediations of GSF Development Driller 1] have been completed and the rig went on
contract in November 2005. However, in December 2005 problems were noted on the rigid conduit lines on the
riser and the rig was no longer able to perform drilling operations. Evaluations are ongoing, but a temporary
modification allowed the rig to resume drilling operations in February 2006. Remediation of this problem will
also be required on the GSF Development Driller I riser and the spare riser string shared by both rigs. The
estimated cost to remediate the problem for the risers on both rigs and the spare riser is expected to be between
$10 million to $15 million and will be added to the capitalized cost of the rigs. The riser damage, the thruster
defect and damage from the hurricanes have further delayed the start of the initial drilling contract for the GSF
Development Driller I until the second quarter of 2006.

As noted above, we currently expect that the cost to remediate the thruster equipment for both rigs,
exclusive of continued capitalized interest, will be approximately $59 million. We expect the costs to remediate
the Hurricane Katrina damage to the two semisubmersibles to total approximately $97 million. Any costs not
recovered from the manufacturer or our insurance underwriters in respect of the repair and replacement costs for
the thruster damage or hurricane damage will be added to the capitalized cost of the rigs. We will also make
claims under our loss of hire insurance for the rigs for the periods required to remediate the damage arising from
both the thruster defect and Hurricane Katrina. Under our loss of hire insurance, after the 60-day waiting period
we are entitled to reimbursement for our full dayrate for up to 270 days. Significant unresolved issues remain as
to the proper application of the loss of hire waiting periods, which could lead to substantial differences in the
amount of the loss of hire recovery. The underwriters have formally reserved their rights to decline coverage for
the thruster damage claims on the rigs in respect of both the hull and machinery and loss of hire coverage. As a
result, in 2005 we have recorded estimated loss of hire insurance recoveries equal to $3.8 million with respect to
the GSF Development Driller I, which is the amount we deem to be probable under the assumption that the rig
will bear two consecutive 60 day waiting periods, one for the thruster damage claim and one for the hurricane
damage claim. The GSF Development Driller Il was not out of service longer than the combined 120 day waiting
period and therefore no loss of hire recoveries have been recorded for the rig. When the loss of hire claims are
resolved with the underwriters, the amount of loss of hire recoveries could be different than the amount currently
recorded.
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We expect to fund all remaining construction and startup costs of these rigs from our existing cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securities balances, and future cash flow from operations.

Due to the extent of remediation, coupled with the long delivery times for critical replacement parts, the
GSF Development Driller I is not projected to start work until the second quarter of 2006, as noted above. The
GSF High Island I shifted during Hurricane Rita causing the legs to become damaged when attempts were made
to jack down the rig. We were able to successfully jack the rig down in January 2006 and following leg repairs it
is expected that the rig will go back to work at the start of the second quarter of 2006. The GSF High Island IV
experienced damage to its spud cans during Hurricane Rita. The rig is currently undergoing repairs and we
expect the rig will go back to work in the second quarter of 2006. At this time we do not know when, or if, the
GSF High Island HI ot the GSF Adriatic VII jackups will return to work but we expect to complete our
assessment of the rigs by the end of the first quarter of 2006. The downtime for these repairs and possible
permanent loss of two of these rigs will have an adverse effect on our results of operations in future periods (see
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Involuntary
Conversion of Long-lived Assets and Related Recoveries™). In addition, estimated start dates could be further
delayed if the magnitude of the damage is greater than expected based on our preliminary assessment or if the
remediation is delayed by supply shortages, shipyard unavallablllty, unforeseen engineering issues, adverse
weather conditions or other complications.

We expect to fund any costs incurred associated with remediating the rigs damaged by Hurricane Katrina
and Hurricane Rita, to the extent they are not recovered from the insurance underwriters, from our existing cash,
cash equivalents and marketable securities balances and future cash flow from operations.

BP America Production Company (“BP”) has awarded a three-year contract to the GSF Development
Driller II for its Atlantis project in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico. The estimated 20-well project, which has a total
contract value of approximately $200 million, commenced in November 2005 following correction of the
thruster defect and damage sustained by Hurricane Katrina. BHP Billiton Petroleum (Americas) Inc. has awarded
a two-year contract to the GSF Development Driller I for a project in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico. The multi-well
exploration and development program is expected to commence early in the second quarter of 2006, following
correction of the thruster defect and damage caused by Hurricane Katrina, and has a total contract value of $157
million.

In the first quarter of 2006 we entered into a contract with Keppel FELS, a shipyard located in Singapore,
for construction of a new ultra-deepwater semisubmersible, to be named the GSF Development Driller I11.
Construction costs, excluding capital spares, startup costs, capitalized interest, customer-required modifications
and mobilization costs, are estimated to total approximately $590 million, with construction commencing in the
first quarter of 2006 and delivery currently expected during the first quarter 2009. In the first quarter of 2006 we
made an initial shipyard progress payment of $53 million. We anticipate funding construction through our
existing cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities balances and future cash flow from operations. We have
entered into a letter of intent with a major oil and gas company for a seven-year contract for the rig, providing for
expected revenues of approximately $1 billion, and expect to finalize a drilling contract in the first quarter of
2006.

During 2005, we issued a total of 43,500,000 ordinary shares in two public offerings and in each case
immediately used the net proceeds to repurchase an equal number of our ordinary shares from a subsidiary of
Kuwait Petroleum Corporation at a price per share equal to the net proceeds per share we received in the
offering. The first offering was in April 2005, in which we issued 23,500,000 ordinary shares at an aggregate
price, net of underwriting discount, of approximately $799.5 million ($34.02 per share). The second offering was
in December 2005, in which we issued 20,000,000 ordinary shares at an aggregate price, net of underwriting
discount, of approximately $977.1 million ($48.86 per share). In connection with these transactions, we incurred
a total of $0.9 million of expenses, which were recorded as a reduction of additional paid in capital. There was no
change in the number of outstanding shares as a result of the two transactions as the shares repurchased were
immediately cancelled.

54




During the second quarter of 2005, we repurchased $599.2 million principal amount at maturity of the then
outstanding $600 million principal amount of Global Marine Inc.’s Zero Coupon Convertible Debentures due
September 23, 2020 for a total purchase price of $356.1 million, representing $299.8 million in principal
payment and $56.3 million in imputed interest. On August 18, 2005, we redeemed the remaining $800,000
principal amount at maturity, bringing the total repurchase price of $356.6 million, representing $300.3 million in
principal payment and $56.3 million in imputed interest. We purchased all of the debentures for repurchase at a
purchase price of $594.25 per $1,000 of principal amount, plus additional imputed interest for all securities
purchased after June 23, 2005, calculated from June 23, 2005 to the date of purchase. We funded the repurchase
price from our existing cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities balances.

Our debt to capitalization ratio, calculated as the ratio of total debt, including undefeased capitalized lease
obligations, to the sum of total shareholders’ equity and total debt, was 10.5% at December 31, 2005, compared
to 17.5% at December 31, 2004. Our total debt includes the current portion of our capitalized lease obligations,
which totaled $9.8 million at both December 31, 2005 and 2004.

FUTURE CASH REQUIREMENTS

At December 31, 2005, we had total long-term debt and capital lease obligations, including the current
portion of our long-term debt and capital lease obligations, of $584.0 million and shareholders’ equity of
$4,957.5 million. Long-term debt, including current maturities, consisted of $297.1 million (net of discount) 7%
Notes due 2028; $253.5 (net of discount) 5% Notes due 2013; and capitalized lease obligations, including the
current portion, totaling $33.3 million. We were in compliance with our debt covenants at December 31, 2005.

Annual interest on the 7% Notes is $21.0 million, payable semiannually each June and December. Annual
interest on the 5% Notes is $12.5 million, payable semiannually each February and August. No principal
payments are due under the 7% Notes or the 5% Notes until the maturity date.

We may redeem the 7% Notes and the 5% Notes in whole at any time, or in part from time to time, at a
price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest, if any, to the date of redemption, plus a
premium, if any, relating to the then-prevailing Treasury Yield and the remaining life of the notes. The
indentures relating to the 5% Notes and the 7% Notes contain limitations on our ability to incur indebtedness for
borrowed money secured by certain liens and on our ability to engage in certain sale/leaseback transactions. The
7% Notes continue to be obligation of Global Marine Inc., and GlobalSantaFe Corporation has not guaranteed
this obligation. GlobalSantaFe Corporation is the sole obligor under the 5% Notes.

We expect 2006 contract drilling costs, excluding reimbursable expenses, to be around $1.04 billion. The
projected increases are due to expected increases in labor costs, as discussed under “Current Market Conditions
and Trends—Labor Markets,” changes in our fleet, primarily due to the addition of the GSF Development Driller
I and GSF Development Driller 11, increases in repair and maintenance expense, and assumed increase in
insurance costs, retention programs, stock based compensation expense, and pension expense.

Total capital expenditures for 2006 are currently estimated to be approximately $568.9 million, including
$24.0 million in startup costs, correction of the thruster defect, as discussed above, and customer-required
modifications for the GSF Development Driller I, $237.3 million in construction costs for the new
semisubmersible under construction, $45.0 million to remediate hurricane-related damage to our rig fleet, $124.0
million for major upgrades to the fleet, $107.8 million for other purchases and replacements of capital
equipment, $17.3 million for capitalized interest, and $13.5 million (net of intersegment eliminations) for oil and
gas operations.

. During the first quarter of 2005, we began a program to reactivate the semisubmersible GSF Arcric II, which
had been cold-stacked in Invergordon, Scotland, since May 2003. We spent approximately $25.3 million to
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reactivate this rig, including $3.2 million of capitalized costs. The reactivation of the GSF Arctic Il was
completed in September 2005 and the rig immediately went on contract.

On March 3, 2006, our Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase up to $2 billion of our ordinary
shares from time to time. This repurchase plan supersedes our prior plan, authorized by our Board of Directors in
August 2002 authorizing the purchase of up $150 milliQn of our ordinary shares, under which we repurchased a
total of $51.4 million of shares in 2002. No repurchasesunder the prior plan were made during 2005 and the
repurchases of shares from a subsidiary of Kuwait Petroleum Corporation described above were not made
pursuant to the plan.

We have various commitments primarily related to our debt and capital lease obligations, leases for office
space and other property and equipment as well as commitments for construction of drilling rigs. We expect to

fund these¢ commitments from our existing cash and cash equivalents and future cash flow from operations.

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations at December 31, 2005:

Payments Due by Period

) Less than 1
Contractual Obligation Total Year 1-3 Years 3-5Years After 5 Years

. {In millions)
Principal payments on long-term debt (1) . .......... $ 5500 $— $— $— $£550.0
Interest payments ........ooviviiiinnieiinnnn.. . 5663 33.5 67.0 67.0 398.8
Capital lease obligations (2) ..................... 53.0 9.8 11.6 3.6 28.0
Non-cancellable operating leases ................. 30.0 7.7 13.7 4.8 3.8
Construction and development commitments (3) .. ... , 24.0 24.0° — — —

Total contractual obligations . ... ............. ©$1,2233 $75.0 $92.3 $75.4 $980.6

(1) Represents cash payments required. Long-term debt, totaled $550.6, net of unamortized discount, at
December 31, 2005. 5

(2) Represents cash payments required. A portion of these obligations is recorded on our balance sheet at net
present value at December 31, 2005.

(3) Consists of commitments related to the remaining newbuild construction. This number does not include the
payments for the new semisubmersible, as the commitment was not entered into until 2006. We expect to
spend $237.3 million in 2006 for the construction of the new rig.

As part of our goal of enhancing long-term shareholder value, we have from time to time considered and
actively pursued business combinations, the acquisition or construction of suitable additional drilling rigs and
other assets or the possible sale of existing assets, If we decide to undertake a business combination or an
acquisition or additional construction projects, the issuance of additional debt or additional shares could be
required. We expect that sometime in the future we will likely replace the jackups GSF Adriatic IV, which was
lost in a fire, and the GSF High Island il and GSF Adriatic VII, if either is declared a constructive total loss,
through the acquisition or construction of replacement assets. We frequently bid for or negotiate with customers
regarding multi-year drilling contracts, including, from time to time, contracts that would necessitate the
construction of a new drilling rig to fulfill the contract. Our current strategy is to consider construction of a new
floating rig only when expected cash flows from the anticipated contract would cover a substantial portion of the
capital cost of the rig.

We believe that we will be able to meet all of our current obligations, including working capital
requirements, capital expenditures, lease obligations, construction and development commitments and debt
service, from our existing cash, cash equivalents and total marketable securities balances, along with future cash
flow from operations.
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RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued a revision of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS123R”). This statement revises FASB
Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and requires companies to recognize the cost
of employee stock options and other awards of stock-based compensation based on the fair value of the award as
of the grant date. This statement supersedes Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, which
allowed companies to compute compensation cost for each employee stock option granted as the amount by
which the quoted market price of the common stock on the date of grant exceeds the amount the employee must
pay to acquire the stock. We currently account for our stock option and stock-based compensation plans using the
intrinsic-value method under APB Opinion No. 25. The FASB has now deferred the effective date of SFAS123R
to the beginning of the first annual period that begins after June 15, 2005. We have adopted this statement
effective January 1, 2006, using the modified prospective application as prescribed under SFAS123R and this
will be reflected in our 2006 results. Based on our unvested stock option grants as of December 31, 2005, we
estimate that the adoption of this statement in 2006 will reduce the 2006 net income by approximately $6.0
million, or $0.02 per diluted share. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS123R to have a material impact on our
consolidated cash flows or financial position.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
INTEREST RATE RISK '

In 1998, we entered into fixed-price contracts for the construction of two dynamically positioned, ultra-
deepwater drillships, the GSF C.R. Luigs and the GSF Jack Ryan, which began operating in April and December
2000, respectively. Pursuant to two 20-year capital lease agreements, we subsequently novated the construction
contracts for the drillships to two financial institutions (the “Lessors”), which now own the drillships and lease
them to us. We have deposited with three large foreign banks (the “Payment Banks™) amounts equal to the
progress payments that the Lessors were required to make under the construction contracts, less a lease benefit of
approximately $62 million (the “Defeasance Payment”). In exchange for the deposits, the Payment Banks have
assumed liability for making rental payments required under the leases and the Lessors have legally released us
as the primary obligor of such rental payments. Accordingly, we have recorded no capital lease obligations on
our balance sheet with respect to the two drillships.

In October 2005, we provided consent to allow the sale of the Lessor of the GSF C.R. Luigs from one large
foreign bank to another. In exchange for our consent, if we exercise our right to terminate the lease between
March 1, 2006 and December 31, 2006, we will receive consideration which will equal any sum we are obligated
to pay on our termination of the lease. In addition, if we exercise our termination rights during this period, we
will no longer bear the estimated $20.9 million in interest rate risk associated with the GSF C.R. Luigs lease,
discussed below. Upon termination of the lease, we will become the owner of the rig. The Lessor has the right to
defer termination of the lease up to December 31, 2006 and has agreed to pay us $4.0 million if termination is
deferred past June 30, 2006 and a further $3.6 million if termination is deferred past September 30, 2006. These
amounts will reduce the carrying value of the rig. Our present intent is to exercise our right to terminate the lease
in the second quarter of 2006.

We continue to have interest rate risk in connection with the fully defeased financing lease for the GSF Jack
Ryan and until termination, the GSF C.R. Luigs, as discussed above. The Defeasance Payment earns interest
based on the British Pound Sterling three-month LIBOR, which approximated 8.00% at the time of the
agreement. Should the Defeasance Payment earn less than the assumed 8.00% rate of interest, we will be
required to make additional payments as necessary to augment the annual payments made by the Payment Banks
pursuant to the agreements. If the December 31, 2005, LIBOR rate of 4.63% were to continue over the next
seven years, we would be required to fund an additional estimated $23.0 million and $20.9 million for the GSF
Jack Ryan and GSF C.R. Luigs, respectively, during that period. The estimated combined amount for the two rigs
of $43.9 million represents a decrease from the amount estimated as of December 31, 2004 due to the yearly
progress payments made by the Payment Banks. If the December 31, 2004 LIBOR rate of 4.883% were to
continue over the eight years subsequent thereto, the additional funding requirement would have been an
estimated $48.5 million for both rigs. Any additional payments made by us pursuant to the financing leases
would increase the carrying value of our leasehold interest in the rigs and therefore be reflected in higher
depreciation expense over their then-remaining useful lives. We do not expect that, if required, any additional
payments made under these leases would be material to our financial position, results of operations or cash flows
in any given year.

In addition to these defeased financing leases, we also have entered into fixed-for-floating interest rate
swaps with a total notional amount of $175 million as of both December 31, 2005 and 2004, effectively
converting a portion of our 5% Notes into variable-rate debt (see “Fair Value Risk” below). We do not consider
our exposure to interest rate fluctuations as a result of these swaps to be material to our financial position, results
of operations or cash flows. ‘ ;

FAIR VALUE RISK

Investments. The objectives of our investment strategyl are safety of principal, liquidity maintenance, yield
maximization and full investment of all available funds. As a result, the portion of our short-term investments
portfolio classified as cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2005, consisted primarily of high credit quality
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commercial paper, U.S. Government Agency securities and money market funds, all with original maturities of
less than three months. We believe that the carrying value of these investments approximated market value at
December 31, 2005, due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

We have outsourced the management of portions of our marketable securities portfolio to third party
investment firms. These firms manage the investment of these securities with the goal of optimizing returns on
these investments while investing within guidelines set forth by our management. Pursuant to the requirements of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities,” we have classified our marketable securities portfolio as available-for-sale, and have recorded these
marketable securities at fair value on our Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2005 and 2004. In
addition, we held other investments in debt and equity securities also classified as available-for-sale held in
connection with certain nonqualified pension plans, which were included in “Other assets” at December 31, 2005
and 2004. Unrealized gains included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet at December 31, 2005 and 2004, related to our total marketable securities portfolio totaled approximately
$0.5 million and $4.4 million, respectively. Due to the short term maturities of our securities we do not believe
that we have a material fair value risk associated with changes in interest rates.

Long-term debt. Qur long-term debt is subject to fair value risk due to changes in market interest rates.

The Zero Coupon Convertible Debentures due 2020 were purchased during 2005 and accordmgly, none
were outstanding at December 31, 2005.

The estimated fair value of our $300 million principal amount 7% Notes due 2028, based on quoted market
prices, was $351.1 million at December 31, 2005, compared to the carrying amount of $297.1 million (net of
discount). The estimated fair value of our $250 million principal amount 5% Notes due 2013, based on quoted
market prices, was $248.3 million at December 31, 2005, compared to the carrying amount of $253.5 million (net
of discount). The carrying value of our 5% Notes due 2013 includes a mark-to-market adjustment of $4.0 million
at December 31, 2008, related to fixed-for-floating interest rate swaps discussed below.

The estimated fair value of our 7% Notes due 2028, based on quoted market prices, was $340.4 million at
December 31, 2004, compared to the carrying amount of $297.0 million (net of discount). The estimated fair
market value of our 5% Notes due 2013, based on quoted market prices, was $252.0 million at December 31,
2004, compared to the carrying amount of $257.4 million (net of discount). The carrying value of our 5% Notes
due 2013 included a mark-to-market adjustment of $7.9 million at December 31, 2004, related to
fixed-for-floating interest rate swaps discussed below.

We have engaged third-party consultants to assess the impact of changes in interest rates on the fair values
of our long-term debt based on a hypothetical ten-percent increase in market interest rates. Market interest rate
volatility is dependent on many factors that are impossible to forecast, and actual interest rate increases could be
more severe than the hypothetical ten-percent change. :

Based upon these sensitivity analyses, if prevailing market interest rates had been ten percent higher at
December 31, 2005, and all other factors affecting our debt remained the same, the fair value of our 7% Notes
due 2028, as determined on a present-value basis using prevailing market interest rates, would have decreased by
$22.6 million or 6.4% and the fair value of the 5% Notes due 2013 would have decreased by $7.3 million or
2.9%. Under comparable sensitivity analysis as of December 31, 2004, the fair value of the 7% Notes due 2028
would have decreased by $23.3 million or 6.8% and the fair value of the 5% Notes due 2013 would have
decreased by $7.9 million or 3.1%.

‘We manage our fair value risk related to our long-term debt by using interest rate swaps to convert a portion
of our fixed-rate debt into variable-rate debt. Under these interest rate swaps, we agree with other parties to
exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between the fixed-rate and floating-rate amounts, calculated by
reference to an agreed-upon notional amount.
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As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, we had outstanding fixed-for-floating interest rate swaps with an
aggregate notional amount of $175 million, through February 2013. These interest rate swaps are intended to
manage a portion of the fair value risk related to our 5% Notes due 2013 (the “5% Notes”). Under the terms of
these swaps, we have agreed to pay the counterparties an interest rate equal to the six-month LIBOR rate less
0.247% to 0.5175% on the notional amounts and we will receive the fixed 5.00% rate. The total estimated
aggregate fair value of these swaps at December 31, 2005 and 2004 was an asset of $4.0 million and $7.9
million, respectively.

The change in the estimated fair values of our long-term debt and corresponding interest rate swaps from
2004 to 2005 is a result of changes in the long-term treasury bond rates.

In connection with the sensitivity analyses performed relative to the fair values of our long-term debt
discussed above, similar analyses were performed to assess the impact of market interest rate movements on the
fair values of the fixed-for-floating swaps related to the 5% Notes. Based upon these analyses, if prevailing
market interest rates had been ten percent higher at December 31, 2005, and all other factors affecting these
swaps had remained the same, the aggregate fair value of the fixed-for-floating interest rate swaps, as determined
on a present-value basis using prevailing market interest rates, would have decreased by $5.5 million or 120%.
Under comparable sensitivity analysis as of December 31,2004, the fair value would have decreased by $5.4
million or 68.4%.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

We are subject to foreign currency risk throughout our international operations (see “Item 1A. Risk

- Factors—We May Suffer Losses as a Result of Foreign Exchange Restrictions, Foreign Currency Fluctuations
and Limitations on Qur Ability to Repatriate Income or Capital to the U.S.”). In certain cases we attempt to
minimize this currency risk by seeking international drilling contracts payable in local currency in amounts that
approximate our estimated local currency-based operating costs and in U.S. dollars for the balance of the
contract. We incurred foreign currency exchange losses totaling approximately $2.3 million in 2005. Our foreign
currency exchange losses totaled approximately $6.1 million in 2004 and were immaterial in 2003. Due to the
multiple foreign currencies impacting our various areas of operations, we cannot accurately quantify through a
sensitivity analysis the impact of changes in these currencies. We have not historically entered into financial
hedging transactions to manage risks relating to fluctuations in currency exchange rates. We may, however, enter
into such transactions in the future. '

CREDIT RISK

The market for our services and products is the offshore oil and gas industry, and our customers consist
primarily of major integrated international oil companies and independent oil and gas producers. We perform
ongoing credit evaluations of our customers and have not historically required material collateral. We maintain
reserves for potential credit losses, and such losses have been within management’s expectations.

Our cash deposits were distributed among various banks in our areas of operations throughout the world as
of December 31, 2005 and 2004. In addition, we utilize external money managers to invest excess cash in
accordance with our investment guidelines. These managers: have invested our funds in commercial paper,
money market funds, asset backed securities, government issues and corporate obligations. Each of these
investments comply with our investment guidelines in terms: of security type, credit rating, duration, portfolio and
issuer exposure limits. As a result, we believe that credit risk in such instruments is minimal.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of GlobalSantaFe Corporation

We have completed an integrated audit of GlobalSantaFe Corporation’s 2005 and 2004 consolidated
financial statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, and audits of its
2003 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
income and other comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of GlobalSantaFe Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits
of these statements in accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’ assessmertt, included in “Management’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting” appearing under Item 9A that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is
fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005,
based on criteria established in /nternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting
includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
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assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston, Texas
March 6, 2006
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GLOBALSANTAFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
($ in millions, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Revenues:
Contract drilling . ... .. . $1,640.2 $1,176.9 1,263.9
Drilling management Services .. ... 566.6 515.2 5234
Ol and gas .. ... ' 56.7 31.6 209
Total tevenues . ... 2,263.5 1,7237  1,808.2
Expenses and other operating items;
Contract drilling .. ... .. o 9353 811.5 876.4
Drilling management SEIViCes . . ... ... ..ttt 535.3 508.5 491.7
Oiland gas .. ... 14.8 7.2 5.8
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ......... . ... .. ... 2753 256.8 257.5
Involuntary conversion of long-lived assets, net of related recoveries and
loss of hire recoveries ....... ... ... . i 6.2 (24.0) —
Gainonsaleof assets ......... ... . i (28.0) (27.8) —
Impairment loss on long-tived assets . ....... ... ... .. — 1.2 —
Restructuring CostS . ... .ttt e — — 34
General and administrative . . ... . . i 60.2 56.5 47.8
Total expenses and other operating items .. ............c..ovoon. 1,799.1  1,589.9 1,682.6
Operating iInCome ... ... .. ... i 464.4 133.8 125.6
Other income (expense):
INTerest EXPENSE o o ottt e et e (41.3) (55.5) (67.5)
Interest capitalized . ....... ... .. .. 38.1 41.0 349
Interestincome .. ... .. i 227 12.3 11.2
Loss on early retirement of fong-termdebt . ....... ... ... ... ... .. ... — 32.4) —
O R 2.1 (1.2) 25.0
Total other income (eXpense) . ... ..., 21.6 (35.8) 3.6
Income before income taxes ......... ... i 486.0 98.0 129.2
Income tax provision (benefit):
CUITent tax PrOVISION . . . vttt ittt e e et e e 57.1 52.6 26.7
Deferred tax provision (benefit) ............ .. ... . ... i, 5.8 14.0 (11.7)
Total income tax provision ............... i, 62.9 66.6 15.0
Income from continuing Operations .....................c.o..... 423.1 314 1142
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax effect ............ — 1123 15.2
Netincome ... ... i 423.1 143.7 129.4
Other comprehensive income (Ioss) ......... .. ... i i (29.1) 2.7 (4.0)
Total comprehensive income ...t $ 3940 $ 1464 $ 1254
Earnings per ordinary share (Basic):
Income from continuing Operations ..................coviiiiiin $§ 176 $ 013 $ 049
Income from discontinued operations ... .............. ... i — 0.48 0.06
NetinCome ... ... e $ 176 § 061 $§ 055
Earnings per ordinary share (Diluted):
Income from continuing OPErations .. ... ......evveeeeennnnnnnnnnn, $§ 173 % 013 $ 049
Income from discontinued operations ............. ... ... ..., ‘ — 0.48 0.06
NELINCOE . ottt e e e e $ 173 § 061 $ 055

See notes to condensed consolidated financia) statements.
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GLOBALSANTAFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(% in millions)

ASSETS
. December 31,
2005 2004
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ... ...... ... i i $ 5626 $ 606.7
Marketable SECULILIES .. ...ttt et e 274.7 201.9
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $4.8 in 2005 and $3.5 in
2004 . . 431.5 355.5
Accounts receivable from insurers . ..........: e ' 123.6 53
Costs incurred on turnkey drilling projects in progress . ............couuvinn.... 242 18.5
Prepaid expenses ............ .. .. i, O 39.6 31.7
Other current assets . .....covvvinvnennnnn.s R R 13.3 5.0
Total CUITENt BS80S . ..ttt e e 1,469.5 1,224.6
Properties and equipment:
Rigs and drilling equipment, less accumulated depreciation of $1,615.1 in 2005 and
$1,381.910 2004 . o 38365 3,570.8
Construction in progress . ................... e e 4537 736.2
Oil and gas properties, full-cost method, less accumulated depreciation, depletion and
amortization of $25.8in 2005 and $17.7in2004 . ....... ... . ... ... ... ... 27.6 229
Net properties and equipment ............ P 4317.8 43299
Goodwill ..... ... e 339.0 338.1
Deferred tax assets .. .......oviiiiiiiniia... P 28.2 32.8
Ot @SSt . o ot e 67.6 72.8
Total assets ... ... B L $6,222.1 $5,998.2

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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GLOBALSANTAFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
($ in millions)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

December 31,

2005 2004
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ... ... e $ 2363 $ 2108
Current maturities of long-termdebt .. ......... ... . ..o ol — 350.7
Accrued compensation and related employee costs . ........ ... .. o i, 84.1 76.2
ACCTUEd INCOME LAXES L\ v v et ettt et et ettt e ettt 7.8 27.1
ACCTUE IMEETESt & . . vttt ettt ettt e e e 6.4 6.4
Deferred reVenUE . . ..ot i e e e e 19.6 23.5
Dividends payable . ... ...t P 55.0 17.7
Capital lease obligations ......... ... ... 9.8 9.8
Other accrued liabilities ................ PP 56.7 50.8
Total current liabilities ... ... .. it 475.7 773.0 -
Long-termdebt ........ ... ... ... i PP 550.6 554.4
Capital lease obligations .. ... it e 23.6 31.6
Deferred INCOME tAXES . o . vttt ettt ettt e ettt e e et e 154 39.0
Pension and other post retirement benefits .. ....... ... ... ... o ool 122.1 61.7
Other long-term Habilities .. ... ... ... . i i 77.2 72.1
Commitments and contingencies (Note 6) ........ ... ... i, — —
Shareholders’ equity:

Ordinary shares, $0.01 par value, 600 million shares authorized, 244,741,077 shares

and 235,957,481 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005 and 2004,

TESPECHVELY . oot 24 24
Additional paid-incapital ....... ... . . 3,246.9 3,004.3
Retained earnings ........ ... 1,779.2  1,501.6
Accumulated other comprehensiveloss .......... ... .o i il (71.0) 41.9)

Total shareholders’ equity ... ... ... ... i 4,957.5 44664
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ............cvvurivennneeneennn. $6,222.1 $5,998.2

See notes to consolidated financial statements

65




GLOBALSANTAFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
(In millions)

Cash flows from operating activities:

L= 1T e) 1= $ 4231 $143.7 $1294
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash flows from operating
activities: .
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ........................ 2753 260.8 2732
Deferred INCOME taXeS . . oo vttt e ittt et 5.8 9.5 (10.3)
Involuntary conversion of long:lived assets, net of related recoveries
andloss of hirerecoveries ......... ... ... .. ... . . .. 6.2 24.0) —
Gainonsaleofassets ............ . (28.0) (139.8) —
Impairment loss on long-lived asset ........ ... iiiiii.nn — 1.2 —
Loss on early retirement of long-termdebt . ...................... — 324 —
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable ................... (73.6) (27.1) 28.3
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense and other current assets . . (22.8) (5.7) 10.1
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable ... . ................... 39.6 (16.9) 27.0)
Decrease in accrued liabilities .. ............... ... .. .. ..... 5.0) 34) (14.2)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues ........................ .5 0.4 (16.3)
(Decrease) increase in other long-term liabilities . ................. 20.3 (16.0) 5.1
Payment of imputed interest on the Zero Coupon Bond Debentures . . . (56.3) — —
Other, net . .. .. e 14.1 9.7 22.1
Net cash flows from operating activities .. ............... 591.2 224.8 399.9
Cash flows from investing activities: l
Capital expenditures ........ ...t (411.0) (405.6) (468.6)
Proceeds from sale of land drilling fleetassets .. ...................... — 316.5 —
Proceeds from involuntary conversion of long-lived asset ............... — 40.0 —
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment ................... 29.6 58.7 59
Purchases of held-to-maturity marketable securities ................... — (169.2) (364.5)
Proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity marketable securities .. ... .. - 254.0 219.0
Purchases of available-for-sale marketable securities .................. (882.0) (195.9) (19.2)
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale marketable securities .......... 815.6 1159 8.5
‘ Net cash flow provided by (used in) investing activities . ... (447.8) 144 (618.9)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividend payments ....... ... . ... . e e (108.2) (46.9) 36.7)
Issuance of long-term debt, net of discount . .................. .. .. ... — — 249 4
Payments onlong-termdebt ........ ... .. ... i ol (300.3) (331.7) —_
Deferred financing Costs .. ... .. ..uiiint i —_ — (3.6)
Lease/leaseback transaction ... ............oieniirrreneniien... — — 37.0
Payments on capitalized lease obligations ........................... 9.9) ©.7 (8.3)
Payments for ordinary shares repurchased and retired .................. (1,776.6) — —
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares ........................... 2,007.5 435 9.7
O her . e e — 0.5 6.3
Net cash flow (used in) provided by financing activities . ... (187.5) (344.3) 2538
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents . ......................... 44.1) (105.1) 34.8
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ......................... 606.7 711.8 677.0
Cash and cash equivalents atend of period ...................... ... .... $ 5626 $6067 $711.8

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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GLOBALSANTAFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at December 31,2002 ...............
Net income
Minimum pension liability adjustment . . . ..
Change in unrealized loss on securities . ...

Comprehensive income
Exercise of employee stock options
Shares issued under other benefit plans .. ..
Dividends declared
Shares canceled
Income tax benefit from stock option

exercises

Balance at December 31, 2003
Net income
Minimum pension liability adjustment . . . ..
Unrealized gain on securities

Comprehensive income
Exercise of employee stock options
Shares issued under other benefit plans .. ..
Dividends declared .. ..................
Shares canceled
Income tax benefit from stock option

exercises

Balance at December 31,2004 . ..............
Net income
Minimum pension liability adjustment . . . ..
Unrealized gain on securities

Comprehensive income
Exercise of employee stock options
Shares issued under other benefit plans . . ..
Shares issued
Shares canceled
Restricted stock

Shares issued

Expense accrual
Dividends declared
Income tax benefit from stock option

exercises

See notes to consolidated financial statements

Accumulated

. Additional Other
Ordinary Shares Paid-in  Retained Comprehensive
Shares Par Value Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Total
($ in millions)
232,889,001 $23 $2,950.1 $1,322.4 $(40.6) $4,234.2
‘ — — — 129.4 — 129.4
— — — —_ amn 7.7
— — — — 3.7 3.7
125.4
374,160 — 4.6 — — 4.6
264,949 — 6.6 — —_— 6.6
— — — (41.0) — (41.0)
(12,006) — (0.3) — — (0.3)
— L (1.9) — — (1.9)
233,516,104 23 2,959.1  1,4108 (44.6) 4,327.6
—_ — ’ — 143.7 — 143.7
— — — —_ 1.7 1.7
— — — — 1.0 1.0
146.4
2,234,423 0.1 38.0 — — 38.1
250,928 — 6.7 — — 6.7
_ — — (52.9) — (52.9)
(43,974) — (1.2) — — (1.2)
— — 1.7 — — 1.7
235,957,481 2.4 3,0043 1,501.6 41.9) - 4,466.4
— — — 423.] — 4231
— — — — (25.2) (25.2)
— — — — (3.9 3.9
394.0
8,577,761 — 2274 — — 2274
205,525 — 44 — — 44
43,500,000 04 1,775.3 — — 1,775.7
(43,500,000) 0.4) (1,776.2) — — (1,776.6)
310 — —_ — — —
— — 4.3 — — 43
— — — (145.5) — (145.5)
— — 7.2 — — 72
— —_ 0.2 — — 0.2
244,741,077 $24 $ 3,2469 $1,779.2 $(71.0) $ 49575
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Note 1—Basis of Presentation and Description of Business

GlobalSantaFe Corporation is an offshore oil and gas drilling contractor, owning or operating a fleet of

. 61 marine drilling rigs. As of December 31, 2005, our fleet included 45 cantilevered jackup rigs, 11
semisubmersibles, including the GSF Development Driller I and GSF Development Driller 11, which were
delivered in February 2005 and March 20035, respectively, three drillships, and two additional semisubmersible
rigs we operate for third parties under a joint venture agreement. Included in these fleet amounts are four jackup
rigs and one semisubmersible rig that are currently not capable of performing drilling operations due to damage
arising as a result of hurricanes Katrina and Rita. The semisubmersible rig and two of the jackup rigs are
currently undergoing remediations while the damage to the other two jackup rigs is currently being assessed and
one or both rigs may be declared a constructive total loss (see Note 5). We also provide oil and gas drilling
management services on either a dayrate or completed-project, fixed-price (“turnkey”) basis, as well as drilling
engineering and drilling project management services, and we participate in oil and gas exploration and
production activities. Subsequent to December 31, 2005, we entered into a contract for the construction of an
additional ultra-deepwater semisubmersible, to be named the GSF Development Driller 111.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of GlobalSantaFe Corporation
and its consolidated subsidiaries. Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms “we,” “us” and “our” refer to
GlobalSantaFe Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries. The consolidated financial statements and related
footnotes are presented in U.S. dollars and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current
presentation. i

DIVIDENDS

Holders of GlobalSantaFe Ordinary Shares are entitled to participate in the payment of dividends in
proportion to their holdings. Under Cayman Islands law, we may pay dividends or make other distributions to our
shareholders, in such amounts as the Board of Directors.deems appropriate from our profits or out of our share
premium account (equivalent to additional paid-in capital) provided we thereafter have the ability to pay our
debts as they come due. Cash dividends, if any, will be declared and paid in U.S. dollars. We declared cash
dividends of $55.0 million that were unpaid as of December 31, 2005.

SALE OF LAND DRILLING BUSINESS (DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS)

On May 21, 2004, we corﬁpleted the sale of our land drilling business to Precision Drilling Corporation for a
total sales price of $316.5 million in an all-cash transaction. As a result of this sale, we recognized a gain of
$113.1 million, including a net tax benefit of $1.1 million.
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Land drilling operations have historically been included in our contract drilling segment operating resuits.

The following table lists the contribution of our land rig fleet to our consolidated operating results for the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003
(In millions)
ReVenUEes . ... i e e $ 439 $106.5
Expenses (income):
Direct operating eXPENSES . . ...\t vv vt vrennnneenneenns 27.9 74.2
Depreciation ............... e 4.0 15.7
ExXitcosts ... v e 6.8 —
Gainonsale of @ssets . ....... ...t (112.0) —
117.2 16.6
Provision for income taxes, including a net tax benefit of $1.1 in
2004 related to the gainonsaleof assets ................... 4.9 14
Income from discontinued Qperations, netoftaxeffect .......... $112.3 $ 152

In connection with the sale of our land drilling business, we implemented an exit plan that included the
closing of four area offices in Kuwait, Oman, Saudi Arabia and Venezuela, and the separation of approximately
1,400 employees. These employees were primarily rig personnel and related shorebase and area office personnel.
These activities were completed as of December 31, 2004,

Accrued costs, changes in estimated costs and payments related to these exit activities for the period from
May 21, 2004, to December 31, 2004, are summarized as follows:

Employee
Severance Office
Costs Closures Other Total
(In millions)

Accrued eXItCOSES + ..ottt $43 $05 $14 $6.2
Changes in estimated costs .................... 1.2 0.3) 0.3) 0.6
Payments ..........coviiininnneeannnn.. (5.5) 0.2) (1.1) (6.8)
Liability at 12/31/04 . ...... ... ... ... ....... $— $— $— $—

Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

We consolidate all of our majority-owned subsidiaries and joint ventures over which we exercise control
through either the joint venture agreement or related operating and financing agreements. We account for our
interest in other joint ventures using the equity method. All material intercompany accounts and transactions are
eliminated in consolidation.

CASH EQUIVALENTS AND MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Cash equivalents include highly liquid debt instruments with remaining maturities of three months or less at
the time of purchase. We changed the classification of our held-to-maturity marketable securities portfolio to
available-for-sale, effective June 30, 2004, and have recorded these marketable securities at fair value in our
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Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2005 and 2004. Realized and unrealized gains and losses related to
these marketable securities are calculated using the specific identification method. Unrealized gains and losses
are included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31,
2005. In addition, we hold securities in connection with certain nonqualified pension plans, which are also
classified as available-for-sale (see Note 3). We recorded $0.6 million of realized gains and $0.2 million of
realized losses related to our marketable securities portfolio in 2005. Realized gains and losses related to our
marketable securities portfolio were immaterial for 2004. With respect to available-for-sale securities held in
connection with certain nonqualified pension plans, we recorded realized gains of $3.1 million in 2005 and $1.6
million in 2004. We did not record any realized gains or losses related to these securities in 2003.

PROPERTIES AND DEPRECIATION ‘

Rigs and Drilling Equipment. Capitalized costs of rigs and drilling equipment include all costs incurred in
the acquisition of capital assets including allocations of interest costs incurred during periods that assets are
under construction or while the they are being readied for their initial contract. Expenditures for maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Costs of property sold or retired and the related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts; resulting gains or losses are included in income.

We periodically evaluate the remaining useful lives:and salvage values of our rigs, giving effect to operating
and market conditions and upgrades performed on these rigs. As a result of recent analyses performed on our
drilling fleet, effective January 1, 2004, we increased the remaining lives on certain rigs in our jackup fleet to 13
years from a range of 5.6 to 10.1 years, increased salvage values of these and other rigs in our jackup fleet from
$0.5 million per rig to amounts ranging from $1.2 to $3.0 million per rig, and increased the salvage values of our
semisubmersibles and certain of our drillships from $1.0 million per rig to amounts ranging from $2.5 to $4.0
million per rig. The effect of these changes in useful lives was a reduction to depreciation expense for the year
ended December 31, 2004, of approximately $18.3 million.

During the first quarter of 2004, we retired the drillship Glomar Robert F. Bauer from active service. As a
result, we accelerated the remaining depreciation on the rig, which resulted in a $1.5 million charge to
depreciation expense in the first quarter of 2004. As a result of continued improvements in the offshore drilling
markets, we sold this rig in the fourth quarter of 2005 for $25 million and recorded a net gain of $23.5 million.
There was no tax impact related to this transaction.

Rigs and drilling equipment included $1.1 billion of assets recorded under capital leases at both
December 31, 2005 and 2004. Accumulated amortization of assets under capital leases totaled $288.2 million and
$236.0 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

We review our long-term assets for impairment when changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the asset may not be recoverable, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment and Disposal of Long-lived Assets.” SFAS No. 144 requires
that long-lived assets and certain intangibles to be held and used be reported at the lower of carrying amount or
fair value. Assets to be disposed of and assets not expected to provide any future service potential are recorded at
the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. We did not record any impairment charges during the
year ended December 31, 2005. In April 2004, we sold the platform rig Rig 82 for a nominal sum in connection
with our exit from the platform rig business and recognized an impairment loss of approximately $1.2 million in
the first quarter of 2004. We did not record any impairment charges during the year ended December 31, 2003.

Qil and Gas Properties. We use the full-cost method of accounting for oil and gas exploration and
development costs. Under this method of accounting, we capitalize all costs incurred in the acquisition,
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exploration and development of oil and gas properties and amortize such costs, together with estimated future
development and dismantlement costs, using the units-of-production method.

Costs of offshore unproved properties and development projects are not amortized until they are fully
evaluated. Unproved oil and gas properties totaled approximately $1.4 million and $0.3 million at December 31,
2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively. All unproved properties are reviewed periodically to ascertain if
impairment has occurred. If the results of an assessment indicate that the properties are impaired, the amount of
the impairment is added to the capitalized costs to be amortized. Costs of proved oil and gas properties that
exceed the present value of estimated future net revenues are charged to expense.

Sales of proved and unproved properties are accounted for as adjustments of capitalized costs with no gain
or loss recognized, unless such adjustments would significantly alter the relationship between capitalized costs
and proved reserves of oil and gas attributable to a cost center, in which case the gain or loss is recognized in
income. Abandonments of properties are accounted for as adjustments of capitalized costs with no loss
recognized.

In September 2004, our oil and gas division completed the sale of 50% of its interest in the Broom Field, a
development project in the North Sea. We received net proceeds of $35.9 million and because we sold 50% of
our reserve base, causing a significant alteration in the relationship between our capitalized cost and proved
reserves in our North Sea cost center, we recorded a gain of $25.1 million ($13.3 million net of taxes) in
connection with this sale. We retained an eight percent working interest in this project. Pursuant to the terms of
the sale, if commodity prices exceeded a specified amount, we were also entitled to additional post-closing
consideration equal to a portion of the proceeds from the production attributable to this interest sold through
September 2005. In 2005 we recorded an additional gain associated with this deferred consideration arrangement
of $4.5 million ($2.7 million net of taxes), which represents the entire deferred consideration earned under the
sales agreement.

In December 2003, our oil and gas division participated in a drilling project in West Africa off the coast of
Mauritania. Our share of the costs incurred in connection with this project totaled approximately $3.4 million,
$2.9 million of which was classified as unproved oil and gas properties at December 31, 2003. In March 2004,
we sold our interest in this project for approximately $6.1 million and as a result of this being the only project in
our African cost center we recorded a gain of $2.7 million ($2.0 million net of taxes) in the first quarter of 2004.

INTERSEGMENT TURNKEY DRILLING PROFITS

We defer all turnkey drilling profit related to wells in which one of our oil and gas subsidiaries was the
operator and defer turnkey profit up to the share of our oil and gas subsidiaries’ costs in properties in which our
oil and gas division holds a non-operating working interest. This turnkey profit is credited to our full cost pool of
oil and gas properties and 1s generally recognized through a lower depletion rate as reserves are produced.

GOODWILL

We test goodwill annually for impairment (and in interim periods if certain events occur indicating that the
carrying value of goodwill and/or indefinite-lived intangible assets may be impaired) in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

We have defined reporting units within our contract drilling segment based upon economic and market
characteristics of these units. All of the goodwill recorded in connection with the merger (the “Merger”) of Santa
Fe International Corporation (“Santa Fe International”) and Global Marine Inc. (“Global Marine”) has been
allocated to the jackup drilling fleet reporting unit. The estimated fair value of this reporting unit for purposes of
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our annual goodwill impairment testing is based upon the present value of its estimated future net cash flows,
utilizing a discount rate based upon our cost of capital. We have completed our goodwill impairment testing for
2005 and were not required to tecord a goodwill impairment loss.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Our contract drilling business provides crewed rigs to customers on a dayrate basis. Dayrate contracts can be
for a specified period of time or the time required to drill a specified well or number of wells. Revenues and
expenses from dayrate drilling operations, which are classified under contract drilling services, are recognized on
a per-day basis as the work progresses. Lump-sum fees received as compensation for the cost of relocating
driiling rigs from one major operating area to another, whether received up-front or upon termination of the
drilling contract, are recognized as earned, which is generally over the primary term of the related driiling
contract.

We also design and execute specific offshore drilling or well-completion programs for customers at fixed
prices under short-term “turnkey” contracts. Revenues and expenses from turnkey contracts, which are classified
under drilling management services, are earned and recognized upon completion of each contract.

We recognize revenue from oil and gas production at the time title transfers.

We recognize reimbursements received from customers for out-of-pocket expenses incurred as revenues.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

From time to time, we may make use of derivative financial instruments to manage our exposure to
fluctuations in cash flows, interest rates or foreign currency exchange rates. We account for our derivative
financial instruments pursuant to SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” as amended by SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities—an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 133,” and SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities.” Derivative instruments held by us at December 31, 2005, consisted of
certain fixed-for-floating interest rate swaps related to a portion of our long-term debt (see Note 8).

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

The United States dollar is the functional currency for all of our operations. Realized and unrealized foreign
currency transaction gains and losses are recorded in income.

We may be exposed to the risk of foreign currency eéxchange losses in connection with our foreign
operations. Such losses are the result of holding net monétary assets (cash and receivables in excess of payables)
or liabilities (payables in excess of cash and receivables) denominated in foreign currencies during periods of a
strengthening (or, in the case of net monetary liabilities, weakening) U.S. dollar. We incurred foreign currency
exchange losses totaling approximately $2.3 and $6.1 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively. Our foreign
currency exchange gains and losses were immaterial for 2003. We attempt to lessen the impact of exchange rate
changes by requiring customer payments to be primarily in U.S. dollars, by keeping foreign cash balances at
minimal levels and by not speculating in foreign currencies.

INCOME TAXES

We are a Cayman Islands company and we operate through our various subsidiaries in numerous countries
throughout the world including the United States. Consequently, our tax provision is based upon the tax laws and
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rates in effect in the countries in which our operations are conducted and income is earned. The income tax rates
imposed and methods of computing taxable income in these jurisdictions vary substaatially. Our effective tax
rate for financial statement purposes will continue to fluctuate from year to year as our operations are conducted
in different taxing jurisdictions. Current income tax expense represents either liabilities expected to be reflected
on our income tax returns for the current year, nonresident withholding taxes, or changes in prior year tax
estimates which may result from tax audit adjustments. Our deferred tax expense or benefit represents the change
in the balance of deferred tax assets or liabilities as reported on the balance sheet. Valuation allowances are
established to reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will not be realized. In order to determine the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities, as well as of
vatuation allowances, we must make estimates and assumptions regarding future taxable income, where rigs will
be deployed and other matters. Changes in these estimates and assumptions, as well as changes in tax laws, could
require us to adjust the deferred tax assets and liabilities or valuation allowances, including as discussed below.

Our ability to realize the benefit of our deferred tax assets requires that we achieve certain future earnings
levels prior to the expiration of our net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards. We have established a valuation
allowance against the future tax benefit of a portion of our NOL carryforwards and could be required to record an
additional valuation allowance if market conditions deteriorate and future earnings are below, or are projected to
be below, our current estimates.

We have not provided for U.S. deferred taxes on the unremitted earnings of our U.S. subsidiaries that are
permanently reinvested. Should a distribution be made from the unremitted earnings of these U.S. subsidiaries,
we could be required to record additional U.S. current and deferred taxes.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

We account for our stock option and stock-based compensation plans using the intrinsic-value method
prescribed by Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25. Accordingly, we compute compensation
cost for each employee stock option granted as the amount by which the quoted market price of our ordinary
shares on the date of grant exceeds the amount the employee must pay to acquire the ordinary shares. The
amount of compensation cost, if any, is charged to income over the vesting period. No compensation cost has -
been recognized for options granted under our Employee Share Purchase Plan or for any of our outstanding stock
options, all of which stock options have exercise prices equal to the market price of the ordinary shares on the
date of grant. We do, however, recognize compensation cost for all grants of performance-based stock awards
(see Note 9).

We currently use tranche-specific expected lives for valuation purposes for our stock option awards with
graded vesting provisions in accordance with the decision reached by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) at its October 2003 meeting. This method treats an option grant as if it were a series of awards with
separate expected lives rather than a single award. The result of this method is that a greater portion of
compensation expense related to an option award will be recognized in the earlier years of the option vesting
periods than the later years because the early years are also part of the vesting period for later awards in the
series.

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued a revision of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS123R”). This statement revises
FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”) and requires companies
to recognize the cost of employee stock options and other awards of stock-based compensation based on the fair
value of the award as of the grant date. This statement supersedes APB Opinion No. 25. SFAS123R is effective
as of the beginning of the first interim or annual period that begins after June 15, 2005. We have adopted this
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statement effective January 1, 2006 using the modified prospective application as prescribed under SFAS123R
and its impact will be reflected in our 2006 results. Based on our unvested stock option grants at December 31,
20035, we estimate that the adoption of this statement in 2006 will reduce 2006 net income by approximately $6.0
million, or $0.02 per diluted share. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS123R to have a material impact on our
consolidated cash flows or financial position. ‘

Had compensation cost for our stock-based compenéation plans been determined based on fair values as of
the dates of grant as prescribed under FAS123, our net income and earnings per share would have been reported
as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
(In millions, except per share amounts)
Income from continuing operations, asreported . . . .......... ... ..... $423.1 $314 $114.2
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported
income from continuing operations, net of related tax effects .......... 4.5 0.7 0.6
Deduct: Total stock-based employees compensation expense determined
under fair-value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects .. (25.9) (31.3) (39.8)
Pro forma income from continuing operations ........................ $401.7 $ 08 $ 75.0
Basic earnings per ordinary share from continuing operations:
ASTEPOILEd . ..o $ 176 $0.13 $ 0.49
Proforma........... .. i PP $ 1.67 $ 0.00 $ 033
Diluted earnings per ordinary share from continuing operations:
Asreported .. ... $ 1.73 $0.13 $ 049
Proforma ..... ... $ 164 $ 0.00 $ 033

Our pro forma figures in the preceding table may not be representative of amounts in future years.

The weighted average per share fair value of stock options as of the grant date was $16.29 in 2005, $11.19
in 2004 and $10.81 in 2003. The value of options granted under the Employee Share Purchase Plan was $9.67 per
share, $7.90 per share and $8.78 per share for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Estimates of fair values of stock options, options granted under the Employee Share Purchase Plan and
performance-based stock awards on the grant dates for purposes of calculating the pro forma data in the table
above were computed using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model based on the following assumptions:

2005 2004 2003
Expected price volatility range . ........... ... ... ....... 42 -48% 42 - 50% 50%
Risk-free interestrate Tange . .. ...........oiiii i 33%w04.1% 24%t04.0% 1.7% t03.1%
Expected annual dividends ................ .. ... ... ..., $0.30 - $0.90 $0.20- $0.30 $0.15 - $0.20
Expected life of stock options .. ........... ... ... ... .. ... 4 - 6 years 4 - 6 years 4 - 6 years
Expected life of Employee Share Purchase Plan options . ...... 1 year 1 year 1 year
Expected life of stockawards ....................... .. ... _ 3 years NA NA

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make certain estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the carrying
values of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the
amounts of revenues and expenses recognized during the period. Actual results could differ from such estimates.
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Note 3—Investments

As discussed in Note 2, we changed the classification of our held-to-maturity marketable securities portfolio
to available-for-sale, effective June 30, 2004, and have recorded these marketable securities at fair value in our
Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2005 and 2004. In addition, we held other investments in debt and
equity securities also classified as available-for-sale held in connection with certain nonqualified pension plans,
which were included in “Other assets” at December 31, 2005 and 2004. Cost, net unrealized gains and losses and

fair values of our investments in debt and equity securities are disclosed in the table that follows:

2005
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(in millions)
Fixed Income Mutual Funds .............. ... . ..., $ 8.1 $— $0.1) $ 8.0
Equity Mutual Funds . .................... [P 79 - 24 — 10.3
Treasury NOtes ... .o 120.5 0.1 (1.2) 119.4
Corporate SECUTIHIES .. ... ..ttt ns 64.3 — 0.7) 63.6
Fixed Income Asset Backed Securities . ......... ... ..covuin.. 43.4 — — 43.4
Government Agency Securities ............ ... o . 389 — — 38.9
Other ... . [ 9.5 — — 9.5
$292.6 $25 $2.0) $293.1
2004
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(in millions)

Fixed Income Mutual Funds . .........ooriiniininan $ 10.9 $04 $— $11.3
Equity Mual Funds ........ ... ... oo oo 8.6 42 — 12.8
Treasury NOES .. ...ttt 202.1 03 (0.5) 201.9
$221.6 $49 $(0.5) $226.0

Note 4—Long-term Debt

Long-term debt as of December 31 consisted of the following:

December 31,

2005 2004
5% Notes due 2013, net of unamortized discount of $0.5 million and $0.5 million at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. (1) . ... ..ottt $253.5 $257.4
7% Notes due 2028, net of unamortized discount of $2.9 million and $3.0 million at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. ... ... .o 297.1 297.0
Zero Coupon Convertible Debentures due 2020, net of unamortized discount of
$249.3 million at December 31, 2004, . . ... ... = ﬁ)l
Total long-term debt, including current maturities ............ ... ccovvinnen. .. 550.6 905.1
Less current Maturities . . ... oottt e e e e = ﬂ)_z
Long-termdebt . ... ... e $550.6 $5544

|

(1) Balances at December 31, 2005 and 2004 include mark-to-market adjustments totaling $4.0 million and $7.9
million, respectively, as part of fair-value hedge accounting related to fixed-for-floating interest rate swaps

(see Note §).
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During the second quarter of 2005, we repurchased $599.2 million principal amount at maturity of the then
outstanding $600 million principal amount of Global Marine Inc.’s Zero Coupon Convertible Debentures due
September 23, 2020 for a total purchase price of $356.1 million, representing $299.8 million in principal
payment and $56.3 million in imputed interest. On August 18, 2005, we redeemed the remaining $800,000
principal amount at maturity, bringing the total repurchase price of $356.6 million, representing $300.3 million in
principal payment and $56.3 million in imputed interest. We purchased all of the debentures for repurchase at a
purchase price of $594.25 per $1.000 of principal amount, plus additional imputed interest for all securities
purchased after June 23, 2005, calculated from June 23, 2005 to the date of purchase. We funded the repurchase
price from our existing cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities balances.

On June 30, 2004, we completed the redemption of the entire outstanding $300 million principal amount of
Global Marine Inc.’s 7 V3% Notes due 2007, for a total redemption price of $331.7 million, plus accrued and
unpaid interest of $7.1 million. We recognized a loss on the early retirement of debt of approximately $21.0
million, net of tax of $11.4 million, in the second quarter of 2004. We funded the redemption price from our
existing cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities balances.

No principal payments are required with respect to either the 5% Notes or the 7% Notes prior to their final
maturity date. We may redeem the 5% Notes and the 7% Notes in whole at any time, or in part from time to time,
at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest, if any, to the date of redemption,
plus a premium, if any, relating to the then-prevailing Treasury Yield and the remaining life of the notes.

The indenture relating to the 5% Notes contains limitations on our ability to incur indebtedness for
borrowed money secured by certain liens and on our ability to engage in certain sale/leaseback transactions. The
indenture, however, does not restrict our ability to incur additional senior indebtedness. The indenture relating to
the 7% Notes contain limitations on Global Marine’s ability to incur indebtedness for borrowed money secured
by certain liens and to engage in certain sale/leaseback transactions.

Note 5—Involuntary Conversion of Long-Lived Assets and Related Recoveries

Four of our semisubmersible drilling rigs in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico, the GSF Arctic 1, the GSF Celtic Sea,
the GSF Development Driller I and the GSF Development Driller II, sustained damage in Hurricane Katrina
during August 2005 that rendered them unable to perform drilling operations. As of December 31, 2005, the GSF
Arctic I and the GSF Celtic Sea had returned to service and the GSF Development Driller Il had gone on
contract, although it ceased operations from mid December 2005 until February 2006 due to problems with its
riser’s rigid conduit lines. The GSF Development Driller I is still undergoing remediations.

Less than a month later, in late September 2005, Hurricane Rita caused damage to four of our cantilevered
jackup rigs in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico: the GSF High Island 11, the GSF High Island 111, the GSF High Island IV
and the GSF Adriatic VII. The GSF High Island Il and GSF High Island IV are undergoing remediations and the
GSF High Island Il and the GSF Adriaric VII are still being evaluated to determine if either can be repaired or
whether one or both will be declared a total constructive loss, as discussed below.

All of these rigs are covered for physical damage under the hull and machinery provision of our insurance
policy, which carries a deductible of $10 million per occurrence. In addition, the GSF Arctic I, the GSF
Development Driller I and the GSF Development Driller Il are covered by loss of hire insurance under which we
are reimbursed for 100 percent of each rig’s contracted dayrate for up to a maximum of 270 days per rig
following 60 days (the “waiting period”) of lost revenue.

Our insurance policy provides that if claims for a single event are filed under both the hull and machinery
and loss of hire sections of the policy, we will bear only a single deductible from that occurrence of no more than
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the highest deductible from any individual section. Hurricanes Katrina and Rita are each considered to be a
separate occurrence. Based on remediations completed for the GSF Development Driller Il and the remediations
in progress for the GSF Development Driller 1, the amount of revenue we }ost during the waiting period will be
higher than the $10 million hull and machinery deductible. Therefore, the 60-day waiting period under our loss of
hire insurance will serve as the only deductible for the Hurricane Katrina event. The application of the 60-day
waiting period provision with regard to the GSF Development Driller I and GSF Development Driller 11,
however, is complicated by the fact that at the time of the hurricane both rigs were undergoing thruster
remediations and accordingly, we had already put our underwriters on notice as to a claim under the loss of hire
section of the policy. As discussed in Note 6—Commitments and Contingencies in December 2005 we recorded
$3.8 million for loss of hire recoveries with respect to the GSF Development Driller I but did not record any loss
of hire recoveries with respect to the GSF Development Driller II. We also did not recover any loss of hire with
respect to the GSF Arctic I, which resumed operations within 60 days of Hurricane Katrina. None of the jackup
rigs damaged during Hurricane Rita were insured for loss of hire and, therefore, a single $10 million hull and
machinery deductible will apply for damage to the rigs caused by Hurricane Rita.

Based on preliminary and ongoing evaluations of the damage sustained by these rigs, we have recorded an
estimated involuntary conversion loss totaling approximately $127 million against the carrying value of the rigs.
The majority of this loss has been offset by expected insurance recoveries totaling $117 million, which is
included in “Accounts receivable from insurers” on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2005.
The net loss of $10 million discussed above represents our deductible for Hurricane Rita, and is included in
“Involuntary conversion of long-lived assets, net of related recoveries and loss of hire recoveries” in the
Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2005. Capital costs incurred to remediate
damage to the rigs will increase the capitalized value of the rigs. While we have recorded our best estimates of
the damage sustained by each rig based on the information presently available, further evaluations or other
developments could result in an adjustment to our financial results in future periods.

Upon completion of our damage assessment on the GSF High Island Il and GSF Adriatic VII, it is possible
that one or both of the rigs will either be out of service for approximately two years if refurbishment and upgrade
is undertaken or be permanently removed from service if declared to be a constructive total loss. During
Hurricane Rita, both rigs had their legs sheared off and their drilling capabilities destroyed, together with other
damage. If either the GSF High Island 11l or GSF Adriatic VII is declared to be a constructive total loss, we will
be entitled to receive the total insured values of the rigs of $55 miltion and $70 million, respectively, of which
$4.4 million and $15.0 million, respectively, is already included in “Accounts receivable from insurers,” as
discussed above. Taking into consideration the losses already recorded on the GSF High Island Il and GSF.
Adriatic VII, they have a current book value of $1.2 million and $1.4 million, respectively, which is equal to their
estimated salvage value plus amounts incurred transporting the rigs to the shipyard for assessment. If the rigs are
declared to be a constructive total loss, title to the rigs will then pass to our insurance underwriters. In the event
that we determine to remediate the damage to the rigs and return them to service, we will be entitled to receive up
to $38.5 million for the GSF High Island HI and up to $49 million for the GSF Adriatic VII, which includes the
amounts aiready recorded in “Accounts receivable from insurers,” as discussed above, towards the repair costs
and we will maintain ownership of the rigs. Any capital costs incurred to remediate damage to the rigs will
increase the capitalized value of the rigs.

In August 2004, the jackup GSF Adriatic IV encountered well control problems, caught fire and sank while
drilling in the Mediterranean Sea off the coast of Egypt. All of our personnel on board the rig were evacuated
safely, although the rig was a total loss. We received insurance proceeds totaling $40.0 million, net of our
deductible, and recorded a gain of $24.0 million, net of taxes, in the third quarter of 2004.
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Note 6—Commitments and Contingencies

At December 31, 2005, we had office space and equipment under operating leases with remaining terms
ranging from approximately one to eight years. Certain of the leases may be renewed at our option, and some are
subject to rent revisions based on the Consumer Price Index or increases in building operating costs. In addition,
at December 31, 2005, the GSF Britannia cantilevered jackup and the GSF Explorer drillship were held under
capital leases through 2007 and 2026, respectively. Total rent expense was $203.8 million for 2005, $106.7
million for 2004 and $78.2 million for 2003. Included in rent expense was the rental of offshore drilling rigs used
in our turnkey operations totaling $163.2 million for 2005, $90.8 million for 2004 and $60.6 million for 2003.

Future minimum rental payments with respect to our lease obligations as of December 31, 2005, were as
follows:

Capital Operating
Leases Leases

(In millions)
Year ended December 31:

2006 . .. . P $ 9.8 $ 77
2007 ......... e 9.8 7.3
2008 L e 1.8 6.2
2000 e 1.8 33
2010......... e 1.8 1.5
Later years . ... ..ot 28.0 38
Total future minimum rental PAYMENES .. v v e ven et 53.0 $29.8
Less amount representing imputed interest ../ ................... (19.6)
Present value of future minimum rental payments under capital
IASES . .t e e 334
Less current portion included in accrued liabilities ................ (9.8)
Long-term capital lease obligations ......... e $236

As of December 31, 2005, we had an operating lease in place for Santa Fe International’s offices in Dallas,
Texas which was closed as part of a restructuring program implemented in connection with the Merger. These
costs are included in the table above. Costs associated with the closure of Santa Fe International’s office in
Dallas were recognized as a liability assumed in the Merger and included in the cost of acquisition in accordance
with SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations.”

In January 2003, we entered into a lease-leaseback arrangement with a European bank related to the GSF
Britannia cantilevered jackup. Pursuant to this arrangement, we leased the GSF Britannia to the bank for a five-
year term for a lump-sum payment of approximately $37 million, net of origination fees of approximately $1.5
million. The bank then leased the rig back to us for a five-year term with an effective annual interest rate based
on the 3-month British Pound Sterling LIBOR plus a margin of 0.625%, under which we make annual lease
payments of approximately $8.0 million, payable in advance. We have classified this arrangement as a capital
lease.

In March 2002, we entered into a sublease agreement with BP America Inc. for our current executive offices
located at 15375 Memorial Drive, Houston, Texas. This sublease expires in September 2009. Lease payments
pursuant to this sublease total $2.3 million per year. In July 2002, we also entered into an 11-year lease for our
Aberdeen, Scotland, office. Payments pursuant to this lease are £612,250 (approximately $1.1 million) per year.

- Payments under this lease may be adjusted in 2009 based on prevailing market rates.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

During the first quarter of 2005, we took delivery of our two ultra-deepwater semisubmersibles ordered
from PPL Shipyard PTE, Ltd. of Singapore (“PPL”), the GSF Development Driller [ and the GSF Development
Driller 1. Construction costs for the GSF Development Driller I totaled approximately $309 million, excluding
an estimated $105 million of capital spares, startup expenses, customer-required modifications and mobilization
costs, $31 million related to the thruster defect discussed below, and $75 million of capitalized interest. We have
incurred a total of approximately $421 million of capitalized costs related to the GSF Development Driller I,
excluding capitalized interest, as of December 31, 2005. Construction costs for the GSF Development Driller 11
totaled approximately $309 million, excluding an estimated $79 million of capital spares, startup expenses,
customer-required modifications and mobilization costs, $28 million related to the thruster defect discussed
below, and $47 million of capitalized interest. We have incurred a total of approximately $414 million of
capitalized costs related to the GSF Development Driller 11, excluding capitalized interest, as of December 31,
2005. Both of these rigs sustained hurricane-related damage during 2005. We expect to recover the costs to
remediate the hurricane-related damage to these rigs from our underwriters.

During the second quarter of 2005 we discovered a defect and resulting damage in the thruster nozzles on
the two new ultra-deepwater semisubmersibles. Both rigs were being remediated for the thruster defect and
resulting damage when they sustained additional damage as a result of Hurricane Katrina. This additional
damage further delayed the start of the initial drilling contracts for the GSF Development Driller Il and the GSF
Development Driller 1. Remediations of GSF Development Driller II have been completed and the rig went on
contract in November 2005. However, in December 2005 problems were noted on the rigid conduit lines on the
riser and the rig was no longer able to perform drilling operations. Evaluations are ongoing, but a temporary
modification allowed the rig to resume drilling operations in February 2006. Remediation of this problem will
also be required on the GSF Development Driller [ riser and the spare riser string shared by both rigs. The
estimated cost to remediate the problem for the risers on both rigs and the spare riser is expected to be between
$10 to $15 million and will be added to the capitalized cost of the rigs. The riser damage, the thruster defect and
damage from the hurricanes has further delayed the start of the initial drilling contract for the GSF Development
Driller I until the second quarter of 2006.

As noted above, we currently expect the cost to remediate the thruster equipment for both rigs, exclusive of
continued capitalized interest, will be approximately $59 million. We expect the costs to remediate the Hurricane
Katrina damage to the two semisubmersibles to total approximately the $97 million. Any costs not recovered
from the manufacturer or our insurance underwriters in respect of the repair and replacement costs for the
thruster damage or hurricane damage will be added to the capitalized cost of the rigs. We will also make claims
under our loss of hire insurance for the rigs for the periods required to remediate the damage arising from both
the thruster defect and Hurricane Katrina. Under our loss of hire insurance, after the 60-day waiting period we
are entitled to reimbursement for our full dayrate for up to 270 days. Significant unresolved issues remain as to
the proper application of the loss of hire waiting periods, which could lead to substantial differences in the
amount of the loss of hire recovery. The underwriters have formally reserved their rights to decline coverage for
the thruster damage claims on the rigs in respect of both the hull and machinery and loss of hire coverage. As a
result, in 2005 we have recorded estimated loss of hire insurance recoveries equal to $3.8 million with respect to
the GSF Development Driller I, which is the amount we deem to be probable under the assumption that the rig
will bear two consecutive 60 day waiting periods, one for the thruster damage claim and one for the hurricane
damage claim. The GSF Development Driller IT was not out of service longer than the combined 120 day waiting
period and therefore no loss of hire recoveries have been recorded for this rig. When the loss of hire claims are
resolved with the underwriters the amount of loss of hire recoveries could be different than the amount currently
recorded.

In the first quarter of 2006 we entered into a contract with Keppel FELS, a shipyard located in Singapore,
for construction of a new ultra-deepwater semisubmersible, to be named the GSF Development Driller I11.
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Construction costs, excluding capital spares, startup costs, capitalized interest, customer-required modifications
and mobilization costs, are estimated to total approximately $590 million. In the first quarter of 2006 we made an
initial shipyard progress payment of $53 million.

LLEGAL PROCEEDINGS ,

In August 2004, certain of our subsidiaries were named as defendants in six lawsuits filed in Mississippi,
five of which are pending in the Circuit Court of Jones County and one of which is pending in the Circuit Court
of Jasper County, Mississippi, alleging that certain individuals aboard our offshore drilling rigs had been exposed
to asbestos. These six lawsuits are part of a group of twenty-three lawsuits filed on behalf of approximately 800
plaintiffs against a large number of defendants, most of which are not affiliated with us. Our subsidiaries have
not been named as defendants in any of the other seventeen lawsuits. The lawsuits assert claims based on theories
of unseaworthiness, negligence, strict liability and our subsidiaries’ status as Jones Act employers; and seek
unspecified compensatory and punitive damages. In general, the defendants are alleged to have manufactured,
distributed or utilized products containing asbestos. In the case of our named subsidiaries and that of several
other offshore drilling companies named as defendants, the lawsuits allege those defendants allowed such
products to be utilized aboard offshore drilling rigs. We have not been provided with sufficient information to
determine the number of plaintiffs who claim to have been exposed to asbestos aboard our rigs, whether they
were employees nor their period of employment, the period of their alleged exposure to asbestos, nor their
medical condition. Accordingly, we are unable to estimate our potential exposure to these lawsuits, We
historically have maintained insurance which we believe: will be available to address any liability arising from
these claims. We intend to defend these lawsuits vigorously, but there can be no assurance as to their ultimate
outcome. :

We and two of our subsidiaries are defendants in a fawsuit filed on July 28, 2003, by Transocean Inc.
(“Transocean”) in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas, Houston Division. The
lawsuit alleges that the dual drilling structure and method utilized by the GSF Development Driller I and the GSF
Development Driller II semisubmersibles infringe on United States patents granted to Transocean. The lawsuit
seeks damages, royalties and attorneys’ fees, together with an injunction that would prevent the use of the dual
drilling capabilities of the rigs. On December 1, 2005, the court granted a partial summary judgment in favor of
Transocean on the issue of whether the “apparatus™ aboard our rigs was so similar to that patented by Transocean
that it fell within the scope of their patents, an issue we had not contested. We believe the focus of the lawsuit is
the validity and enforceability of the patents: that is, whether the patents would have or should have been issued
had Transocean supplied the patent office with all of the available information regarding similar methods and
apparatus either used by the industry or designed for its use prior to Transocean’s claimed invention date. These
issues will be the subject of the trial, which is not expected to occur prior to the summer of 2006. We believe that
the lawsuit is without merit and intend to vigorously defend it. We do not expect that the matter will have a
material adverse effect on our business or financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

One of our subsidiaries filed suit in February 2004 against its insurance underwriters in the Superior Court
of San Francisco County, California, secking a declaration as to its rights to insurance coverage and the proper
allocation among its insurers of liability for claims payments in order to assist in the future management and
disposition of certain claims described below. The subsidiary is continuing to receive payment from its insurers
for claim settlements and legal costs, and expects to continue to receive such payments during the pendency of
this action. :

The insurance coverage in question relates to lawsuits filed against the subsidiary arising out of its
involvement in the design, construction and refurbishment of major industrial complexes. The operating assets of
the subsidiary were sold and its operations discontinued in 1989, and the subsidiary has no remaining assets other
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than the insurance policies involved in the litigation and funds received from the cancellation of certain insurance
policies. The subsidiary has been named as a defendant, along with numerous other companies, in lawsuits
alleging personal injury as a result of exposure to asbestos. As of December 31, 2005, the subsidiary had been
named as a defendant in approximately 4,000 lawsuits, the first of which was filed in 1990, and a substantial
number of which are currently pending. We believe that as of December 31, 2005, from $30 million to $40
million had been expended to resolve claims, with the subsidiary having expended $4 million of that amount due
to insurance deductible obligations, all of which have now been satisfied. Because we rely on information from
the insurers of our subsidiary for information regarding the amounts expended in settlement and defense of these
lawsuits and are not able to verify or confirm the information, the amount expended by the insurers is not known
with precision. The subsidiary continues to be named as a defendant in additional lawsuits and we cannot predict
the number of additional cases in which it may be named a defendant nor can we predict the potential costs to
resolve such additional cases or to resolve the pending cases. However, the subsidiary has in excess of $1 billion
in insurance limits. Although not all of that will be available due to the insolvency of certain insurers, we believe
that the subsidiary will have sufficient insurance available to respond to these claims. We do not believe that
these claims will have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

The same subsidiary has been a defendant in a lawsuit filed against it by Union Oil Company of California
(“Union”) in the Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois. That lawsuit arises out of claims alleging personal injury
caused by exposure to asbestos at a refinery owned by Union and constructed by the Company’s subsidiary.
Union has alleged that the subsidiary is required to defend and indemnify it pursuant to the terms of contracts
entered into for the construction of the refinery. GlobalSantaFe Corporation has also been named as a defendant
in the pending litigation, Union intends to attempt to establish liability against GlobalSantaFe Corporation as the
alter ego of, and successor in interest to, its subsidiary and on the basis of a fraudulent conveyance of the
subsidiary’s-assets, and seeks to pierce the corporate veil between the subsidiary and GlobalSantaFe Corporation.
We believe that the allegations of the lawsuit are without merit and intend to vigorously defend against the
lawsuit, but cannot provide any assurance as to its ultimate outcome.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

We have certain potential liabilities under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act (“CERCLA™) and similar state acts regulating cleanup of various hazardous waste disposal sites,
including those described below. CERCLA is intended to expedite the remediation of hazardous substances
without regard to fault. Potentially responsible parties (“PRPs”) for each site include present and former owners
and operators of, transporters to and generators of the substances at the site. Liability is strict and can be joint and
several. ‘

We have been named as a PRP in connection with a site located in Santa Fe Springs, California, known as
the Waste Disposal, Inc. site. We and other PRPs have agreed with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(“EPA”) and the U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ”) to settle our potential liabilities for this site by agreeing to
perform the remaining remediation required by the EPA. The form of the agreement is a consent decree, which
has now been entered by the court. The parties to the settlement have entered into a participation agreement,
which makes us liable for approximately 8% of the remediation costs. Although the remediation costs cannot be
determined with certainty until the remediation is complete, we expect that our share of the remaining
remediation costs will not exceed approximately $500,000. There are additional potential liabilities related to the
site, but these cannot be quantified, and we have no reason at this time to believe that they will be material.

We have-also been named as a PRP in connection with a site in California known as the Casmalia Resources
Site. We and other PRPs have entered into an agreement with the EPA and the DOJ to resolve potential
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liabilities. Under the settlement, we are not likely to owe any substantial additional amounts for this site beyond
what we have already paid. There are additional potential liabilities related to this site, but these cannot be
quantified at this time, and we have no reason at this time to believe that they will be material.

We have been named as one of many PRPs in connection with a site located in Carson, California, formerly
maintained by Cal Compact Landfill. On February 15, 2002, we were served with a required 90-day notification
that eight California cities, on behalf of themselves and other PRPs, intend to commence an action against us
under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”). On April 1, 2002, a complaint was filed by the
cities against us and others alleging that we have liabilities in connection with the site. However, the complaint
has not been served. The site was closed in or around 1965, and we do not have sufficient information to enable
us to assess our potential liability, if any, for this site. ‘

Resolutions of other claims by the EPA, the involved state agency and/or PRPs are at various stages of
investigation. These investigations involve determinations of: ‘

» the actual responsibility attributed to us and the other PRPs at the site;
» appropriate investigatory and/or remedial actions; and

+ allocation of the costs of such activities among the PRPs and other site users.

Our ultimate financial responsibility in connection with those sites may depend on many factors, including:
» the volume and nature of material, if any, contributed to the site for which we are responsible;
o the numbers of other PRPs and their financial viability; and

¢ the remediation methoqis and technology to be used.

It is difficult to quantify with certainty the potential cost of these environmental matters, particularly in
respect of remediation obligations. Nevertheless, based upon the information currently available, we believe that
our ultimate liability arising from all environmental matters, including the liability for all other related pending
legal proceedings, asserted legal claims and known potential legal claims which are likely to be asserted, is
adequately accrued and should not have a material effect on our financial position or ongoing results of
operations. Estimated costs of future expenditures for environmental remediation obligations are not discounted
to their present value. '

On July 11, 2005, one of our subsidiaries was served with a lawsuit filed on behalf of three landowners in
Louisiana in the 12t Judicial District Court for the Parish of Avoyelles, State of Louisiana. The lawsuit names
nineteen other defendants, all of which are alleged to have contaminated the plaintiffs’ property with naturally
occurring radioactive material, produced water, drilling fluids, chlorides, hydrocarbons, heavy metals and other
contaminants as a result of oil and gas exploration activities. The lawsuit specifies 95 wells drilled on the
property in question beginning in 1939, and alleges that our subsidiary was the operator or non-operating partner
in 13 of the wells during certain periods of time. The plaintiffs allege that the defendants are liable on the basis of
strict liability, breach of contract, breach of the mineral leases, negligence, nuisance, trespass, and improper
handiing of toxic or hazardous substances, that their storage and disposal of toxic and hazardous substances
constituted an ultra-hazardous activity, and that they violated various state statutes. The lawsuit seeks unspecified
amounts of compensatory and punitive damages, payment of funds sufficient to conduct an environmental
assessment of the property in question, damages for diminution of property value and injunctive relief requiring
that defendants restore the property to its prior condition and prevent the migration of toxic and hazardous
substances. We do not have sufficient information at this time to form an opinion as to the merits of the lawsuit
or its. potential liability, if any, but intend to vigorously defend against the lawsuit.
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CONTINGENCIES AND OTHER LEGAL MATTERS

In 1998, we entered into fixed-price contracts for the construction of two dynamically positioned, ultra-
deepwater drillships, the GSF C.R. Luigs and the GSF Jack Ryan, which began operating in April and December
2000, respectively. Pursuant to two 20-year capital lease agreements, we subsequently novated the construction
contracts for the driliships to two financial institutions (the “Lessors™), which now own the drillships and lease
them to us. We have deposited with three large foreign banks (the “Payment Banks™) amounts equal to the
progress payments that the Lessors were required to make under the construction contracts, less a lease benefit of
approximately $62 million (the “Defeasance Payment”). In exchange for the deposits, the Payment Banks have
assumed liability for making rental payments required under the leases and the Lessors have legally released us
as the primary obligor of such rental payments. Accordingly, we have recorded no capital lease obligations on
our balance sheet with respect to the two drillships.

In October, 2005, we provided consent to allow the sale of the Lessor of the GSF C.R. Luigs from one large
foreign bank to another. In exchange for our consent, if we exercise our right to terminate the lease between
March 1, 2006 and December 31, 2006, we will receive consideration which will equal any sum we are obligated
to pay on our termination of the lease. In addition, if we exercise our termination rights during this period, we
will no longer bear the estimated $20.9 million in interest rate risk associated with the GSF C.R. Luigs lease,
discussed below. Upon termination of the lease, we will become the owner of the rig. The Lessor has the right to
defer termination of the lease up to December 31, 2006 and has agreed to pay us $4.0 million if termination is
deferred past June 30, 2006 and a further $3.6 million if termination is deferred past September 30, 2006. These
amounts will decrease the carrying value of the rig. ‘

We continue to have interest rate risk in connection with the fully defeased financing lease for the GSF Jack
Ryan and until termination, the GSF C.R. Luigs, as discussed above. The Defeasance Payment earns interest
based on the British Pound Sterling three-month LIBOR, which approximated 8.00% at the time of the
agreement. Should the Defeasance Payment earn less than the assumed 8.00% rate of interest, we will be
required to make additional payments as necessary to augment the annual payments made by the Payment Banks
pursuant to the agreements. If the December 31, 2005, LIBOR rate of 4.63 % were to continue over the next
seven years, we would be required to fund an additional estimated $23.0 million and $20.9 million for the GSF
Jack Ryan and GSF C.R. Luigs, respectively, during that period. Any additional payments made by us pursuant to
the financing leases would increase the carrying value of our leasehold interest in the rigs and therefore be
reflected in higher depreciation expense over their then-remaining useful lives. We do not expect that, if
required, any additional payments made under these leases would be material to our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows in any given year.

We and our subsidiaries are defendants or otherwise involved in a number of lawsuits in the ordinary course
of business. In the opinion of management, our ultimate liability with respect to these pending lawsuits is not
expected to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

Note 7—A ccumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The components of our accumulated other comprehensive loss were as follows:
Minimum Pension Accumulated Other

Unrealized Gain Liability Adjustment, Comprehensive
(Loss) on Securities Net of Tax Loss
(In millions)
Balance at December 31,2003 .. ................ 3.4 (48.0) $(44.6)
Netchange fortheyear ..................... ... 1.0 1.7 2.7
Balance at December 31,2004 .................. 4.4 (46.3) (41.9)
Netchange fortheyear ........................ 3.9 (25.2) 29.1)
Balance at December 31,2005 .................. $05 $(71.5) $(71.0)
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The minimum pension 1iability adjustments in the tanle above are shown net of deferred tax benefit of $17.3
million in 2005 and a deferred tax expense of $7.3 million in 2004. The tax effect of the unrealized holding gains
and losses was immaterial for all periods presented.

Note 8—Derivative Financial Instruments, Fair Values of Financial Instruments, and Concentrations of
Credit Risk

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

As part of our overall risk management strategy, we entered into an oil futures commodity swap in July
2005 to manage our exposure to oil commodity price risk related to the forecasted sale of oil production from the
Broom field. This swap effectively locked in predetermined prices for the first 600 barrels of our oil production
per day from July 1, 2005 to July 31, 2005 and then the first 900 barrels of our forecasted oil production per day
over the term of the remaining hedging period, which ranged from August 1, 2005 through December 31, 2005.
At final settlement we had no resulting gain or loss. We had designated this instrument as a cash flow hedge.

We manage our fair value risk related to our long-term debt by using interest rate swaps to convert a portion
of our fixed-rate debt into variable-rate debt. Under these interest rate swaps, we agree with other parties to

exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between the fixed-rate and floating-rate amounts, calculated by
reference to an agreed upon notional amount.

In May 2004, we entered into fixed-for-floating interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of
$75 million, effective May 2004 through February 2013. These interest rate swaps are intended to manage a
portion of the fair value risk related to our 5% Notes due 2013. Under the terms of these swaps, we have agreed
to pay the counterparties an interest rate equal to the six-month LIBOR rate less 0.27% to 0.5175% on the
notional amounts and we will receive the fixed 5.00% rate. We have designated these swaps as fair-vatue hedges
of the 5% Notes. We had previously entered into similar interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of
$100 million related to our 5% Notes in 2003. As of December 31, 2005, we had fixed-for-floating interest rate
swaps with a total notional amount of $175 million related to our 5% Notes. These fixed-for-floating interest rate
swaps are designed to be perfectly effective hedges against changes in fair value of our 5% Notes resulting from
changes in market interest rates. The total estimated aggregate fair value of these swaps was an asset of $4.0
million at December 31, 2005 and an asset of $7.9 million at December 31, 2004.

In May 2004, we terminated the $50 million notional amount fixed-for-floating interest rate swap related to
our.7 ¥s% Notes due 2007 in anticipation of the redemption of these notes in June 2004. We received

approximately $0.2 million in connection with this transaction, which represented the fair value of this swap at
the time of termination.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair value of our $300 million principal amount 7% Notes due 2028, based on quoted market
prices, was $351.1 million at December 31, 2005, compared to the carrying amount of $297.1 million (net of
discount). The estimated fair value of our $250 million principal amount 5% Notes due 2013, based on quoted
market prices, was $248.3 million at December 31, 2005, compared to the carrying amount of $253.5 million (net
of discount). The carrying value of our 5% Notes due 2013 includes a mark-to-market adjustment of $4.0 million
at December 31, 2005, related to the fixed-for-floating interest rate swaps discussed above.

'The fair values of our cash equivalents, trade receivablés, and trade payables approximated their carrying
values due to the short-term nature of these instruments.
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CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The market for our services and products is the offshore oil and gas industry, and our customers consist
primarily of major integrated international oil companies and independent oil and gas producers. We perform
ongoing credit evaluations of our customers and have not historically required material collateral. We maintain
reserves for potential credit losses, and such losses have been within management’s expectations.

Our cash deposits were distributed among various banks in our areas of operations throughout the world as
of December 31, 2005. In addition, we utilize external money mangers to invest excess cash in accordance with
our Investment Guidelines. These managers have invested our funds in commercial paper, money market funds,
asset backed securities, government issues and corporate obligations. Each of these investments comply with our
Investment Guidelines in terms of security type, credit rating, duration, portfolio and issuer exposure limits. As a
result, we believe that credit risk in such instruments is minimal.

Note 9—Stock-Based Compensation Plans

We have various stock-based compensation plans under which we may grant our ordinary shares or options
to purchase a fixed number of shares. Stock options and other stock based awards granted under our various
stock-based compensation plans vest over one to four years. Stock options expire ten years after the grant date.

At December 31, 2005, there were a total of 5,097,679 shares available for future grants under our stock-
based compensation plans, including 721,433 shares reserved for issuance under our Employee Share Purchase
Plan discussed below. Effective January 1, 2006 the Employee Share Purchase Plan was discontinued and all
remaining reserved shares are intended to be returned to the status of authorized but unissued and unreserved
ordinary shares.

SToCcK OPTIONS

A summary of the status of stock options granted is presented below:

Number of
Shares Under ~ Weighted Average
Option Exercise Price
Shares under option at December 31,2002 .................... 16,739,668 $28.25
Granted ................ e 3,669,200 $24.49
Exercised .. .. ..o (374,160) $12.26
Canceled ... ... . o e (889,834) $28.47
Shares under option at December 31,2003 .................... 19,144 874 $27.76
Granted ........... . s 3,306,000 $25.49
Exercised . ....oc i (2,234,423) $17.05
Canceled ...... ... e (1,122,390) $31.04
Shares under option at December 31,2004 . .............. ... .. 19,094,061 $28.38
Granted ... .. . e 348,031 $37.53
Exercised ............ R (8,577,761) $26.50
Canceled ............... e [ (389,134) $31.26
Shares under option at December 31,2005 .................... 10,475,197 $30.12
Options exercisable at December 31,
2008 L e 12,709,808 $28.49
2004 ... P PP 12,534,408 $29.74
2005 .. [P 7,217,838 $31.76
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All stock options granted in 2003 through 2005 had exercise prices equal to or greater than the market price
of our ordinary shares on the date of grant. The weighted average per share fair value of options as of the grant

date was $16.29 in 2005, $11.19 in 2004 and $10.81 in 2003.

The following table summarizes information with r‘éspect to stock options outstanding at December 31,

2005:
Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number Average Average Number Average
Outstanding at Remaining Exercise Exercisable at Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices } December 31, 2005  Contractual Life Price December 31, 2005 Price
$1156t082432 ................ . 1,166,741 ~ 5.55 $19.71 970,606 $19.18
$24.7310 $25.00 ........... e 2,012,224 - 8.00 $24.74 396,097 $24.74
$25.02t0$2950 . ... 2,217,811 | 6.45 $26.02 1,293,499 $26.62
$29.85t0$37.50 ........... e 3,120,184 5.99 $31.65 2,677,699 $31.03
$3772t0 $5141 ... 1,958,237 4.54 $44.02 1,879,937 $44.29
10,475,197 6.15 $30.12 7,217,838 $31.76

EMPLOYEE SHARE PURCHASE PLAN

The GlobalSantaFe Employee Share Purchase Plan (the “Share Purchase Plan™) was designed to furnish our
eligible employees an incentive to advance our best interests by providing a formal program whereby they may
voluntarily purchase our ordinary shares at a favorable price and upon favorable terms. Generally speaking,
substantially all eligible employees who were scheduled'to work an average of at least 20 hours per week could
participate in the Share Purchase Plan.

Once a year, participants in the Share Purchase Plan were granted options to purchase ordinary shares with a
fair market value equal to the lesser of 10% of the participant’s eligible compensation (as defined in the Share
Purchase Plan) and the amount‘speciﬁed in Section 423(b) of the Code (currently $25,000). The exercise price of
the options was 85% of the fair market value of the ordinary shares on the date of the grant, or the date of
exercise, whichever was less. Options granted under the Share Purchase Plan were exercisable on the date one
year after the date of grant. Generally, participants paid option exercise prices through payroll deductions made
ratably throughout the year. We granted options to purchase a total of 148,615 ordinary shares, 206,538 ordinary
shares and 250,900 ordinary shares under the Share Purchase Plan in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The fair
value of options granted under the Share Purchase Plan as of the grant date was $9.67 per share for 2005, $7.90
per share for 2004 and $8.78 per share for 2003.

Effective January 1, 2006 the Employee Share Purchase Plan was discontinued and all remaining reserved
shares are intended to be returned to the status of authorized but unissued and unreserved Ordinary Shares.

STOCK AWARDS

From time to time, the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors grants awards of ordinary shares
to key employees at no cost to the employee. To date, all such awards have been restricted for three years after
grant in that the shares are subject to forfeiture if the employee terminates his or her employment under certain
conditions during a three-year vesting period, subject to acceleration upon the occurrence of certain events. In
addition, the opportunity to receive such an award in a given year is usually performance-based in that it is
usually dependent upon our performance in the prior year.
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In 2002, our senior executives were each given the opportunity at the beginning of the year to receive a
grant of a targeted number of restricted stock units (“PARSUs”) at the end of the year, each PARSU representing
one ordinary share of stock. The exact number of PARSUs granted at the end of 2002 was dependent on our
performance during 2002 as measured against the goals for our performance in the Annual Incentive Plan
(“AIP”) for 2002. When granted at the end of the one-year performance period, the PARSUs were then restricted
for an additional three-year vesting period (2003-2005), during which the executives received dividend
equivalent payments in respect of the underlying shares.

We did not grant any awards of PARSUs in 2003 or 2004.

Beginning in 2005, the Compensation Committee has granted PARSUs to our senior executives and to other
key employees as well. As before, each PARSU represents one ordinary share of our stock and cliff vests after
three years of continued service, subject to acceleration upon the occurrence of certain events. Upon vesting,
each PARSU, together with dividend equivalent payments accrued throughout the three-year vesting period, is
paid out in the form of ordinary shares.

In 2005, target value for the PARSU grant to each key employee was established by the Compensation
Committee. Although it is the intent of the Committee to set the number of PARSUs granted to each key
employee in a given year based on the percentage of his or her target annual bonus actually received under the
prior year’s performance-based AIP, the PARSUs granted in 2005 were unadjusted by the 2004 AIP percentage
because PARSUs were not introduced and described to key employees until early 2005.

For years after 2003, the target value of the PARSU grant to each key employee is established by the
Compensation Committee. The value of the PARSUs actually awarded to any grantee in years after 2003,
however, is performance-based in that it is a percentage of his or her total target value for PARSUs that is equal
to the percentage of his or her target bonus actually received based on performance under the prior year’s
performance-based AIP, which can range from 0% to 200% of base salary for key employees of our drilling
management services and oil and gas subsidiaries and from 0% to 150% of base salary for all other key
employees. Once the participants’ target value for PARSUs in a given year has been multiplied by the prior
year’s AIP percentage, the resulting value is divided by the per share fair market value of the ordinary shares
based on a trading period ending two trading days before the PARSU grant date to determine the number of
PARSUS to be granted. This initial allocation may be further adjusted to account for the individual’s
performance, past grant history, and other relevant factors.

A summary of the status of performance-based stock awards is presented in the table that follows:

2005 2004 2003

Number of contingent shares at beginning of year .............. 139,852 139,852 148,752

Granted . . ... ... 370,064 — —

Issued ... e (310) — (1,236)

Canceled . ... e (13,963) — (7,664)
Number of contingent shares atendof year .................... 495,643 139,852 139,852
Shares vested at December 31 .......... ... ... ... ... ... 139,852 — —_—
Weighted average fair value at grantdate ..................... 37.58 N/A N/A

The amount of compensation cost included in income for our performance-based stock awards was
$4.3 million in 2005 and $0.7 million in 2004 and 2003.
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Note 10—Retirement Plans
PENSIONS

We have defined benefit pension plans in the United States and the United Kingdom covering all of our U.S.
employees and a portion of our non-U.S. employees. These plans are designed and operated to be in compliance
with applicable U.S. tax-qualified requirements and U.K. tax requirements for funded plans and, as such, the trust
earnings are not subject to incoine taxes. For the most part, benefits are based on the employee’s length of
service and eligible earnings. Substantially all benefits are paid from established trust funds. We are the sole
contributor to the plans, with the exception of our plans in the U.K., to which employees also contribute.

We use a December 31 measurement date for our pension and postretirement benefit plans. The following
table shows the changes in the projected benefit obligation and assets for all pension plans for the year ended
December 31 and a reconciliation of the plans’ funded status at year-end.

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
US.Plans UK.Plan US.Plans UK. Plan
(In millions)

Change in projected benefit obligation:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year ............ $3469 $1920 $3120 $1358
SIVICE COSE . o\ e ittt e e e e e 11.2 10.6 10.9 12.9
Interestcost ... ...... S 19.7 9.6 19.7 8.2
Employee contributions .. .......ooiiiiinn.. e — 26 — 2.7
Plan amendments ........................... . 0.5 — — —
Actuarial loss (gain) ......................... S 45.1 (11.8) 24.6 19.9
Exchange rate fluctuations: . .......... .. .. ... ...l — (21.1) — 140
Benefitspaid .. ............. .. L T (26.0) (2.6) (20.3) (1.5)
Projected benefit obligation at end of year . . . ........... $3974 31793  $3469  $192.0
Change in plan assets: |
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year .. ... P $2655 $1105 $I889 $ 82.6
Actualreturnonplanassets ........... ... ... ..., 19.3 23.1 26.2 9.7
Employer contributions ...................... b 15.9 72 70.7 8.3
Employee contributions ...................... U — 26 — 27
Exchange rate fluctuations ............... .. ... .. ... .. — (13.1) — 8.7
Benefits.paid . ... oo i e e (26.0) (2.6) (20.3) (1.5)
Fair value of plan assets atendof year ................ $2747 $127.7 $265.5  $110.5
Reconciliation of funded status: i
Funded status atendof year .......................... .. $(122.7)  $(51.6) $(81.4) $(81.5)
Unrecognized net1oss . .............o.ovou... e 1349 28.6 98.2 64.1
Unrecognized prior servicecost ................ P 9.8 — 133 —
Net amountrecognized .................ccivvvin... $ 220 $(30) S 301 $(17.4)
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of:
Prepaid pension cost (accrued benefit liability) . ... . $ (78.8) $(37.5) $ 121  $(68.0)
Intangible asset.. . ... e 9.8 — 5.6 —
Accumulated other compre}}ensive‘ loss oot 91.0 14.5 124 50.6

Net amount recognized .. .. ................ ST $ 220  $(23.0) $301 $(174)
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The following table provides information related to those plans in which the projected benefit obligation
(“PBO”) exceeded the fair value of plan assets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004. In the table below, the
projected benefit obligation (“PBO”) is the actuarially computed present value of earned benefits based on
service to date and includes the estimated effect of future salary increases.

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
U.S. Plans U.K. Plan U.S. Plans U.K. Plan

’ (In millions)
Projected benefit obligation ..................... $397.4 $179.3 $346.9 $192.0
Fair value of planassets ........................ $274.7 $127.7 $265.5 $1105

The following table provides information related to those plans in which the accumulated benefit obligation
(“ABQO”) exceeded the fair value of plan assets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004. The accumulated benefit
obligation (“ABQ”) is the actuariaily computed present value of earned benefits based on service to date, but
differs from the PBO in that it is based on current salary levels.

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
U.S. Plans UK.Plan  U.S. Plans U.K. Plan
(In millions)
Accumulated benefit obligation .................. $353.5 $161.8 $59.8 $178.5
Fair value of planassets ................ .. ...... $274.7 $127.7 $16.4 $110.5

Our qualified pension plan covering our U.S. employees is excluded from the 2004 amounts in the table
above because the fair value of this plan’s assets of $249.1 million at December 31, 2004, exceeded the
accumulated benefit obligation of $248.7 million at December 31, 2004.

The components of net periodic pension benefit cost for our pension plans were as follows:
Year ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003

US.Plans UK.Plan US.Plans UK.Plan US,Plans UK. Plan
(In millions)

Service cost—benefits earned during the

period . ... ... $112 $10.6 $109 $12.9 $ 105 $99
Interest cost on projected benefit abligation . . . 19.7 9.6 19.7 8.2 18.4 5.1
Expected return on plan assets ............. (22.8) (9.2) (18.3) (8.3) (13.1) (4.2)
Recognized actuarial loss ................. 8.6 4.1 8.6 32 11.1 1.0
Recognized actuarial loss—termination

benefits ........... ... ... i — — — — 04 —
Settlement (gain)/loss . ........... .. ... ... 3.2 — — — 0.7 —
Amortization of prior service cost . ......... 4.0 — 4.6 — 4.1 —
Net periodic pension cost . .. ... P $239  $151 $255 $16.0  $307 3118

PLAN ASSUMPTIONS

The following assumptions were used to determine our pension benefit obligations:

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
U.S. Plans U.K. Plans U.S. Plans U.K. Plans
Discountrate . .............iiiiririn. 5.50% 5.00% 5.75% 5.25%
Rate of compensation increase .. ................ 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
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The following weighted average assumptions were used to determine our net periodic pension cost:

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
\ U.S.Plans UXK.Plans US.Plans UXK.Plans U.S.Plans UK. Plans
Discountrate ................... 575%  525% @ 6.25% 5.50% 6.75% 6.75%
Expected long-term rate of return ...  8.75%  8.50% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 8.00%
Rate of compensation increase . . . . .. 4.00%  4.00%  4.50% 4.25% 4.50% 4.75%

The discount rates used to calculate the net present value of future benefit obligations at December 31, 2005
and 2004, and pension costs for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, for both our U.S. and U.K.
plans are based on the average of current rates earned on long-term bonds that receive a Moody’s rating of Aa or
better. :

We employ third-party consultants for our U.S. plans who use a portfolio return model to assess the initial
reasonableness of the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption. Using asset class return,
variance and correlation assumptions, the model produces both the expected return and the distribution of
possible returns (at every fifth percentile) for the chosen portfolio. Return assumptions developed by these
consultants are forward-looking gross returns and are not.developed solely by an examination of historical
returns. The building block approach used by the portfolio return model begins with the current Treasury yield
curve, recognizing that expected returns on bonds are heavily influenced by the current level of yields. The
model then adds corporate bond spreads and equity risk premiums, based on current conditions, to develop the
return expectations for each asset class based on the plans’ investment mix. The volatility and correlation
assumptions are also forward-looking; they take into account historical relationships, but are adjusted to reflect
expected capital market trends.

We also employ third-party consultants for our U.K. plans who assess the reasonableness of the assumption
on expected long-term rate of return on plan assets based on surveys of various U.K. plans with similar asset
allocations and investment targets. This assumption on expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is
compared to various projections of long-term rates of returns compiled by both U.K. governmental agencies and
banks. ‘

PLAN ASSETS

Our weighted-average asset allocations for our various pension plans at December 31, 2005 and 2004, by
asset category are as follows: . f

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
U.S. Plans U.K. Plans U.S. Plans U.K. Plans
Equity securities ........... .. . o 70% 85% 70% 87%
Fixed-income securities . . .................... ’ 30% 12% 30% 9%
Real €SLALE . .\ v v e v oo et e e e ' — 3% — 4%
Total .o ; 100% l(_)g% © 100% 100%

Our objective with regard to our allocation of pension assets is to limit the variability of our pension funding
requirements, while maintaining funding at levels that will'ensure the payment of obligations as they come due.
Our strategy in achieving this objective is to allocate our pension assets in a mix that will achieve an optimal rate
of return based on the anticipated timing of our pension benefit obligations, while minimizing the effects of
short-term volatility in plan asset'market values on our funding requirements.

90



GLOBALSANTAFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

We employ third-party consultants who determine our asset allocations by performing an asset/liability
analysis for our various pension plans based on the demographics of plan participants, including compensation
levels and estimated remaining service lives, to determine the timing and amounts of our benefit obligations
under the various plans. These consultants then, based on the results of the asset/liability analysis, determine the
optimal asset allocations for the pension trust assets within the guidelines set by us. Target asset allocations for
pension plan assets for 2005 were 70% equity securities and 30% fixed-income securities for our U.S. plans and
90% equity securities and 10% fixed-income securities for our U.K. plans.

FUNDING

Our funding objective is to fund participants’ benefits under the plans as they accrue. The 2005 actuarial
valuation determined that there were no minimum 2005 pension contribution requirements and we have therefore
decided to defer any contributions until 2006. In January 2006 we contributed $57.6 miilion to our U.S. defined
benefit plans. In 2004 we contributed $59.6 million to our U.S. plans. .

BENEFIT PAYMENTS

Expected benefit payments under our pension plans for the next five years are summarized in the following
table: ‘ '

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011-2015
‘ (In millions)
US.Plans ................... $146 $145 %151 $195 8177 $113.6
UK. Plans................... $08 $08 $09 $10 §$11 $ 95

These expected benefit payments are estimated based on the assumptions used to calculate our projected
benefit obligation as of December 31, 2005, and include benefits attributable to estimated future service.

NONQUALIFIED PLANS

We have established grantor trusts to provide funding for benefits payable under certain of our nonqualified
plans, which are included in the preceding tables. Assets in these trusts, which are irrevocable and can only be
used to pay such benefits, with certain exceptions, are excluded from plan assets in the preceding tables in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions.”
The fair market value of such assets was $18.4 million at December 31, 2005, and $24.1 million at December 31,
2004 (see Note 3).

OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

During 2005 we discontinued offering retiree healthcare coverage for current employees who had not met
certain eligibility requirements. For ¢ligible participants we provide retiree health care benefits to those who are
enrolled in our U.S. Health Care Plan at the time of their retirement and who elect to enroll for such coverage.
For the most part, health care benefits require a contribution from the retiree. We also provided term life
insurance to certain retirees, both U.S. citizens and non-U.S. citizens who retired prior to July 1, 2002. Liabilities
for postretirement health care and life insurance benefits were $15.8 million and $16.0 million at December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively. ‘ '

The weighted-average annual assumed rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered postretirement
medical benefits was 9%, 9% and 10% for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The 9% rate for 2005 is expected
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to decrease ratably to 5% in 2009 and remain at that level thereafter. The health care cost trend rate assumption
can have an effect on the amounts reported. For example, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003,
increasing or decreasing the assumed health care cost trend rates by one percentage point each year would change
the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by approximately $0.3 million and $(0.3) million, respectively,
and the aggregate of the service and interest cost components of net penodxc postretirement benefit by
approximately $14,000 and $(13 000), respectively.

We do not consider our postretirement benefits costs and liabilities to be material to our results of operations
or financial position.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

We have a defined contribution (“401(k)”) savings plan in which substantially all of our U.S. employees are
eligible to participate. Company contributions to the 401(k) savings plan are based on the amount of employee
contributions. We match 100% of each participant’s first six percent of compensation contributed to the plan.
Charges to expense with respect to this plan totaled $7.8 mﬂhon for 2005, $6.6 million for 2004, and $7.4 million
for 2003.

We also sponsor various defined contribution plans for certain of our U. K. employees. Charges to expense
for these plans totaled $1.1 million for 2005, and $0.9 miltion for 2004, and $0.9 million for 2003.

Note 11—Income Taxes

Income from continuing operations before income taxes was comprised of the following:

2005 2004 2003
(In millions)
United States ........... R $ 915 $(50.9) $(64.5)
Forelgn ................................................... 394.5 148.9 193.7
Income from continuing operations before income taxes ........ 486.0 98.0 $129.2

Income taxes have been provided based upon the tax laws and rates in the countries in which operations are
conducted and income is earned. We are a Cayman Islands company and the Cayman Islands does not impose
corporate income taxes. Our U.S. subsidiaries are subject to a U.S. tax rate of 35%.

At December 31, the provision for income taxes consisted of the following:

2005 2004 2003

(In millions)
Current —Foreign ... ... ... e $54.8 %461 $26.6
—US. federal ... ... . . . 1.5 6.5 0.1
B ) £:1 (= 0.8
: 571 526 267
Deferred —Foreign ........ .. ..o i 3.0 04 129
—US.federal ................ciiill. e 28 144 1.2
‘ 5.8 140  (11.7)
Provision for income taxes .................. P $629 $66.6 $15.0
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A reconciliation of the differences between our income tax provision computed at the appropriate statutory
rate and our reported provision for income taxes follows:

2005 2004 2003 (1)
($ in millions)

Income tax provision at statutory rate (Cayman Islands) ................. ... ... $— $ - $ —
Taxes on U.S. and foreign earnings at greater than the Cayman Islands rate ........ 99.0 1159 40.9
Permanent differences . .. ... o e (7.6) 7.0y (1.5)
Subsidiary realignment .. ... .. — 425 —
Change in valuation allowance . ....... ... . . . . . i (29.2) (84.8) (244
Oher, NeL . . .. o 0.7 — —
Provision for inCOMe taXes . ... ...t vit it 62.9 66.6 $150
Effective taxrate . ........ TR P 13%  68% 12%

(1) Prior period has been restated to exclude the results of discontinued operations.

We intend to permanently reinvest all of the unremitted earnings of our U.S. subsidiaries in their businesses.
As aresult, we have not provided for U.S. deferred taxes on $1.1 billion of cumulative unremitted earnings at
December 31, 2005. Should a distribution be made to us from the unremitted earnings of our U.S. subsidiaries,
we could be required to record additional U.S. current and deferred taxes. It is not practicable to estimate the
amount of deferred tax lability associated with these unremitted earnings.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded in recognition of the expected future tax consequences of
events that have been recognized in our financial statements or tax returns. The significant components of our
deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31 were as follows:

2005 2004
(In millions)
Deferred tax assets: .
Net operating loss carryforwards—U.S. . ... ... .. . $131.6 $158.2
Net operating loss carryforwards—various foreign ........... ... ..ot 63.4 53.6
Tax credit carryforwards ... ... L 234 19.8
Accrued expenses not currently deductible ... ... ..o oo 68.1 44.2
Other ........ e 19.5 13.2
306.0 289.0
Less: Valuation allowance ... .. ... e (329) (621
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance ....... ... . ... 273.1 2269
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and depletion for tax in excess of book expense .................... ... 2603 2268
Tax benefit transfers .. ... ...t e — 6.3
L0 11 11" — —
Total deferred tax liabilities ......... ... ... ... i i 260.3  233.1
Net future income tax asset/(hability) (1) ............... R $ 128 % (6.2)

(1) The difference between the change in the net deferred tax asset/(liability) of $19.0 million between
December 31, 2005 and 2004, differs from the deferred tax expense of $ 5.8 million reported for 2005 due
primarily to riet tax benefits charged to equity accounts as a result of the tax effects of minimum pension
liability adjustments and deductions taken for employee option exercises.
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We have historically established valuation allowances against our NOL carryforwards when, based on
earnings projections, we determine that it is more likely than not that the NOL in a particular jurisdiction will not
be fully utilized. ‘

In 2005, we decreased the valuation allowance related to our deferred tax assets by $29.2 million,
$24.9 million of which relates to the utilization of Global-Marine’s U.S. net operating loss (“NOL”)
carryforwards. As of December 31, 2004, $71.6 million of a $76.1 million U.S. NOL was expected to expire
unutilized and we carried a valuation allowance equal to $71.6 million against the expiring NOL. Over the course
of 2005, U.S. taxable income increased significantly as compared to the 2004 estimate to the extent that only
$6.3 million of the 2005 expiring NOL was not utilized at the end of the year. As a consequence, $69.8 million of
the U.S. valuation allowance was released which resulted in a $24.9 million U.S. tax benefit in 2005. The total
valuation allowance was further reduced by $4.3 million s the associated NOLs expired. As of December 31,
2005 all of the remaining valuation allowance relates to foreign NOL carryforwards.

The valuation allowance against U.S. and foreign NOLs was reduced by $77.4 million and $7.4 million
respectively in 2004 due to utilization of U.S. NOL’s and the expiration of foreign NOLs. We did not adjust the
valuation allowance against the U.S. NOL carryforwards of Global Marine in 2003.

In December 2004, we completed a subsidiary realignment to separate our international and domestic
holding companies. This realignment included the redemption of a minority interest in a foreign subsidiary held
by one of our U.S. subsidiaries, along with the intercompany sale of certain rigs between U.S. and foreign
subsidiaries. These transactions generated a U.S. taxable gain which resulted in 4 total tax expense of
approximately $135.0 million. This expense ‘was reduced in part by the recognition of $77.4 million of tax
benefits resulting from the release of valuation allowances previously recorded against a portion of our U.S. NOL
carryforwards, the recognition of a $6.8 million tax benefit from the release of deferred tax liabilities and the
deferral of $8.3 million of tax expense related to the gain on the intercompany rig sales. This net deferred tax
benefit will be recognized for financial reporting purposes. over the remaining useful lives of the rigs. The total
tax expense recognized for financial reporting purposes was $42.5 million, comprised of $37.4 million of
deferred tax expense and $5.1 million of current tax expense.

At December 31, 2005, we had $375.9 million of U.S. NOL carryforwards. In addition, we have
$21.0 million of non-expiring U.S. alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards. The NOL carryforwards and
the U.S. alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards can be used to reduce our U'S. federal income taxes
payable in future years. The NOL carryforwards subject to expiration expire as follows (in millions):

Year ended December 31: Total United States Foreign
2006 .. $ 25.7 $ 196 $ 6.1
2007 ..... P e 34.1 341 —
2008 ... e e 18.8 18.8 —
2009 . 0.6 0.6
20010 23 — 23
20U1 o 1.3 — 1.3
2012 o . — — —
2013 L L 23.1 — 23.1
2014 . 2.0 — 2.0
2018 ... e e L 229 - 229 —
2020 ... Lo 53.3 533 —
2021 e 43.3 43.3 —
2022 ..o e e 113.0 113.0 —
2023 ..... S A 70.7 70.7 —
2024 e 0.2 0.2 —
Total .............. e $411.3 $375.9 $35.4
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In addition, we also had $27.0 million, $126.3 million, $11.0 million, and $14.2 million of non-expiring
NOL carryforwards in the United Kingdom, Trinidad and Tobago, Luxemburg and Netherlands respectively.

Our ability to realize the benefit of our deferred tax asset requires that we achieve certain future earnings
levels prior to the expiration of our NOL carryforwards. We have established a valuation allowance against the
future tax benefit of a portion of our NOL carryforwards and could be required to further adjust that valuation
allowance if market conditions change materially and future earnings are, or are projected to be, significantly
different from our current estimates. Our NOL carryforwards are subject to review and potential disallowance
upon audit by the tax authorities in the jurisdictions where the loss was incurred.

Note 12—Earnings Per Ordinary Share
A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted per share computations for net
income follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
(In millions, except share and per share amounts)

Numerator:
Income from continuing operations ........ $ 4231 § 314§ 114.2
Income from discontinued operations ... . ... — 112.3 15.2
NetiMCOME . oo it ettt iie it $ 423.1 $ 143.7 $ 1294
Denominator:
Ordinary shares—Basic .. ................ 240,888,294 234,754,492 233,183,966
Add effect of employee stock options . . ... .. © 4,238,312 2,416,794 1,739,218
Ordinary shares—Diluted . e 245,126,606 237,171,286 234.923,184
Earnings per ordinary share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations ........ $ 1.76  § 013 % 0.49
Income from discontinued operations . ... ... —_— _ 0.48 . 0.06
Netincome ............. e $ 1.76 % 061 $% 0.55
Diluted: |
Income from continuing operations ........ $ 173§ 013 $ 0.49
Income from discontinued operations .. .. ... — 0.48 0.06
Netincome .......ccoeviiineinn... $ 1.73 % 061 3 0.55

The computation of diluted earnings per share excludes outstanding stock options with exercise prices
greater than the average market price of our ordinary shares for the year, because the inclusion of such options
would have the effect of increasing diluted earnings per ordinary share (i.e., their effect would be “antidilutive™).
Antidilutive options that were excluded from diluted earnings per ordinary share and could potentiaily dilute
basic earnings per ordinary share in the future represented 1,897,236 shares in 2005, 9,090,138 shares in 2004
and 15,635,120 shares in 2003.

Diluted earnings per ordinary share for 2004 and 2003 exclude 4,875,062 potentially dilutive shares that
would have become issuable upon conversion of the Zero Coupon Convertible Debentures because the inclusion
of such shares would have been antidilutive. We redeemed all of the Zero Coupon Convertible Debentures in
2005 (see Note 4).

95




GLOBALSANTAFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F INANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Note 13—Supplemental Cash Flow Information

In December 2005, our Board of Directors declared a regular quarterly cash dividend in the amount of
$0.225 per ordinary share. The dividend in the amount of $55.0 million was paid on January 13, 2006, to
shareholders of record as of the close of business on December 31, 2005.

Cash payments for capital expenditures for the year énded December 31, 2005, include $63.9 miilion of
capital expenditures that were accrued but unpaid at December 31, 2004. Cash payments for capital expenditures
for the year ended December 31, 2004, include $16.6 million of capital expenditures that were accrued but
unpaid at December 31, 2003. Cash payments for capital expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2003,
include $19.2 million of capital expenditures that were accrued but unpaid at December 31, 2002. Capital
expenditures that were accrued but not paid as of December 31, 2005, totaled $49.8 million. This amount is
included in Accounts payable in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2005.

In connection with damage sustained by our rigs from Hurricane Katrina and Hurricane Rita (see Note 5),
we have accrued a receivable of approximately $120.8 million, which represents amounts expected to be
recovered from our insurance underwriters, including los$ of hire recoveries.

Cash payments made for interest in 2005 were exceeded by amounts capitalized, resulting in the gross
interest payments of $33.5 million being capitalized. Cash payments for interest, net of amounts capitalized,
totaled $10.2 million and $13.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Cash
payments for income taxes, net of refunds, totaled $66.7 million, $37.6 million and $50.4 million for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Note 14—Segment and Geographic Information

We have three lines of business, each organized along the basis of services and products and each with a
separate management team. Our three lines of business are reported as separate operating segments and consist of
contract drilling, drilling management services and oil and gas. Our contract drilling business provides fully
crewed, mobile offshore drilling rigs to oil and gas operators on a daily rate basis and is also referred to as
dayrate drilling. Our drilling management services business provides offshore oil and gas drilling management
services on either a dayrate or completed-project, fixed-price (“turnkey”) basis, as well as drilling engineering
and drilling project management services. Our oil and gas business participates in exploration and production
activities, principally in order to facilitate the acquisition of turnkey contracts for our drilling management
services operations.

We evaluate and measure segment performance on the basis of operating income. Intersegment revenues,
which have been eliminated from the consolidated totals; are recorded at transfer prices which are intended to
approximate the prices charged to external customers. Segment operating income consists of revenues from
external customers less the related operating costs and expenses and excludes interest expense, interest income,
restructuring costs and corporate expenses. Segment assets consist of all current and long-lived assets, exclusive
of affiliate receivables and investments.
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Information by operating segment, together with reconciliations to the consolidated totals, is presented in

the following table:

REVENUES FROM EXTERNAL
CUSTOMERS

2005

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND
AMORTIZATION
2005

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
2005(4) oo
2004

2005

)

Drilli
Contract Man::gemmgent Oil and Eliminations
Drilling Services Gas Corporate  and Other  Consolidated
{In millions)

$1.640.2 $566.6 $ 56.7 $2,263.5
1,176.9 515.2 31.6 1,723.7
1,263.9 523.4 20.9 1,808.2

243 1237 — (48.0) —

14.9 16.3 —_ (31.2) —

27 5.0 —_— a.n —_
1,664.5 590.3° 56.7 (48.0) 2,263.5
1,191.8 531.5 31.6 (31.2) 1,723.7
1,266.6 5284 20.9 7.7 1,808.2
445.3 31.3 339 (67.9) 21.8 (1) 464.4
119.1 6.7 194 (62.0) 50.6 (2) 133.8
138.0 31.7 12.0 52.7) 3.4 3) 125.6
259.6 — - 80 N ~ 275.3
246.3 — 5.0 5.5 — 256.8
249.5 — 3.1 4.9 — 2575
371.2 — 14.1 11.6 — 396.9
416.2 — 20.4 16.3 — 4529
446.3 — 133 6.4 —_— 466.0
5,888.6 114.1 1450 1733 (98.9) (5)  6,222.1
5,554.4 82.4 119.5 3202 (78.3) 5,998.2
5,284.5 81.3 856 7708 (72.5) 6,149.7
339.0 — — — — 339.0
338.1 — — — —_ 338.1
352.1 — — — — 352.1

The 2005 amount includes a gain of $23.5 million relating of the sale of the Glomar Robert. F. Bauer and

gains totaling $4.5 million relating to deferred consideration on the sale of part of our oil and gas division’s
interest in certain oil and gas properties (Note 2). These amounts were offset by amounts recorded as a
result of damage sustained by our rigs from Hurricanes Rita and Katrina during third quarter of 2005. We
recorded an involuntary loss totaling $127 million against the carrying value of rigs damaged in the storms,
offset by $117 million in anticipated insurance recoveries. The net loss of $10 million represents our
insurance deductible for Hurricane Rita, while the 60-day waiting period under our loss of hire insurance

97



GLOBALSANTAFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

policy will serve as the only insurance deducible for Hurricane Katrina. In the fourth quarter of 2005 we
recorded $3.8 million for estimated recoveries from insurers under this loss of hire insurance policy related
to Hurricane Katrina (Note 5).

(2) The 2004 amount includes a gain of $24.0 million as a result of the loss of the GSF Adriatic IV and gains
totaling $27.8 million related to the sales of oil and gas division’s interests in certain oil and gas properties,
offset in part by an impairment loss of $1.2 million in connection with the sale of a platform rig (Note 2).

(3) Amount for 2003 consists of changes to estimated restructuring costs incurred in connection with the
Merger. :

(4) Capital expenditures include approximately $14.1 million, $63.9 million and $16.6 million of capital
expenditures related to ourrig building program that had been accrued but not paid as of December 31,
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively (Note 13).

(5) Amounts for 2005, 2004, and 2003 reflect the deferral of intersegment turnkey drilling profit credited to our
full cost pool of oil and gas properties (see Note 2).

Turnkey drilling projects often involve numerous subcontractors and third party vendors and, as a result, the
actual final project cost is typically not known at the time a project is completed (see “Critical Accounting
Policies and Estimates—Turnkey Drilling Estimates”). Results for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,
were favorably affected by downward revisions to cost estimates of wells completed in prior years totaling $2.7
million and $3.3 million, respectively, which represented approximately less than 1.0% and 1.0%, respectively,
of drilling management services expenses for 2004 and 2003. The effect of these revisions was more than offset,
however, by the deferral of turnkey profit totaling $17.1 million in 2005 and $17.6 million in 2004 related to
wells in which a subsidiary of our oil and gas division was either the operator or held a working interest. This
turnkey profit has been credited to our full cost pool of oil and gas properties and will be recognized through a
lower depletion rate as reserves are produced. '

One customer accounted for more than 10% of consolidated revenues for 2005: BP provided $261.0 million
of contract drilling revenues and $1.2 million of oil and gas revenues. One customer accounted for more than
10% of consolidated revenues in 2004: Total and its affiliated companies provided $186.0 million of contract
drilling revenues. Two customers each accounted for more than 10% of consolidated revenues in 2003: Total
provided $234.2 million of contract drilling revenues, and ExxonMobil provided $231.6 million of contract
drilling revenues.

We are incorporated in the Cayman Islands; however, all of our operations are located in countries other
than the Cayman Islands. Revenues and assets by geographic area in the tables that follow were attributed to
countries based on the physical location of the assets. The mobilization of rigs among geographic areas has
affected area revenues and long-lived assets over the periods presented. Revenues from external customers by
geographic areas were as follows:

2005 2004 2003
: (In millions)
United Kingdom ............................... $ 4396 $ 3305 $ 4470
Nigeria ............ e 73.5 80.3 119.2
Egypt .ot 112.8 97.8 82.8
Angola .. ..o 148.1 7.9 0.1
Other foreign countries (1) ....................... 809.7 595.5 555.1
Total foreign revenues . ................ T, 1,583.7 1,112.0 1,204.2
United States ...t i 679.8 611.7 604.0
Total TEVENUES . .\ oot e et et et e $2,263.5 $1,723.7 $1,808.2

(1) Individually less than 5% of consolidated revenues for 2005, 2004, and 2003.
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Long-lived assets by geographic areas, based on their physical location at December 31, were as follows:

2005 2004
(In millions)

Properties and equipment;

United Kingdom .......... . . i, § 5883 $ 5189
Angola ... 460.3 66.8
Other foreign countries (1) ......... ... .. ... ... ... ..... 1,706.0 2,184.0
Total foreign long-lived assets ...................... 2,754.6 2,769.7
United States . ... ..o e - L1095 836.2
Total productive assets ............c...coivrnenn.n. 3,864.1 3,605.9
Construction in progress—Unpited States .................. 453.7 —
Construction in progress—Singapore .................. e — 724.0
Total properties and equipment . ..................... 4,317.8 4,329.9
Goodwill . ... 339.0 338.1
Total long-lived assets . . ... .....oovivrrorinrenn .. $4,656.8  $4,668.0

(1) Individually less than 10% of consolidated long-lived assets at Dece;fnber 3L

Note 15—Transactions with Affiliates

Until December 2005, Kuwait Petroleum Corporation, through its wholly owned subsidiary, SFIC Holdings
(Cayman), Inc., owned a portion of our outstanding shares. At December 31, 2004, Kuwait Petroleum
Corporation held 43,500,000 ordinary shares, approximately 18.4% of our ordinary shares. During 2005, we
repurchased all 43,500,000 ordinary shares from Kuwait Petroleum Corporation with the net proceeds of public
offerings of an equal number of ordinary shares, as described in Note 16—Share Repurchase. Kuwait Petroleum
Corporation’s ownership interest had entitled it to certain rights pursuant to an intercompany agreement entered
into with Santa Fe International in connection with the initial public offering of Santa Fe International and
amended in connection with the Merger.

The intercompany agreement, as amended, provided that, as long as Kuwait Petroleum Corporation and its
affiliates, in the aggregate, owned at least 10% of our outstanding ordinary shares, the consent of SFIC Holdings
was required to change the jurisdiction of any of our existing subsidiaries or incorporate a new subsidiary in any
jurisdiction in a manner materially adversely affecting the rights or interests of Kuwait Petroleum Corporation
and its affiliates or to reincorporate us in another jurisdiction and provide SFIC Holdings rights to access,
information concerning us. The intercompany agreement, as amended, also provided that SFIC Holdings had the
right to designate up to three representatives to. our Board of Directors based on SFIC Holdings” ownership
percentage. As of December 31, 2005, all of SFIC Holdings’ representatives on our Board of Directors had

resigned.

As part of our land drilling operations, we provided contract drilling services in Kuwait to the Kuwait Oil
Company, K.S.C. (“KOC™), a subsidiary of Kuwait Petroleum Corporation, and also provided contract drilling
services to a partially owned affiliate of KOC in the Kuwait-Saudi Arabian Partitioned Neutral Zone. Such J
* services were performed pursuant to drilling contracts containing terms and conditions and rates of compensation
which materially approximated those that were customarily included in arm’s-length contracts of a similar
nature. In connection therewith, KOC provided us rent-free use of certain land and maintenance facilities. On
May 21, 2004, we completed the sale of our land drilling fleet and related support equipment and we no longer
provide contract drilling services to KOC. We still, however, maintain an agency agreement with a subsidiary of
Kuwait Petroleum Corporation that obligates us to pay certain agency fees.
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During the year ended December 31, 2005, we paicli $34,000 of agency fees pursuant to the agency
agreement in return for their sponsorship that allows us to operate in Kuwait. We did not earn any revenues from
KOC or its affiliate during 2005. During the year ended December 31, 2004, we earned revenues from KOC and
its affiliate for performing land contract drilling services in the ordinary course of business totaling $20.5 million
and paid $211,000 of agency fees pursuant to the agency agreement. During the year ended December 31, 2003,
we earned revenues from KOC and its affiliate for performing land contract drilling services in the ordinary
course of business totaling $45.6 million and paid $444,000 of agency fees pursuant to the agency agreement. At
December 31, 2005 and 2004, we had accounts receivable from affiliates of Kuwait Petroleum Corporation of
$0.1 million and $2.1 million, respectively.

Note 16—Share Repurchase .

During 2005, we issued a total of 43,500,000 ordinary shares in two public offerings and, in each case,
immediately used the net proceeds to repurchase an equal number of our ordinary shares from a subsidiary of
Kuwait Petroleum Corporation at a price per share equal to the net proceeds per share we received in the
offering. The first offering was'in April 2005, in which we issued 23,500,000 ordinary shares at an aggregate
price, net of underwriting discount, of approximately $799.5 million ($34.02 per share). The second offering was
in December 2005, in which we issued 20,000,000 ordinary shares at an aggregate price, net of underwriting
discount, of approximately $977.1 million ($48.86 per share). In connection with these transactions, we incurred
a total of $0.9 million of expenses, which were recorded as a reduction of additional paid in capital. There was no
change in the number of outstanding shares as the result of the two transactions as the shares repurchased were
immediately cancelled.

Note 17—Summarized Financial Data—Global Marine Inc. and Subsidiaries

Global Marine Inc. (“Global Marine”), one of our wholly owned subsidiaries, is a domestic and
international offshore drilling contractor, with a fleet of 12 mobile offshore drilling rigs worldwide. Global
Marine, through its subsidiaries, provides offshore drilling services on a dayrate basis in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico
and internationally, provides drilling management services on a turnkey basis, and also engages in oil and gas
exploration, development and production activities, principally in order to facilitate the acqulsmon of turnkey
contracts for its drilling management services operations.

* Summarized financial mformauon for Global Marine and its consolidated subsidiaries follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
; X (In millions)
Sales and other operating revenues .................... $720.6 %7059 - $1,361.8
OperatingIncome . .......... .. .. .. ... it 109.1 133.0 504
Netincome (10SS) .. ..ov it 116.9 9.7 (13.5)
' December 31,
2005 2004
; : (In millions)
CUrrent ASSEIS . .o ov v et e e et e $ 2543 $ 2145
Net properties and equipment ............, e 946.2 961.7
Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries ..................... — —
Oher @SSEES & . v v o ittt e e e e 1,524.7 1,390.2
Current liabilities . . .......... .. ... ..., e T 4129 . 4700
Total long-term debt (1) ................. R 312.9 313.1
Other long-term liabilities . ........ ... . o 102.8 44.4
Netequity ...t e 1,896.6 1,738.8

(1) . Includes capitalized lease bbligation.



SUPPLEMENTAL OIL AND GAS DISCLOSURE (Unaudited)

Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 69, “Disclosures about Oil and Gas Producing
Activities” (“SFAS69”), we are required to provide supplemental oil and gas disclosures if our oil and gas
subsidiaries are considered significant. In 2005, our oil and gas operations were not considered significant under
the provisions in SFAS 69. Our estimated 2004 and 2003 net proved reserves and proved developed reserves of
crude oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids are shown in the table below.

2004 2003
Gas il Gas Oil |
Millions of Thousands of Millions of Thousands of
Cubic feet Barrels Cubic feet Barrels
United States:
Proved Reserves:
Balance, January 1........... .. ... ... .. .. .. 5,906 287 6,675 316
Increase (decrease) during the year attributable to: _
Revisions of previous estimates ............ 181 56 - 169 9
Extensions, discoveries and other additions . . . 1,377 18 2,331 60
Production ...................... AT (2,752) (85) (3,269) (98)
Sales of minerals inplace ................. 402 1 — —
Balance, December31........... ... .. ... 5,114 277 5,906 287
Proved Developed Reserves:
January 1 ... .. ol T 5,906 287 6,675 316
December 31 . ........ o 5,081 277 5,906 287
United Kingdom:
Proved Reserves:
Balance, January 1............ ... ... Lo — 4,188 — 4,188
Increase (decrease) during the year attributable to:
Revisions of previous estimates ............ — 146 — —_
Extensions, discoveries and other additions . . . — 586 — —
Production ................ e — (263) C—_ —_
Sales of minerals inplace ................. — (2,094) — —
Balance, December31 ........................ —_— 2,563 — 4,188
Proved Developed Reserves:
January 1 ... ... — — — —
December31 ... ... — 2,563 — —
Total:
Proved Reserves:
Balance,January 1. ........... ... .. .. ... ... 5,906 4,475 6,675 4,504
Increase (decrease) during the year attributable to:
Revisions of previous estimates ............ 181 202 169 9
Extensions, discoveries and other additions . .. 1,377 604 2,331 60
Production .............. ... ... ... ... (2,752) (348) (3,269) (98)
Sales of mineralsinplace ................. 402 (2,093) — —
Balance, December31 ..., 5,114 2,840 5,906 4,475
Proved Developed Reserves:
January 1 ... ... 5,906 287 6,675 316
December31 ... .. oo 5,081 2,840 5,906 287




Users of this information should be aware that the process of estimating quantities of “proved” and “proved
developed” natural gas and crude oil reserves is very complex, requiring significant subjective decisions in the
evaluation of all available geological, engineering and economic data for each reservoir. The data for a given
reservoir may also change substantially over time as a result of numerous factors including, but not limited to,
additional development activity, evolving production history and continual reassessment of the viability of
production under varying economic conditions. Consequently, material revisions to existing reserve estimates
occur from time to time. Although every reasonable effort is made to ensure that reserve estimates reported
represent the most accurate assessments possible, the significance of the subjective decisions required and
variances in available data for various reservoirs make these estimates generally less precise than other estimates
presented in connection with financial statement disclosures.

Proved reserves are estimated quantities of crude oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids which geological
and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known
reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions. Our proved reserves are located in the United States
and in the United Kingdom (North Sea). Proved developed reserves are those proved reserves that can be
expected to be recovered through existing wells with existing equipment and operating methods.

The estimates of our proved oil and gas reserves in the United States were prepared by Netherland, Sewell
and Associates, Inc. (“Netherland & Sewell”) and estimates of our proved oil and gas reserves in the United
Kingdom were prepared by the firm of DeGolyer and MacNaughton, based on data supplied by us. The reports
issued by these firms, including descriptions of the bases used in preparmg the reserve estimates, are filed as
exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

There were no capitalized, costs of unproved oil and gas properties excluded from the full cost amortization
pool as of December 31, 2004. Capitalized costs of unproved oil and gas properties excluded from the full cost
amortization pool as of December 31, 2003, totaled $2.9 million. Costs incurred related to oil and gas activities
consisted of the following: ‘

' : 2004 2003

(In millions)
Uhnited States:
EXPlOTAtion COSS . ...ttt e $13 $ 39
Development costs .. .. .....c.ovuiu.. .. e 25 03
Acquisition of properties .. ............... e e 0.7 0.1
Total United States ................. e $ 45 4.3
United Kingdom: ,
EXPIOTAtion COSS . . ..t vttt ittt $02 $—
Development COSIS . . ... ...ttt e e 15.7 9.0
Acquisition of properties ................. e — —
Total United Kingdom . .............. e $15.9 $ 9.0
Total: v ’
EXPlOration COSES . ... out vttt e e e e e $ 15 $ 39
DeVElOPIMENt COSES . . .\ttt et e e et et e e et e e 18.2 9.3
Acquisition of properties .. ............... e 0.7 0.1

Total . ....... e e $20.4 $13.3

The calculation of estimated future net cash flows in the following table assumed the continuation of
existing economic conditions. Future net cash inflows were computed by applying year-end prices (except for
future price changes as allowed by contract) of oil and gés to the expected future production of proved reserves,
less future expenditures (based on year-end costs) expected to be incurred in developing and producing such
reserves.

102



The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to proved oil and gas reserves as of
December 31 follows:

2004 2003
(In millions)

United States. -

Future cashinflows ............... e e e $ 435 $ 447
Future production and development costs .. ...........covviiiinnn. .. _ 172 160
Futurenetcashflows . ... ... .. i 26.3 28.7
Ten percent annual discount for estimated timing of cash flows ........... 38 43
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash relating to proved oil and
BASTESETVES o\ttt it ettt et et $ 225 $ 244
United Kingdom:
Future cashinflows ..................... e - $102.7 %1272
Future production and development costs .. .........coooviienan..., 48.6 71.8
Future net cash flows .. ... ... e e 54.1 49.4
Ten percent annual discount for estimated timing of cash flows ........... C 147 16.1
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash relating to proved oil and
ASTESETVES .. ... ovvvlneenn. e e $394 § 333
Total:
Future cashinflows . ... ... .. i $146.2 $171.9
Future production and development costs . ................. e 65.8 93.8
Future netcash flows .. ... ... i 80.4 78.1
Ten percent annual discount for estimated timing of cash flows ........... 18.5 204
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash relating to proved oil and
$ 619 §577

B R (ST & A

103




Principal sources of changes in the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows follow:

United States:

. Balance, January 1 ...............

Revisions to quantity estimates and production rates ..............

Prices, net of lifting costs .. ...
Estimated future development costs
Accretion of ten percent discount

Additions, extensions and discoveries plus improved recovery ... ...

Net sales of production .......
Sales and purchases of reserves in place

Development costs incurred

Other .....................

Balance, D_ecember 3.

United Kingdom:
Balance, January 1 ........... .. ..

Revisions to quantity estimates and productionrates ..............

Prices, net of lifting costs .....
Estimated future development costs
Accretion of ten percent discount

Additions, extensions and discoveries plus improved recovery . .. ...

Net sales of production . ......
Sales and purchases of reserves in place

Development costs incurred

Other .................. ...

Balance, December 31 . ... ........

Total:
Balance, January 1 ............. ..

Revisions to quantity estimates and production rates ..............

Prices, net of lifting costs ... ..
Estimated fature development costs
Accretion of ten percent discount

Additions, extensions and discoveries plus improved recovery ... ...

Net sales of production .......
Sales and purchases of reserves in place

Development costs incurred

Other .....................
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2004 2003

(In millions)

$244  $245
2.0 0.8
2.0 6.1
(1.2) (1.4)
2.4 24
4.4 9.2
(163)  (18.2)
2.7 —
0.2 0.3
1.9 0.7
$225  $244
$333  $309
3.1 —
13 (4.5)
©.1 AL
33 3.1
12.4 —
(11.3) —
(16.7) —
15.5 14.7
(1.4) 0.8
$394  $333
$57.7  $554
5.1 0.8
33 1.6
13y (3.1
5.7 55
16.8 9.2
7.6)  (18.2)
(14.0) -
15.7 15.0
0.5 1.5
$619 $577




Results of operations from producing activities follow:

2004 2003
(In millions)
United States:
Revenues . ... i e $19.4 $20.9
Expenses:
Production Costs .. ...t 3.1 2.7
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ....................... 3.8 3.1
Technical supportandother ..................... ... . ... .... 1.6 23
Gains on sales of properties .............. ... ... . i — —
Income before INCOME tAXES ... .. ...t iir s 10.9 12.8
Income tax expense (benefit) . .......... ... ... .. ... .. 3.8 4.2
Results of operations from producing activities ..................c.... 7.1 $ 8.6
United Kingdom:
Revenues .................... e $12.2 $—
Expenses:
Production Costs .. ... ot e e 0.9 —_—
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ....................... 1.2 —
Technical supportand other ....................... ... . ... .. 1.6 0.8
3.7 0.8
Gainsonsalesof properties ... ......... ... ... . o it 251 —
Income before income taxes ............ccvuriiiinninann. 33.6 (0.8)
Income tax expense (benefit) . ........ ... ... . . 16.5 —
Results of operations from producing activities ...................... $17.1 $(0.8)
Total:
ReVenuES . ... ... $31.6 $20.9
Expenses:
Production Costs . .. ... e 4.0 2.7
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ....................... 5.0 3.1
Technical support andother ............... ... ... ... ... ... 3.2 3.1
12.2 8.9
Gains on sales of properties .. ...... ... ... i 25.1 —
Income before income taxes ......... ... i 44.5 12.0
Income tax expense (benefit) . ........ ... 20.3 4.2
Results of operations from producing activities ...................... $24.2 $ 7.8

Results of operations from producing activities in the table above exclude a gain of $2.7 million ($2.0
million net of taxes) related to the sale of our oil and gas division’s interest in a drilling project in West Africa
off the coast of Mauritania. This interest was classified as unproved oil and gas properties on our Consolidated
Balance Sheet at December 31, 2003.

105




PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information relating to our directors and Section 16(a) beneficial ownership reporting compliance is
incorporated herein by reference to the Sections entitied “Election of Directors,” “Board Committees” and
“Other Matters—Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” of our definitive proxy statement
which will be filed no later than 120 days after December 31, 2005.

t
Information related to the designation of our audit committee financial expert is incorporated herein by
reference to the section entitled “Board Committees” of our definitive proxy statement which will be filed no
later than 120 days after December 31, 2005.

Information with respect to. our executive officers re‘quired by Item 401 of Regulation S-K is set forth in
Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer,
the Treasurer, and the Controller. We have posted a copy of the code on our Internet website at:
http://www.globalsantafe.com under the caption “Corporate Governance.” Copies of the code may be obtained
free of charge from our website or by requesting a copy in writing from our Secretary at 15375 Memorial Drive,
Houston, Texas 77079. We intend to disclose any amendments to, or waivers from, a provision of the code of
ethics that applies to the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer or the Controller by postmg such
information on our website.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required by Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to the Sections entitled “Director
Compensation,” “Executive Compensation” and “Employment Agreements and Termination Agreements” of our
definitive proxy statement which will be filed no later than 120 days after December 31, 2005.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information related to security ownership required by Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference to the
Section entitled “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners,” “Security Ownership of Directors and
Executive Officers,” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information” of our definitive proxy statement which will
be filed no later than 120 days after December 31, 2005. ‘

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information required by Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference to the Section entitled “Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions” of our definitive, proxy statement which will be filed no later than
120 days after December 31, 2005. ‘

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information required by Item 14 is incorporated heréin by reference to the Section entitled “Audit
Committee Report” of our definitive proxy statement which will be filed no later than 120 days after
December 31, 2005. ' -

112




PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Page
(a) Financial Statements, Schedules and Exhibits
(1) Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm .......................... 61
Consolidated Statements of Income . ....... .. .. i 63
Consolidated Balance Sheets . ... ...ttt e 64
Consolidated Statements of Cash FIOWS . ... ... ..ottt 66
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity ........... ... ... ... ... .. ..., 67
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ... ..........cco v, 68
(2) Financial Statement Schedule
Report of Independent Registered Public' Accounting Firm ........... ... ... .... ... 108
Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts ........... ..., 109

Schedules other than Schedule II are omitted for the reason that they are not applicable.

(3) Exhibits
The following are included as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File

No. 1-14634). Exhibits filed herewith are so indicated “+”. Exhibit incorporated by reference are so indicated by
parenthetical information. '

2.1

22

3.1

32

4.1

4.2

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of August 31, 2001, among the Corhpany, Silver Sub, Inc., Gold
Merger Sub, Inc. and Global Marine Inc. (incorporated herein by this reference to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 4, 2001).

Purchase Agreement between GlobalSantaFe Corporation, GlobalSantaFe Drilling Venezuela, C.A.,
GlobalSantaFe Drilling Operations Inc., and Saudi Drilling Company Limited as Seller Parties and
Precision Drilling Corporation, P. D. Technical Services Inc., Precision Drilling De Venezuela C.A.,
Precision Drilling Services Saudi Arabia Ltd., Muscat Overseas Oil & Gas Drilling Co. LLC, and

' Precision Drilling (Cyprus) Limited as Buyer Parties dated as of April 1, 2004 (incorporated herein by

this reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Current Report on 8-K filed April 2, 2004).

Amended and Restated Memorandum of Association of the Company, adopted by Special Resolution of
the members effective November 20, 2001 (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001). '

Amended and Restated Articles of Association of the Company, adopted by Special Resolution of the
members effective June 9, 2004 (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30; 2004).

Section 15.2 of the Amended and Restated Articles of Association of the Company requiring advance
written notice of any nomination or proposal to be submitted by a shareholder at any general meeting of
shareholders (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Indenture dated as of September 1, 1997, between Global Marine Inc: and-Wilmington Trust Company,.
as Trustee, relating to Debt Securities of Global Marine Inc. (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 4.1 of Global Marine Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (No. 333-39033) filed with the
Commission on October 30, 1997); First Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 23, 2000 (incorporated
herein by this reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Global Marine Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(Commission File No. 1-5471) for the quarter ended June 30, 2000); Second Supplemental Indenture
dated as of November 20, 2001 (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of December 31, 2005, pursuant to Rule 13&-15(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Act”). Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2005, in ensuring that information required
to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms,
including ensuring that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure. There were no changes in our internal control dver financial reporting for the fourth quarter of 2005
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materlally affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

MANAGEMENT’ s REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of GlobalSantaFe Corporation is responSIble for establishing and maintaining adequate 1ntemal
control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. GlobalSantaFe Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Internal control over financial reporting includes those written policies and procedures that:

+ pertain to the maintenarice of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of GlobalSantaFe Corporation;

* provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America and that receipts and expenditures of GlobalSantaFe Corporation are being made only in
accordance with authorization of management and directors of GlobalSantaFe Corporation; and

* provide reasonable assurance regarding preventidn or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use
or disposition of assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting includes the controls themselves, monitoring (including internal
auditing practices) and actions taken to correct deficiencies as identified.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in condmons or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of GlobalSantaFe Corporation’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005. Management based this assessment on criteria for effective internal control
over financial reporting described in “Internal Control-—Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Management’s assessment included an evaluation of the
design of GlobalSantaFe Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and testing of the operating
effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting. Management reviewed the results of its assessment
with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors.
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Based on this assessment, management determined that, as of December 31, 2005, GlobalSantaFe
Corporation maintained effective internal control over financial reporting.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing elsewhere in this report, which expresses unqualified opinions
on our management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

During the fourth quarter of 2005, the following individuals each adopted a written plan pursuant to Rule
10b5-1 under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which provided for the exercise of specified stock
options granted to the individual by the Company and the sale of the underlying shares of Company stock in
“cashless” exercise transactions at specified per share market price targets: Anil B. Shah, Vice President and
Treasurer of the Company; R. Blake Simmons, President of Applied Drilling Technology Inc.; and Robert E.
Rose, Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company. Mr. Rose’s plan also provided for the sale of shares
of Company stock that he and certain family trusts already owned at a specified per share market price target. In
addition, each of the foregoing 10b5-1 plans provides for the exercise of any in-the-money stock options granted
to the individual by the Company, to the extent not previously exercised, and the sale of the underlying shares of
Company stock in cashless exercise transactions two business days before the options are due to expire.
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CONSOLIDATED SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

The consolidated selected quarterly financial data should be read in conjunction with “Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the audited
consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included under “Item 8. Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data.”

a

2008

2004
Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
) I (In millions, except per share data)
Revenues ...................... $603.5 $596.6 $574.8 $488.6 $498.3 $463.3 $382.1 $380.0
1
Operating income (loss) . .......... 198.2 = 118.1 94.5 53.6 52.6 75.4 (2.2) 8.0
Income (loss) from continuing " '
operations . .......... . .aiui.., 1802 107.6 85.1 50.2 (7.5) 60.8 (26.0) 41
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of tax effect ... ... — — — —_ 0.1 (2.2) 110.0 4.6
Net income (loss) ............ 1802 1076 85.1 50.2 (7.6) 58.6 84.0 8.7
Net income-includes the following ‘
special items: ‘
Gain (loss) on involuntary
-conversion of long-lived
asset, net of related recoveries
amd loss of hire (1) ........ 3.8 (6.5) — — — 24.0 — —
Gain on sale of land rig
fleet (2) . .....ooooiiiiL. — — — —_ - — 113.1 —
Gain on sale of assets (3) .. .. .. 23.5 2.0 0.7 — — 13.7 — 2.0
Loss on retirement of long-term :
debt(d) .................. — — — — —_ — (21.0) —
Tax effect of internal
restructuring (5) .. ... e — — — — 42,5y — — —
Earnings (loss) per ordinary share
(Basic):
Income (loss) from continuing .
operations .......... e 0.74 0.44 0.36 0.21 (0.03) 026 (0.11) 0.02
Income (loss) from discontinued :
operations . ......... R —_ — —_ — —_ (0.0D) 0.47 0.02
Net income (108S) ... ..... 0.74 0.44 0.36 0.21 0.03) 025 0.36 0.04
Earnings (loss) per ordinary share
(Diluted): ‘
Income (loss) from continuing :
operations ................ 0.73 044 0.35 0.21 (0.03) 026 (0.11) 0.02
Income (loss) from discontinued .
operations ................ — — — — — (0.01) 047 0.02
Net income (loss) .. ...... 0.73 0.44 0.35 0.21 (0.03) 0.25 0.36 0.04
Cash dividened declared per ordinary ,
share ........ .. ... 0.225 0.15 015 0075 0075 0.05 0.05 0.05
Price ranges of ordinary shares:
High ...... ... ... ... 5022 48.00 4400 3905 3320 3175 2894 30.69
Low .. ... 39.15 40300 3227 3195 27.22 2453 2403 2344

(1) In the third quarter of 2005 our fleet in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico was impacted by both Hurricanes Katrina
and Rita. In that quarter we recorded an involuntary 'loss totaling $127 million against the carrying value of
rigs damaged in the storms, offset by $117 million in anticipated insurance recoveries. The net loss of
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3)

Q)

&)

4

$10 million for that quarter ($6.5 million, net of tax) represents our insurance deductible for Hurricane Rita,
while the 60-day waiting period under our loss of hire insurance policy will serve as the only insurance
deducible for Hurricane Katrina. In the fourth quarter of 2005 we recorded $3.8 million for estimated
recoveries from insurers under this loss of hire insurance policy related to Hurricane Katrina, resulting in a
new loss for 2005 of $6.2 million. In August 2004, the cantilevered jackup GSF Adriatic IV encountered
well control problems, caught fire and sank while drilling in the Mediterranean Sea off the coast of Egypt.
We received insurance proceeds totaling $40.0 million, net of our deductible, and recorded a gain of $24.0
million, net of taxes. ‘ '

In May 2004, we sold our land drilling business for a total sales price of $316.5 million and recorded a gain
of $113.1 million, net of a tax benefit of $1.1 million. -

The 2004 amount includes the sale of our oil and gas division’s interests in two oil and gas projects. In the
first quarter 2004, our oil and gas division sold its interest in a drilling project in West Africa for
approximately $6.1 million, recording a gain of $2.7 million. In the third quarter 2004, our oil and gas
division sold a portion of its interest in the Broom Field development project in the North Sea for
approximately $35.9 million, recording a gain of $13.7 million, net of taxes. Pursuant to the terms of the
sale, if commodity prices exceeded a specified amount, we were also entitled to additional post-closing
consideration equal to a portion of the proceeds from the production attributable to this interest sold through

September 2005. In 2005 we recorded an additional gain associated with this deferred consideration

arrarigement of $4.5 million ($2.7 net of taxes), which represents the entire deferred consideration earned
under the sales agreement. In 2005 we also sold the Glomar Robert F. Bauer drillship for $25 million and
recorded a gain of $23.5 million, which has no tax impact.

In 2004 we completed the redemption of the entire outstanding $300 million principal amount of Global
Marine Inc.’s 7 V&% Notes due 2007, recognizing a loss on the early retirement of debt of approximately
$32.4 million.

In 2004 we completed a subsidiary realignment to separate our international and domestic holding
companies. This realignment included the redemption of a minority interest in a foreign subsidiary held by
one of our U.S. subsidiaries, along with the intercompany sale of certain rigs between U.S. and foreign
subsidiaries. This realignment resulted in a charge of $42.5 million (see Note 11).




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of GlobalSantaFe Corporation:

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements, of management’s assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting and of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
referred to in our report dated March 6, 2006, appearing in the 2005 Annual Report to Shareholders of
GlobalSantaFe Corporation and subsidiaries (which report, consolidated financial statements and assessment are
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K) also included an audit of the financial statement schedule listed in
Item 15(a)(2) of this Form 10-K. In our opinion, this financial statement schedule presents fairly, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston, Texas
March 6, 2006
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GLOBALSANTAFE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(In millions)

Additions

Balance Charged to  Charged Balance
at Beginning  Costsand  to Other at End
of Year Expenses  Accounts Deductions of Year
Year ended December 31, 2005: :
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable .. . ... $ 35 $23 $— $(1.0) $ 438
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance ,......... 62.1 24.2 — (53.4) $ 329
Year ended December 31, 2004: '
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable . ... .. $ 79 $— $— $ 44 $ 35
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance .......... 149.6 9.1 2.1 98.7) §$ 62.1
Year ended December 31, 2003:
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable . . .. .. $ 34 $ 49 $— $04 $ 79
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance .. ........ 167.7 11.0 5.1 (34.2) $149.6
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4.3a

4.3b

4.4

4.5a

4.5b

10.1

10.2a

10.2b

10.3a

10.3b

10.4a

10.4b

10.4¢

Form of 7% Note Due 2028 (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Global Marine
Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission File No. 1-5471) dated May 20, 1998).

Terms of 7% Note Due 2028 (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Global Marine
Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission File No. 1-5471) dated May 20, 1998).

Indenture dated as of February 1, 2003, betweén GlobalSantaFe Corporation and Wilmington Trust
Company, as Trustee, relating to Debt Securities of GlobalSantaFe Corporation (incorporated herein
by this reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002).

b
Form of 5% Note due 2013 (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 4.10 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Terms of 5% Note due 2013 (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 4.11 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Bareboat Charter Agreement, dated July 2, 1996, between the United States of America and Global
Marine Capital Investments Inc. (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Global
Marine Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission File No. 1-5471) dated August 1, 1996).

Head Lease Agreement dated 8th December 1998 by and between Nelstar Leasing Company Limited,
as lessor, and Global Marine Leasing Corporation, as lessee, relating to a Glomar Hull 456 class
deepwater drillship to be constructed by Harland and Wolff Shipbuilding and Heavy Industries Ltd.
with bull number 1739 (t.b.n. “Glomar C.R. Luigs”) (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit
10.10 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File No. 1-5471) for the
year ended December 31, 1998). '

Guarantee and Indemnity dated 8th December 1998 by and between Global Marine Inc., as guarantor,
and Nelstar Leasing Company Limited, as lessor (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit
10.11 of Global Marine Inc.”s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File No. 1-5471) for the
year ended December 31, 1998).

Head Lease Agreement dated 8th December 1998 by and between BMBF (No. 12) Limited, as lessor,
and Global Marine International Drilling Corporauon, as lessee, relating to one double hulled,
dynamically positioned ultra-deepwater Glomar class 456 drillship to be constructed by Harland and
Wolff Shipbuilding and Heavy Industries Ltd. with hull number 1740 (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 10.14 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File
No. 1-5471) for the year ended December 31, 1998).

Deed of Guarantee and Indemnity dated 8th December 1998 by and between Global Marine Inc., as
Guarantor, and BMBF (No. 12) Limited, as Lessor (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit
10.15 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File No. 1-5471) for the
year ended December 31, 1998). l

Head-lease Agreement dated January 30, 2003 between GlobalSamaFe Drilling Company (North Sea)
Limited, as lessor, and Sogelease B.V., as lessee, in respect of the jack-up drilling unit known as
“Britannia” (incorporated herein by thrs reference to Exhibit 10.17 of the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002)

Sub-lease Agreement dated January 30, 2003 between Sogelease B.V., as sub-lessor, and
GlobalSantaFe Drilling Company (North Sea) Limited, as sub-lessee, in respect of the jack-up drilling
unit known as “Britannia” (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.18 of the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Guarantee and Indemnity dated January 30, 2003 between GlobalSantaFe Corporation, as guarantor,
and Sogelease B.V. relating to the jack-up drilling unit known as “Britannia” (incorporated herein by
this reference to Exhibit 10.19 of the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002).
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10.5a

10.5b

10.5¢

10.6a

10.6b

10.6¢

*10.7

*10.8a

*10.8b

*10.9a

*10.9b

*10.10a

Form of Underwriting Agreement for Ordinary Shares (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K'filed with the Commission on April 18,
2005).

Terms Agreement dated April 14, 2005 between the Company and Goldman Sachs & Co., as
representative of the underwriters named therein (incorporated herein by this reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on April 18,
2003). :

Share Purchase Agreement dated April 14, 2005, between the Company, Kuwait Petroleum
Corporation and SFIC Holdings (Cayman), Inc. {(incorporated herein by this reference to

Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on April 18,
2005). '

Form of Underwriting Agreement for Ordinary Shares (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on
December 15, 2005).

Terms Agreement dated December 14, 2005 between the Company and Lehman Brothers Inc.
(incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 15, 2005).

Share Purchase Agreement dated December 15, 2003, between the Company, Kuwait Petroleum
Corporation and SFIC Holdings (Cayman), Inc. (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on
December 15, 2005).

Schedule of Compensation for Non-Employee Directors (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on
September 21, 2005).

Base Salaries and Annual Incentive Targets for Certain Executive Officers (incorporated herein by
this reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on December 12, 2005).

Stock-Settled Stock Appreciation Rights for Executive Officers (incorporated herein by this

- reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission

on December 20, 2005).

2005 Annual Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s

- Current Report on Forim 8-K filed January 28, 2005).

2006 Annual Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 20, 2005).

Global Marine Inc. 1989 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.6 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File No. 1-5471)
for the year ended December 31, 1988); First Amendment (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.6 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File No. 1-5471)
for the year ended December 31, 1990); Second Amendment (incorporated herein by this reference
to Exhibit 10.7 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File No.
1-5471) for the year ended December 31, 1991); Third Amendment (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 10.19 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File
No. 1-5471) for the year ended December 31, 1993.); Fourth Amendment (incorporated herein by
this reference to Exhibit 10.16 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission
File No. 1-5471) for the year ended December 31, 1994.); Fifth Amendment (incorporated herein by
this reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Global Marine Inc.’s
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*10.10b

*10.10c

*10.10d

*10.10e

*10.10e(1)

*10.10e(2)

*10.10e(3)

*10.10f

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 1-5471) for the quarter ended June 30,
1996.); Sixth Amendment (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.18 of Global Marine
Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File No. 1-5471) for the year ended December
31, 1996).

Global Marine Inc. 1990 Non-Employee Director Stock Option.Plan (mcorporated herem by this

- reference to Exhibit 10.18 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File

No. 1-5471) for the year ended December 31, 1991); First Amendment (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Global Marine Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File
No. 1-5471) for the quarter ended June 30, 1995); Second Amendment (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 10.37 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File
No. 1-5471) for the year ended December 31, 1996).

1997 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-7070) filed June 13, 1997); Amendment

‘to 1997 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to the

Company’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the calendar year ended December 31, 1998);
Amendment to 1997 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by this
reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the calendar year ended December 31,
1998); Amendment to 1997 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan dated March 23, 1999
{(incorporated herein by this reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the
calendar year ended December 31, 1999); Amendment to Non-Employee Director Stock Option
Plan dated December 1, 1999 (incorporated herein by this reference to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 20-F for the calendar year ended December 31, 1999).

1997 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-7070) filed June 13, 1997); Amendment to 1997 Long
Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 20-F for the calendar year ended December 31, 1998); Amendment to 1997 Long Term
Incentive Plan dated December 1, 1999 (incorporated herein by this reference to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 20-F for the calendar year ended December 31, 1999).

GlobalSantaFe Corporation 1998 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Global Marine Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File
No. 1-5471) for the quarter ended March 31, 1998); First Amendment (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Global Marine Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File
No. 1-5471) for the quarter ended June 30, 2000).

Memorandum dated November 20, 2001, Regarding Grant of Restricted Stock under the
GlobalSantaFe Corporation 1998 Stock Opuon and Incentive Plan, including Terms and Conditions
of Restricted Stock (mcorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-X for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Options used for stock option grants under the GlobalSantaFe
Corporation 1998 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit
10.41 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Form of Memorandum dated March 4, 2002, Regarding Grant of Performance-Based Restricted
Units under the GlobalSantaFe Corporation 1998 Stock Option and Incentive Plan to certain
executive officers of the Company, respectively, including Terms and Conditions of Performance-
Based Restricted Units (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the Company s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

GlobalSantaFe Cotporation 2001 Non- Employee Director Stock Option and Incentive Plan
(incorporated herein by this reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8
(No. 333-73878) filed November 21, 2001): :
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*10.10g
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GlobalSantaFe Corporation 2001 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2001).

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Options used for stock option grants under the GlobalSantaFe
Corporation 2001 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to-Exhibit
10.41 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Form of Memorandum dated March 4, 2002, Regarding Grant of Performance-Based Restricted
Units under the GlobalSantaFe Corporation 2001 Long-Term Incentive Plan to certain executive
officers of the Company, respectively, including Terms and Conditions of Performance-Based
Restricted Units (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant to Non-Employee Directors under the GlobalSantaFe
Corporation 2001 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

GlobalSantaFe 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (as Amended and Restated Effective June 7, 2005)
(incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005).

Forms of Memoranda Regarding Grant of Performance Units under the GlobalSantaFe 2003 Long-
Term Incentive Plan to certain executive officers of the Company, including terms and conditions
for 2003-2005 and 2004-2006 performance cycles (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit
10.35 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Options for stock option grants under the GlobalSantaFe 2003
Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.37 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).

Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant used for new stock option grants to non-employee directors
under the GlobalSantaFe 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.38 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2003).

Form of Notice of Grant for Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Units under the
GlobalSantaFe 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2004).

Form of the Notice of Grant of Stock Options under the GlobalSantaFe 2003 Long-Term Incentive
Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 2, 2005).

Form of the Notice of Grant of Performance Units under the GlobalSantaFe 2003 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 2, 2005).

Form of the Notice of Grant of Performance-Awarded Restricted Stock Units under the
GlobalSantaFe 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March
2, 2005).

Form of Notice of Grant of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Units under the
GlobalSantaFe 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock-Settled Stock Appreciation Rights under the GlobalSantaFe
2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 20, 2005).
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GlobalSantaFe Corporation Key Employee Deferred Compensation Plan effective January 1, 2001;
and Amendment to GlobalSantaFe Corporation Key Employee Deferred Compensation Plan
effective November 20, 2001 (incorporated herein by this reference Exhibit 10.33 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

Trust Agreement between GlobalSantaFe Corporate Services Inc. and Fidelity Management Trust
Company for the GlobalSantaFe Key Employee Deferred Compensation Trust dated as of July 12,
2002 (incorporated herein by this reference Exhibit 10.34 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

GlobalSantaFe Retention Program (As Amended and Restated Effective December 20, 2005).
Retention Notice Under GlobalSantaFe Retention Program.

Employee Severance Protection Plan adopted May 2, 1997 (incorporated herein by this reference
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997); Form of
Executive Severance Protection Agreement thereunder, effective October 18, 1999, between the
Company and fourteen officers, respectively (incorporated herein by this reference to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the calendar year ended December 31, 1999);
Amendments to Executive Severance Prote@tion Agreements, dated October 25, 2001, between the
Company and three executive officers, respectively (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
2002).

Form of Severance Agreement dated Augusi 16, 2001, between Global Marine Inc. and six
executive officers, respectively (subsequently assumed by the Company) (incorporated herein by
this reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Global Marine Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(Commission File No. 1-3471) for the quarter ended September 30, 2001); Supplemental
Agreement to Severance Agreement dated January 20, 2003 by and between Global Marine Inc.,
GlobalSantaFe Corporation and W. Matt Ralls (incorporated herein by this reference to

Exhibit 10.25 of the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2002).

Form of Severance Agreement dated July 29, 2003, between the Company and three executive
officers, respectively (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).

Form Severance Agreement with Executive Officers (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the Commission on July
26, 2005).

GlobalSantaFe Severance Program for Shorebased Staff Personnel effective January 1, 2006
through December 31, 2006.

Group Life and Accident and Health Insurance Policy between Aetna Life Insurance Company and
GlobalSantaFe effective January 1, 2004 (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.42 of
GlobalSantaFe Corporatlon s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2004).

Form of GlobalSantaFe Indemnity Agreement (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.51 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2002).

GlobalSantaFe Personal Financial Planning Assistance Program for Senior Executive Officers
(incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.44 of GlobalSantaFe Corporation’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

GlobalSantaFe Personal Financial Planning Assistance Program for Key Employees (incorporated
herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.45 of GlobalSantaFe Corporation’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).
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GlobalSantaFe Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (incorporated hérein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2002).

GlobalSantaFe Pension Equalization Plan effective as of July 1, 2002 (incorporated herein by this
reference Exhibit 10.35 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004).

Global Marine Benefit Equalization Retirement Trust as cstablished effective January 1, 1990
(incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.9 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K (Commission File No. 1-5471) for the year ended December 31, 1989); First
Amendment and Appointment of Successor Trustee dated as of June 1, 1999, by and between
Global Marine Corporate Services Inc. and SEI Trust Company (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Global Marine Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File
No. 1-5471) for the quarter ended June 30, 1999). Second Amendment to the Global Marine Benefit
Equalization Retirement Trust to be renamed GlobalSantaFe Pension Equalization Plan Trust
effective January 1, 2004 (incorporated herein by this reference Exhibit 10.36 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

Statement setting forth detail of Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

List of Subsidiaries.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
Consent of Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. ’

Consent of DeGolyer and MacNaughton.

Chief Executive Officer’s Certlflcauon pursuant to Rule 13a—14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934.

Chief Financial Officer’s Certification puréuant to Rule 13a—14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934,

Chief Executive Officer’s Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Chief Financial Officer’s Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Report regarding estimates of the Company’s proved oil and gas reserves in the United States prepared
by Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the
Company’s Form 10-K/A amendment to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2004).

Report regarding estimates of the Company’s proved oil and gas reserves in the United Kingdom
prepared by DeGolyer and MacNaughton (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the
Company’s Form 10-K/A amendment to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2004).

+ Filed herewith. .
* Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

GLOBALSANTAFE CORPORATION
(REGISTRANT)

Date: March 3, 2006 ‘ " By: /s/ MICHAEL R. DAWSON

(Michael R. Dawson) R
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requiremehts of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature 5 Title Date
/s/  JON A. MARSHALL - President, Chief Executive Officer and March 3, 2006
(Jon A. Marshall) Director (Principal Executive
Officer)
/s/ MICHAEL R. DAWSON Senior Vice President and Chief March 3, 2006
(Michael R. Dawson) Financial Officer (Principal Financial
Officer)
/s/ ROBERT L. HERRIN, Jr. Vice President and Controller (Principal March 3, 2006
(Robert L. Herrin, Jr.) Accounting Officer)
/s/ FERDINAND A. BERGER Director March 3, 2006

(Ferdinand A. Berger)

/s/ THOMAS W. CASON Director March 3, 2006
(Thomas W. Cason) :

/s/ _RICHARD L. GEORGE Director March 3, 2006
(Richard L. George) :

/s/ EDWARD R. MULLER Directo;r March 3, 2006
(Edward R. Muller)

/s/ PauLJ. POWERS - Director March 3, 2006
(Paul J. Powers) ‘ :

/s/  ROBERT E. ROSE Director A March 3, 2006
(Robert E. Rose) ", '

/s/ STEPHEN J. SOLARZ Director March 3, 2006
(Stephen J. Solarz): ‘

/s/ CARROLL W. SUGGS Director ‘ March 3, 2006
(Carroll W. Suggs)

/s/ JOHN L. WHITMIRE Director March 3, 2006
(John L. Whitmire) \



EXHIBIT INDEX

The following are included as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File
No. 1-14634). Exhibits filed herewith are so indicated “+”. Exhibit incorporated by reference are so indicated by
parenthetical information.

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of August 31, 2001, among the Company, Silver Sub, Inc.,
Gold Merger Sub, Inc. and Global Marine Inc. (incorporated herein by this reference to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 4, 2001).

22 Purchase Agreement between GlobalSantaFe Corporation, GlobalSantaFe Drilling Venezuela, C.A.,
GlobalSantaFe Drilling Operations Inc., and Saudi Drilling Company Limited as Seller Parties and
Precision Drilling Corporation, P. D. Technical Services Inc., Precision Drilling De Venezuela C.A.,
Precision Drilling Services Saudi Arabia Ltd., Muscat Overseas Oil & Gas Drilling Co. LLC, and
Precision Drilling (Cyprus) Limited as Buyer Parties dated as of April 1, 2004 (incorporated herein
by this reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Current Report on 8-K filed April 2, 2004).

3.1 Amended and Restated Memorandum of Association of the Company, adopted by Special
Resolution of the members effective November 20, 2001 (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

3.2 Amended and Restated Articles of Association of the Company, adopted by Special Resolution of
the members effective June 9, 2004 (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004).

4.1 Section 15.2 of the Amended and Restated Articles of Association of the Company requiring
advance written notice of any nomination or proposal to be submitted by a shareholder at any
general meeting of sharecholders (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

4.2 Indenture dated as of September 1, 1997, between Global Marine Inc. and Wilmington Trust
Company, as Trustee, relating to Debt Securities of Global Marine Inc. (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Global Marine Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (No.
333-39033) filed with the Commission on October 30, 1997); First Supplemental Indenture dated as
of June 23, 2000 (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Global Marine Inc.’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 1-5471) for the quarter ended June 30,
2000); Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 20, 2001 (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004).

4.3a Form of 7% Note Due 2028 (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Global Marine
Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission File No. 1-5471) dated May 20, 1998).

4.3b Terms of 7% Note Due 2028 (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Global Marine
Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission File No. 1-5471) dated May 20, 1998).

44 Indenture dated as of February 1, 2003, between GlobalSantaFe Corporation and Wilmington Trust
Company, as Trustee, relating to Debt Securities of GlobalSantaFe Corporation (incorporated herein
by this reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002).

4.5a Form of 5% Note due 2013 (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 4.10 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

4.5b Terms of 5% Note due 2013 (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 4.11 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).
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Bareboat Charter Agreement, dated July 2, 1996, between the United States of America and Global
Marine Capital Investments Inc. (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Global
Marine Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission File No. 1-5471) dated August 1, 1996).

Head Lease Agreement dated 8th December. 1998 by and between Nelstar Leasing Company
Limited, as lessor, and Global Marine Leasing Corporation, as lessee, relating to a Glomar Hull 456
class deepwater drillship to be constructed by Harland and Wolff Shipbuilding and Heavy Industries
Ltd. with hull number 1739 (t.b.n. “Glomar C.R. Luigs”) (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.10 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10 K (Commission File No. 1-5471)
for the year ended December 31, 1998).

Guarantee and Indemmty dated 8th December 1998 by and between Global Marine Inc as
guarantor, and Nelstar Leasing Company Limited, as lessor (incorporated herein by this reference to

_ Exhibit 10.11 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission Ftle No. 1-5471)

for the year ended December 31, 1998).

Head Lease Agreement dated 8th December 1998 by and between BMBF (No. 12) Limited, as
lessor, and Global Marine International Drilling Corporation, as lessee, relating to one double’
hulled, dynamically positioned ultra-deepwater Glomar class 456 drillship to be constructed by
Harland and Wolff Shipbuilding and Heavy Industries Ltd. with hull number 1740 (incorporated
herein by this reference to Exhibit 10,14 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
(Commission File No. 1-5471) for the year ended December 31, 1998).

Deed of Guarantee .and Indemnity dated 8th December 1998 by and between Global Marine Inc., as
Guarantor, and BMBF (No. 12) Limited, as Lessor (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit
10.15 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File No 1-5471) for the

" year ended December 31, 1998).

Head-lease Agreement dated January 30 2003 between GlobalSantaFe Dr1llmg Company (North
Sea) Limited, as lessor, and Sogelease B.V., as lessee, in respect of the jack-up drilling unit known
as “Britannia” (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.17 of the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10:K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Sub-lease Agreement dated January 30, 2003 between Sogelease B.V., as sub-lessor, and
GlobalSantaFe Drilling Company (North Sea) Limited, as sub-lessee, in respect of the jack-up

" drilling unit known as “Britannia” (mcorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.18 of the

Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Guarantee and Indemmty dated January 30, 2003 between GlobalSantaFe Corporation, as guarantor,
and Sogelease B.V, relating to the jack-up drilling.unit known as “Britannia” (incorporated herein
by this reference to Exhibit 10.19 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2002).

Form of Underwriting Agreement for Ordinary Shares (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on April 18,
2005). ;

Terms Agreement dated April 14, 2005 between the Company and Goldman Sachs & Co., as
representative of the underwriters named therein (incorporated herein by this reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on-Form 8-K filed with the Commission on April 18,
2005). .

Share Purchase Agreement dated April 14, 2005, between the Company, Kuwait Petroleum
Corporation and SFIC Holdings (Cayman), Inc. (incorporated herein by this reference to

Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on April 18,
2005). .

Form of Underwriting Agreement for Qrdinzilry Shares (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on
December 15, 2005).
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Terms Agreement dated December 14, 2005 between the Company and Lehman Brothers Inc.
(incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K filed with the Commission on December 15, 2005).

Share Purchase Agreement dated December 15, 2005, between the Company, Kuwait Petroleum
Corporation and SFIC Holdings (Cayman), Inc. (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit
10.3 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 15,
2005).

Schedule of Compensation for Non-Employee Directors (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on
September 21, 2005).

Base Salaries and Annual Incentive Targets for Certain Executive Officers (incorporated herein by
this reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on December 12, 2005).

Stock-Settled Stock Appreciation Rights for Executive Officers (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission
on December 20, 2005).

2005 Annual Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 28, 2005).

2006 Annual Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s

Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 20, 2005).

Global Marine Inc. 1989 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.6 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File No. 1-5471)
for the year ended December 31, 1988); First Amendment (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.6 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File No. [-5471)
for the year ended December 31, 1990); Second Amendment (incorporated herein by this reference
to Exhibit 10.7 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File No.
1-5471) for the year ended December 31, 1991); Third Amendment (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 10.19 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File
No. 1-5471) for the year ended December 31, 1993.); Fourth Amendment (incorporated herein by
this reference to Exhibit 10.16 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission
File No. 1-5471) for the year ended December 31, 1994.); Fifth Amendment (incorporated herein by
this reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Global Marine Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission
File No. 1-5471) for the quarter ended June 30, 1996.); Sixth Amendment (incorporated herein by
this reference to Exhibit 10.18 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission
File No. 1-5471) for the year ended December 31, 1996).

Global Marine Inc. 1990 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 10.18 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File
No. 1-5471) for the year ended December 31, 1991); First Amendment (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Global Marine Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File
No. 1-5471) for the quarter ended June 30, 1995); Second Amendment (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 10.37 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission File
No. 1-5471) for the year ended December 31, 1996).

1997 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-7070) filed June 13, 1997); Amendment
to 1997 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the calendar year ended December 31, 1998);
Amendment to 1997 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by this
reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the calendar year ended
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December 31, 1998); Amendment to 1997 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan dated March
23, 1999 (incorporated herein by this reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for
the calendar year ended December 31, 1999); Amendment to Non-Employee Director Stock Option
Plan dated December 1, 1999 (incorporated herein by this reference to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 20-F for the calendar year ended December 31, 1999).

1997 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-7070) filed June 13, 1997); Amendment to 1997 Long
Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 20-F for the calendar year ended December 31, 1998); Amendment to 1997 Long Term
Incentive Plan dated December 1, 1999 (incorporated herein by this reference to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 20-F for the calendar year ended December 31, 1999).

GlobalSantaFe Corporation 1998 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Global Marine Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File
No. 1-5471) for the quarter ended March 31, 1998); First Amendment (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Global Marine Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File
No. 1-5471) for the quarter ended June 30, 2000).

Memorandum dated November 20, 2001, Régarding Grant of Restricted Stock under the
GlobalSantaFe Corporation 1998 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, including Terms and Conditions
of Restricted Stock (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Options used for stock option grants under the GlobalSantaFe
Corporation 1998 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit
10.41 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Form of Memorandum dated March 4, 2002, Regarding Grant of Performance-Based Restricted
Units under the GlobalSantaFe Corporation 1998 Stock Option and Incentive Plan to certain
executive officers of the Company, respectively, including Terms and Conditions of Performance-
Based Restricted Units (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

GlobalSantaFe Corporation 2001 Non—Empioyee Director Stock Option and Incentive Plan -
(incorporated herein by this reference to the-Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8
(No. 333-73878) filed November 21, 2001).

GlobalSantaFe Corporation 2001 Long-Terrsn Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2001). ‘ :

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Options used for stock option grants under the GlobalSantaFe
Corporation 2001 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.41
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Form of Memorandum dated March 4, 2002, Regarding Grant of Performance-Based Restricted
Units under the GlobalSantaFe Corporation’2001 Long-Term Incentive Plan to certain executive
officers of the Company, respectively, including Terms and Conditions of Performance-Based
Restricted Units (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant to Non-Employee Directors under the GlobalSantaFe
Corporation 2001 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

GlobalSantaFe 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (as Amended and Restated Effective June 7, 2005)
(incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005). |
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Forms of Memoranda Regarding Grant of Performance Units under the GlobalSantaFe 2003 Long-
Term Incentive Plan to certain executive officers of the Company, including terms and cénditions for
2003-2005 and 2004-2006 performance cycles (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.35
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Options for stock option grarits under the GlobalSantaFe 2003
Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.37 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).

Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant used for new stock option grants to non-employee directors
under the GlobalSantaFe 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.38 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2003).

Form of Notice of Grant for Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Units under the
GlobalSantaFe 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to

* Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
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2004).
Form of the Notice of Grant of Stock Options under the GlobalSantaFe 2003 Long-Term Incentive

‘Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on

Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 2, 2005). -

Form of the Notice of Grant of Performance Units undér the GlobalSantaFe 2003 Long-Term °
Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 2, 2005).

Form of the Notice of Grant of Performance-Awarded Restricted Stock Units under the
GlobalSantaFe 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 2,
2005).

Form of Notice of Grant of Non-Employee Director Restncted Stock Units under the GlobalSantaFe
2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock-Settled Stock Appreciation Rights under the GlobalSantaFe 2003
Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 20, 2005).

GlobalSantaFe Corporation Key Employee Deferred Compensation Plan effective January 1, 2001;
and Amendment to GlobalSantaFe Corporation Key Employee Deferred Compensation Plan
effective November 20, 2001 (incorporated herein by this reference Exhibit 10.33 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

Trust Agreement between GlobalSantaFe Corporate Services Inc. and Fidelity Management Trust
Company for the GlobalSantaFe Key Employee Deferred Compensation Trust dated as of July 12,
2002 (incorporated herein by this reference Exhibit 10.34 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

GlobalSantaFe Retent10n Program (As Amended and Restated Effective December 20 2005).
Retention Notice Under GlobalSantaFe Retention Program.

Employee Severance Protection Plan adopted May 2, 1997 (incorporated herein by this reference to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997); Form of
Executive Severance Protection Agreement thereunder, effective October 18, 1999, between the
Company and fourteen officers, respectively (incorporated herein by this reference to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 20-F for the calendar year ended December 31, 1999); Amendments to
Executive Severance Protection Agreements, dated October 25, 2001, between the Company and three
executive officers, respectively (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002).
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Form of Severance Agreement dated August 16, 2001, between Global Marine Inc. and six executive
officers, respectively (subsequently assumed by the Company) (incorporated herein by this reference
to Exhibit 10.4 of Global Marine Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File No.

1-5471) for the quarter ended September 30, 2001); Supplemental Agreement to Severance Agreement
dated January 20, 2003 by and between Global Marine Inc., GlobalSantaFe Corporation and W. Matt
Ralls (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.25 of the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Form of Severance Agreement dated July 29, 2003, between the Company and three executive
officers, respectively (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).

Form Severance Agreement with Executive Officers (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the Commission on July
26, 2005).

GlobalSantaFe Severance Program for Shorebased Staff Personnel effective January 1, 2006
through December 31, 2006.

Group Life and Accident and Health Insurance Policy between Aetna Life Insurance Company and
GlobalSantaFe effective January 1, 2004 (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.42 of
GlobalSantaFe Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

Form of GlobalSantaFe Indemnity Agreement (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit
10.51 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

GlobalSantaFe Personal Financial Planning Assistance Program for Senior Executive Officers
(incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.44 of GlobalSantaFe Corporation’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

GlobalSantaFe Personal Financial Planning Assistance Program for Key Employees (incorporated
herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.45 of GlobalSantaFe Corporation’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

GlobalSantaFe Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (incorporated herein by this reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2002).

GlobalSantaFe Pension Equalization Plan effective as of July 1, 2002 (incorporated herein by this

reference Exhibit 10.35 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004).

Global Marine Benefit Equalization Retirement Trust as established effective January 1, 1990
(incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 10.9 of Global Marine Inc.’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K (Commission File No. 1-5471) for the year ended December 31, 1989); First
Amendment and Appointment of Successor Trustee dated as of June 1, 1999, by and between
Global Marine Corporate Services Inc. and SEI Trust Company (incorporated herein by this
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Global Marine Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File
No. 1-5471) for the quarter ended June 30, 1999). Second Amendment to the Global Marine Benefit
Equalization Retirement Trust to be renamed GlobalSantaFe Pension Equalization Plan Trust
effective January 1, 2004 (incorporated herein by this reference Exhibit 10.36 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

Statement setting forth detail of Computatidn of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

List of Subsidiaries.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
Consent of Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc.

Consent of DeGolyer and MacNaughton.

Chief Executive Officer’s Certification pursuant to Rule 13a—14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934,



+31.2

+32.1
+32.2
99.1

99.2

Chief Financial Officer’s Certification pursuant to Rule 13a—14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934. '

Chief Executive Officer’s Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

, vChief Financial Officer’s Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Report regarding estimates of the Company’s proved oil and gas reserves in the United States prepared
by Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the
Company’s Form 10-K/A amendment to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2004).

Report regarding estimates of the Company’s proved oil and gas reserves in the United Kingdom
prepared by DeGolyer and MacNaughton (incorporated herein by this reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the
Company’s Form 10-K/A amendment to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2004).

+ Filed herewith.
* Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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Robert E. Rose
Chairman of the Board
of GlobalSantaFe Corporation

Ferdinand A. Berger
Retired Director of Shell
Internacional Petroleum
Company Limited

Thomas W, Cason

Owner and Manager of
Equipment Dealerships,
primarily in support of the
agricultural industry

Richard L. George

President and Chief Executive
Officer of Suncor Energy Inc., an
integrated oil and gas company

Jon A. Marshall

President and Chief Executive
Officer of GlobalSantaFe
Corporation

Edward R. Muller
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer of Mirant

Corporation, an energy company that

produces and sells electricity

Paul J. Powers

Retired Chairman of the Board
and Chief Execucive Officer of
Commercial Intertech Corp., a
manufacturer of hydraulic systems,
pre-engineered buildings

and metal products

Stephen J. Solarz
President of Solarz Associates,
an international consulting firm

Carroll W. Suggs

Retired Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Petroleum
Helicopters, Inc., a provider of
helicopter transportation services

John L. Whitmire
Chairman of the Board of
CONSOL Energy Inc., a producer

of coal and natural gas
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Executive Office
GlobalSantaFe Corporation
15375 Memorial Drive
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Telephone: 281.925.6000
www.globalsantafe.com

Investor Relations Inquiries
Richard J. Hoffman

Vice President,

Investor Relations

Telephone: 281.925.6444
irelations@globalsantafe.com

Subsidiary Offices

Applied Drilling Technology Inc.
R. Blake Simmons, President
15375 Memorial Drive

Houston, Texas 77079-4101
Telephone: 281.925.7100

Challenger Minerals Inc.
Charles B, Hauf, President
15375 Memorial Drive
Houston, Texas 77079-4101
Telephone: 281.925.7200

Registered Office
GlobalSantaFe Corporation

P.O. Box 309GT, Ugland House
South Church Street

George Town, Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands

Stock Listing
New York Stock Exchange
Symbol: GSF

Stock Transfer Agent

and Registrar
Computershare Investor
Services LLC

P.O. Box A-3504
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Toll Free: 1.877.273.7879
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Houston, Texas
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GlobalSantaFe Auditorium
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Form 10-K

A copy of our 2005 Annual
Report on Form 10-K, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, will be furnished
without charge upon written
request to: Investor Relations,
GlobalSantaFe Corporation,

15375 Memorial Drive, Houston,
Texas, 77079-4101, 281.925.6444.
Our 2004 Annual Report on Form
10-K also is available on our Web
site at www.globalsantafe.com or
from the SEC’s EDGAR filings at

WWW.SEC.gOV.

Financial Information and

News Releases

Information updates about us,
including quarterly financial results
and current news releases, are
available to the public on our Web
site at www.globalsantafe.com

or upon request from our Investor
Relations department.

Forward Looking Statements
The disclaimer regarding
Forward Looking Statements
contained in the attached Form
10-K is incorporated

herein by this reference.

Corporate Governance
Certification

GlobalSantaFe Corporation has
filed the certification of its

Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer pursuant
to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act as exhibits

to its Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005. In July
2005, our Chief Executive Officer, as
required by Section 303A.12(a) of
the New York Stock Exchange Listed
Company Manual, submitted

his certification to the New

York Stock Exchange that he

was not aware of any violation

by GlobalSantaFe of the
Exchange’s corporate governance
listing standards.
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